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Delivering

Five Star Service Guaranteed

This changes banking forever.
Guaranteed customer service
by every business line and
every employee for every
transaction, every day. Our
exclusive Five Star Service
Guarantee puts customer
needs first and foremost.

Sbany,

Outstanding customer service is $o
fundamental to the way we do business
that our employees wear lapel pins with
the inscription “Service Guaranteed” as
a visible symbol of our commitment to
customers. A replica of that pin is on the
cover of this report, signifying its impor-
tance to U.S. Bank®

In 1996, we created the original
Five Star Service Guarantee for all of
our customers who bank in a branch
office. Our goal: to bring customers the
highest level of service they have ever
experienced from a financial institution.
Since then, our pursuit of excellence
has expanded to every line of business
and department at U.S. Bank. Each one
has its own set of Five Star Service
Guarantees — more than 80 guarantees
in all, delivered by all business lines

throughout our organization.

This means that every employee is
working every day not just to meet cus-
tomer needs, but to exceed them. And, if
anyone at U.S. Bank fails to keep any of
our guarantees, we pay the customer for
the inconvenience.

We recognize that our service is
what differentiates U.S. Bank from our
competition. Product features and rates
may be similar among banks, but
guaranteed, outstanding service makes
U.S. Bank unique. We say that some
banks talk about great service, but only
U.S. Bank guarantees it.

Circle of Service Excellence

Our Five Star Service Guarantee is
built on the outstanding efforts of our
employees and their commitment and
contribution to delivering the highest
level of quality service for our customers.

Each quarter we choose a select few
employees who exemplify outstanding
service for induction into the Circle of
Service Excellence. We honor them at
a luncheon hosted by U.S. Bancorp
executives and at a Board of Directors
meeting. We prominently display their
portraits at our Five Star Halls of Fame,
located in seven major markets. Stock
options and local recognition are among
the other ways we reward these top
performers. We invite you to nominate
an outstanding employee for our
Circle of Service Excellence using the
attached self-addressed, postage-paid

nomination form.

u.s. BancoJ
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Financial Summary

Percent Change Percent Change

{Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000
Operatingearnings () . ........ .ottt $2,550.8 $3,106.9 $2,799.0 (17.9)% 11.0%
Merger and restructuring-related items (after-tax) .. ............. (844.3) (231.3) 417.2)

Netincome .. ... ... e $1,706.5 $2,875.6 $2,381.8 (40.7) 20.7
Per Common Share
Earningspershare . ......... ... ... it $ .89 $ 1.51 $ 125 41.1)% 20.8%
Diluted earningspershare .......... ... .. .. .. .. . .. .88 1.50 1.28 (41.3) 22.0
Dividends declared pershare (b} ............. ... ... . ...... 75 .65 .46 154 41.3
Bookvaluepershare ........... .. . . ... e 8.43 7.97 7.23 5.8 10.2
Market value pershare ......... ... ... i i 20.93 23.25 2113 (10.0) 10.0
Financial Ratios
Returnonaverage assets ... ... ..t i 1.03% 1.81% 1.59%
Return onaverage equity .......... ..ot 10.5 20.0 18.0
Net interest margin (taxable-equivalent basis) .. ................ 4.45 4.36 4.44
Efficiencyratio . ... .. . . . . 57.5 51.9 55.7

Financial Ratios Excluding Merger and
Restructuring-Related ltems (a)

Returnonaverageassets . ............. ... ... .. 1.54% 1.96% 1.86%
Returnon average equity . ...... ... ...t 15.7 216 21.2
Efficiency ratio . ... .. . 49.5 48.8 50.5
Banking efficiencyratio{c) ........... ... . . o i 45.2 43.5 46.3
Average Balances
Loans . .. $118,177 $118,317 $109,638 (1% 7.9%
Earningassets . ............. ... ... ... R 145,165 140,606 133,757 3.2 5.1
ASSES L. e 165,944 158,481 150,167 47 5.5
DepPOoSItS . . o e 104,956 103,426 99,920 1.5 3.5
Total shareholders’ equity .. ....... ... . e 16,201 14,365 13,221 12.8 8.7
Period End Balances
LOaNS . $114,405 $122,365 $113,229 6.5)% 8.1%
Allowance forcredit 10Sses . . ... . 2,457 1,787 1,710 37.5 4.5
ASSBES L. 171,390 164,921 154,318 3.9 6.9
DepPOSitS . .. e 105,219 109,535 103,417 3.9) 5.9
Total shareholders’ equity ... ........ ... i 16,461 15,168 13,947 8.5 8.8
Regulatory capital ratios

Tangible commonequity ...... ... ... . . .. .o i 57% 6.3% 6.7%

Tiertcapital ...... .. .. e 7.7 7.2 7.4

Total risk-based capital . .......... ... ... . .. .. . i, 1.7 10.6 11.0

LeVerage . . i e e 7.7 7.4 7.5

(a) The Company analyzes its performance on a net income basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, as well as on an operating
basis before merger and restructuring-related items referred to as “operating earnings.” Operating earnings are presented as supplemental information to enhance the reader’s
understanding of, and highlight trends in, the Company’s financial resuits excluding the impact of merger and restructuring-related items of specific business acquisitions and
restructuring activities. Operating earnings should not be viewed as a substitute for net income and earnings per share as determined in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. Merger and restructuring-related items excluded from net income to derive operating earnings may be significant and may not be
comparable to other companies.

(b) Dividends per share have not been restated for the 2001 merger of Firstar and the former U.S. Bancorp (“LUSBM”).
(c) Without investment banking and brokerage activity.
Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report and Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. Statements that are not historical or current facts, including statements about beliefs and expectations,
are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, and important factors could cause actual results to differ materially from
those anticipated, including the following, in addition to those contained in the Company’s reports on file with the SEC. (i) general economic or industry conditions could be
less favorable than expected, resulting in a deterioration in credit quality, a change in the allowance for credit losses, or a reduced demand for credit or fee-based products

and services; (i) the Company could encounter unforeseen complications in connection with the ongoing integration of the products, operations and information systems of
Firstar with USBM that could adversely affect the Company’s operations or customer relationships; (iii) changes in the domestic interest rate environment could reduce net
interest income and could increase credit losses; (iv) the conditions of the securities markets could change, adversely affecting revenues from capital markets businesses, the
value or credit quality of the Company’s assets, or the availability and terms of funding necessary to meet the Company's liquidity needs; (v} changes in the extensive laws,
regulations and policfes governing financial services companies could alter the Company's business environment or affect operations; (vi) the potential need to adapt to industry
changes in information technology systems, on which the Company is highly dependent, could present operational issues or require significant capital spending; (vii) competitive
pressures could intensify and affect the Company's profitability, including as a result of continued industry consclidation, the increased availability of financial services from
non-banks, technolocgical developments, or bank regulatory reform; (viii) acquisitions may not produce revenue enhancements or cost savings at levels or within time frames
originally anticipated, or may result in unforeseen integration difficufties; and (ix) capital investments in the Company’s businesses may not produce expected growth in earnings
anticipated at the time of the expenditure. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and the Company undertakes no obligation to update them in

light of new information or future events.
U.S. Bancorp
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Dear Fellow Shareholders:

We are pleased to tell you that the
seamless integration of Firstar and
U.S. Bancorp proceeds on schedule to be
completed by the end of the third quarter
of 2002. We continue to successfully
convert major systems and products to
single operating platforms with virtually
no customer disruption. The integration
process has been thoughtful and inten-
tional. We have worked very diligently
to blend the best practices, people and
products of both organizations.

Your corporation ended 2001
with strong fourth quarter performance,
highlighted by revenue momentum,
margin improvement and a companywide
focus on customer service quality. We
are committed to seeing these trends
continue through 2002.

The year 2001 brought unprece-
dented challenges for our country and
our company. During the third quarter,
we took action to increase our reserves
for potential loan losses and to strengthen
our balance sheet. While we were
disappointed in the resulting adverse
effect on earnings, U.S. Bancorp now
ranks among the top of our peer group
in the strength of our credit reserves.

We prudently recognized the economic

slowdown and our inability to predict its

length or the timing of a genuine recovery.
For a company that prides itself on
consistent earnings, our third quarter
action was not an easy step to take.
However, it helped us accomplish one
of our primary objectives: having a
balance sheet and a risk profile among
the strongest in the industry. We have
positioned ourselves to manage through
the current economic cycle. Our credit
quality remained stable in the fourth
quarter, but we are prepared for the
likelihood that nonperforming loans and
charge-offs will increase throughout 2002.
Providing outstanding service to all
customers, backed by our exclusive
Five Star Service Guarantee, is an ongoing
priority at U.S. Bancorp, as is selling more
of our products and services. You can
read more about our Five Star Service
Guarantee at the front of this report.
Our operating revenue growth in the
fourth quarter is a sure sign that our
sales and service culture is taking effect.
Although our combined franchise
has yet to fulfill all of its potential, we
are off to a strong start on a solid foun-
dation. The success of our integration to
date and the benefits of the merger
became evident in our year-end results.

We operate in stable, moderately grow-

U.S. Bancorp is well
positioned to capitalize
on growth opportunities.

ing and fast-growing markets, and we
have a multi-tiered and comprehensive
distribution system throughout those
markets. Our scope and scale make us
a low-cost provider with significant com-
petitive advantages. We have a proven
track record and skilled professionals
who are the best in the industry running
our businesses.

We assure you that, as always, our
highest priority is to increase the value
of your investment in U.S. Bancorp. It is

the reason we come to work each day.
Sincerely,

of Vet

Jerry A. Grundhofer
President and Chief Executive Officer

alls

John F. Grundhofer

Chairman

February 22, 2002

U.S. Bancorp u




Consumer Banking

Delivers comprehensive financial
products and services to the broad
consumer and small business
markets through 2,147 banking
offices, telesales and telephone
customer service, online banking,
direct mail and 4,904 automated
teller machines (ATMs)

Wholesale Banking

Offers relationship-based lending,
depository, treasury management,
foreign exchange, international
banking, leasing and other finan-
cial services primarily to middle
market, large corporate, financial
institution and public sector clients

Payment Services

Includes consumer and business
credit and debit cards, corporate
and purchasing card services,
consumer lines of credit, ATM pro-

EaC h U - S . BanCO rp ) Rt - ‘ cessing and merchant processing

business line focuses

on unique customer

) ‘ Private Client, Trust and
Seg m ents! en abl I n g ’ | l".% ﬁ\rts:\?ii‘;sl\fi::sz::fsr:\te array
‘ ‘. " ' of private bank_ing,. personal,

us to best meet the 30, T e

needs of our broad - fa [ oot s ot

customer base.

1

Capital Markets
Under the U.S. Bancorp Piper
Jaffray® brand, provides financial

* Treasury and Corporate Support contributed (1.0)% of 2001 operating R ) advisory and securities brokerage
income. Operating income represents pretax earnings before the provisig - :
for credit losses and merger and restructuring-related items. \
** Assets are as of December 31, 2001 and reflect U.S. Bancorp Asset Managemnt, i N " and insurance products to individ-
Inc. and its affiliated private asset management group within U.S. Bank National ' 3 " . .
Association. Investment products, including shares of mutual funds, are not " . uals and businesses; for corporate
obligations of, or guaranteed by, any bank, including U.S. Bank or any U.S. Baf AT and public sector clients, engages
affiliate, nor are they insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, thg . . . . .
Federal Reserve Board or any other agency. An investment in such products g B in equity and fixed income tradlng
involves investment risk, including possible loss of principal. ) £ activities and investment banking

and underwriting services
n U.S. Bancorp ’

services, mutual funds, annuities




Key Business Units
® Community Banking serves smaller and
non-urban markets

® Metropolitan Banking serves larger
urban and high-growth markets

w |n-Store Banking complements tradi-
tional branches with accessible facilities
in supermarkets, convenience stores
and other locations

m Small Business Banking provides
comprehensive financial solutions to
businesses with annual revenue up
to $5 million

m Gonsumer Lending provides student
loans and serves consumers purchasing
or leasing vehicles or marine equipment
through franchised dealers

m Consumer Finance serves customers
outside the traditional bank credit profile

® Home Mortgage Lending originates,
purchases, sells and services residential
mortgage loans

m Retail Brokerage and Insurance provides
mutual funds, variable and fixed annuities,
general securities and discount brokerage

Strengths and Successes
m Segmented business model

m Strong sales culture

® Top 3 small business lender

& Top 3 Small Business Administration
bank lender

® Top 4 bank branch network
# Top 7 home equity lender
® Top 8 consumer lender

Contribution to
2001 U.S. Bancorp
Operating Income*

37.5%

Key Business Units

® Commercial Banking serves middie
market clients with annual sales
between $5 million and $250 million,
and clients in the commercial real
estate, commercial vehicle dealership
and energy industries

® Corporate Banking serves clients with
annual sales greater than $250 million,
those with specialized lending, equipment
finance and leasing needs, companies
in diverse specialty industries (such as

agribusiness, health care, martgage
banking and media/communications),
correspondent banks, government
entities, and all wholesale clients in
our headquarters market

8 Treasury Management provides
comprehensive cash management
solutions to business clients, facilitating
their deposits and the collection of
funds, payments, and information
to assist in the management and
optimization of their cash position

Strengths and Successes
m Strong distribution system

u Comprehensive product set

m Relationship manager tenure
and expertise

& | eading depository bank for federal,
state and municipal governments

® Top 5 bank-owned leasing company
# Top 7 treasury management provider

Contribution to
2001 U.S. Bancorp
Operating Income*

32.1%

Key Business Units

u Corporate Payment Systems provides
Visa® corporate and purchasing cards
and other payment solutions to compa-
nigs with annual sales greater than
$50 million, as well as federal, state
and local governments

® Card Services provides credit and debit
card prodtcts to consumer and small
business customers of U.S. Bancorp,
correspondent financial institutions and
co-brand partners

= NOVA Information Systems, Inc.
specializes in integrated credit and debit
card payment processing services,
related software application products
and value-added services for more than
650,000 U.S. merchant locations

Transaction Services specializes in ATM
processing, supporting U.S. Bank ATMs
and facilitating electronic transactions
for other financial institutions and cor-
porations through ATMs, debit cards,
two proprietary regional networks and
a network gateway

Strengths and Successes

® [ndustry-leading products

® Proprietary technology

® QOperational economies of scale

® No. 1 Visa commercial card issuer
m Top 2 universal fleet card provider
= Top 3 bank-owned ATM network

® Top 3 merchant processor

® Top 6 Visa and MasterCard® issuer

Contribution to
2001 U.S. Bancorp
Operating Income*

18.9%

Key Business Units

m Private Client Group fulfills private
banking, personat trust and investment
management needs for affluent clients
and has $79 billion in assets under
administration

w Corporate Trust Services provides trustee
services for more than $650 billion in
municipal, corporate, asset-backed and
international bonds

m |nstitutional Trust and Custody provides

retirement, investment and custodian
services to institutional clients

Fund Services provides transfer agent,
fund accounting, fund administration/
compliance and distribution to mutual
fund complexes

m |).S. Bancorp Asset Management, Inc.,
with more than $121 billion** in assets
under management, advises the $54
billion** First American® family of mutual
funds and provides customized portfolio
management for individuals, corporations,
endowments, foundations, pension
funds, public entities and labor unions

Strengths and Successes
® Creative, needs-based solutions

® [ egading technology and operational
economies of scale

® Breadth of asset management products
® Top 2 municipal trustee
= Top 3 transfer agent

® Top 5 bank-affiliated U.S. mutual
fund family

® Top 6 among banks in record
keeping assets

Contribution to
2001 U.S. Bancorp
Operating Income*

10.7%

¢

Key Business Units

m Private Advisory Services helps affluent
clients meet their financial goals through
a network of 123 brokerage offices

® Equity Capital Markets provides
research, trading, sales and equity
investment banking activities, including
public offerings and advisary services
for mergers and acquisitions, with
niches in communications, consumer,
health care, financial institutions,
industrial growth and technology

® Fixed Income Capital Markets provides
financing and investment expertise to
public finance issuers, corporate debt
issuers and institutional investors

Strengths and Successes
& Strong retail distribution network

m “Middle Market Mergers & Acquisitions
Bank of the Year,” Mergers & Acquisitions
magazine, February 2001

® Top-performing equity bookrunner for lead-
managed IPOs and follow-on offerings

m Record year for Fixed income
Capital Markets

m Leading manager of fixed income new
issuance, underwriting $11.5 billion in
agency securities and $6.3 billion in
municipal bonds

Contribution to
2001 U.S. Bancorp
Operating Income*

1.8%

U.S. Bancorp




Providing

Convenient Access

Cutting-Edge
Delivery Technologies ;
24-Hour Banking: Our ‘
Consumer Banking customer serv-
ice cail centers handied 126,207,713
inbound inguiries in 2001, including
99,783,801 served by our interactive
voice response system.

ATM Banking: 4,904 leading-
edge terminals are available around
the clock throughout our 24-state
banking region.

internet Banking: 1,155,733
consumer and small business
customers are registered to
conduct most transactions and
inquiries at the click of a mouse.

8 U.S. Bancorp It




Consumer and business customers
alike increasingly use technology to
access their accounts with us. They also
frequent our extensive network of bank
branches and specialized offices, which
remain the foundation of our command-
ing presence in many of the highest
growth, most diversified markets in the
United States. Wherever customers inter-
act with us, they can count on consistent,

leading-edge service.

Branch Banking

Our Community and Metropolitan
Banking branches deliver all the products
and services U.S. Bank has to offer. In
our larger markets, branch staff act as
concierges, connecting customers with
experts across the company for specialized
services. Nontraditional branch locations
bring banking directly to where our cus-
tomers live, work, study and shop inside
retirement centers, workplaces and corpo-
rate sites, colleges and universities, and
grocery and convenience stores. These
dynamic locations feature special products,
services and hours geared to the unique
needs of local customers. Additionally,
many specialized offices within and beyond
our 24-state region serve unique customer
segments such as brokerage, home mort-

gage and trust.

Telephone Banking

Using 24-Hour Banking, consumers
have anytime, anywhere access to their
accounts by telephone, including Spanish
language options. Dedicated call centers
provide expertise to various business
customer segments and others with
specialized needs. Our telesales efforts
offer customers new products and
services to meet more of their financial
needs while generating revenue growth
for the company. Consumer Banking
alone handled 1,402,849 inbound and

outbound telesales calls in 2001.

ATM Banking

Our ATM network is great in number
as well as functionality. We are upgrading
approximately 1,500 branch terminals to
Super ATMs, bringing the total number
of Super ATMs to 3,444. These state-of-
the-art ATMs enable customers not only
to access funds, check balances and make
deposits, but also to obtain statements,
order checks, request check copies,
purchase stamps and phone minutes...
and more. Updated ATMs feature the new
bright and colorful U.S. Bank look —
signaling the best ATM service available.

Internet Banking

We offer comprehensive, fast, secure
online service on all accounts across all
business lines. Consumers enjoy the latest
Internet banking capabilities available on
www.usbank.com or www.firstar.com,
where they can learn about products,
open deposit accounts in real time, apply
for loans and lines of credit, access
account information, pay bills and more.

Businesses and investors also benefit
from increasingly sophisticated, specialized
online tools. For example, we offer
advanced capabilities to deliver check

images to commercial customers via the

Internet. Our Customer Automation
Reporting Environment (C.A.R.E.} pro-
vides Internet access for corporate and
purchasing card customers, merchants
and government clients, who can gener-
ate customized reports at any time. And
we recently became the first institution
to offer complete Web-based reporting
and processing for money market instru-
ment issuers. It’s all part of “e-enabling”
our customers and employees with the

latest technology.

Relationship Banking
Relationships, complemented by com-
prehensive products and services, drive
several of our key businesses, including
Wholesale Banking, Private Client, Trust
and Asset Management, and U.S. Bancorp
Piper Jaffray. Clients of these businesses
not only want quick, convenient access
to conduct transactions, they also need
expert advice and support. We offer both.
Clients always have access to an experi-
enced relationship manager— an ambassa-
dor who can help fulfill their day-to-day
needs or direct them, as needed, to appro-
priate specialists across our organization
in areas as diverse as asset management,

investment banking and leasing.

Branch Banking and Specialized Services/Offices

Branch Banking

(] 2,147 branch
banking offices
in 24 states

All Firstar locations
will operate as U.S. Bank
by mid-2002.

@ Commercial Banking
@ Consumer Banking
QO Corporate Banking
@ Payment Services
@ Private Client, Trust and Asset Management
O Technology and Operations Services

Specialized Services/Offices

O Hong Kong

® Canada

© Buenos Aires
® Cayman Islands
® London

® Tel Aviv

@ U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray

U.S. Bancorp n




Structure and Process

] ]
Every week for more than a year,
u I I n t h e corporate and line-of-business leaders from
across U.S. Bancorp have been gathering

. . to execute our comprehensive plan to
B e St B a n k I n Am e rl C a integrate Firstar and U.S. Bank. They are
united by a common goal: to ensure a
flawless, cost-effective integration for the
benefit of customers, shareholders and

Disciplined. Detailed. Deliberate. .. t s s reoni—

years of experience executing dozens
Th I I I f of successful mergers—produces out-
e OngOIng Integ ratlon O standing results.
. . The integration has been a textbook
FI rstar an d U . S . Ban k IS example of careful planning and smooth
execution. Thorough preparation,
employee training, systems testing and

Seam IeSS Iy C reati n g O n e customer communication has ensured

success. A series of systems conversions
f. I | h is bringing all our markets together on
I n an C I a powe r O u Se ) common operating and delivery platforms.
. . Together we are equipped to handle
u n Ited by a S I n g Ie b ran d . increased capacity, enhanced functionality,
and high-quality, consistent service wher-

ever customers interact with us.

U.S. Bancorp




Quality Control and Monitoring

Exacting quality control and moni-
toring— before and after conversion
events—ensure that our conversions
proceed smoothly. Command centers
track any issues so that customer service
continues uninterrupted.

Branch employee “ambassadors”
with expert knowledge of our combined
products, systems and processes are on
location at newly converted branches and
other front-office operations after conver-
sion. They provide ongoing training and
support for employees and ensure that
customers experience business as usual.
“Mystery shoppers” measure service levels

before and after conversion events.

Key Accomplishments

During the past year, we have worked
diligently to combine our two predecessor
organizations into an even stronger com-
pany. Together, we have created a better
way to do business.

We have established a new, efficient

organizational structure. We have devel-
oped common employee benefits, pro-
grams and policies, including incentives
that drive employees to generate revenue
while fulfilling customers’ needs. We have
selected the best products and services
from our combined resources— or, through
expanded capabilities, created new ones.
Along the way, we have invested in
cutting-edge, fully automated infrastruc-
ture that lays a solid foundation for
growth. In migrating to new, cost-effec-
tive network technology, we have estab-
lished greater connectivity between our
front and back offices. We have e-enabled
employees and customers to access
information and conduct transactions
with unprecedented accuracy and effi-
ciency. Gone are closed-end, self-contained
processing systems. Evolving is a dedicated
open Internet protocol network that
supports more than 300 million transac-
tions a month and is backed by the Five
Star Service Guarantee—testament to

our confidence in our systems and staff.

Our entire organization has embraced
our exclusive Five Star Service Guarantee.
Soon we’ll be completely united under
one strong brand—the new U.S. Bank.

Starting in January and continuing
through July 2002, the distinctive new
red, white and blue U.S. Bank signs are
rising market-by-market. All locations,
including our ATM network, are in the
process of displaying the updated identity,
which promises “Five Star Service
Guaranteed.” In addition, all advertising
and marketing materials, business supplies
and customer documents reinforce our
new brand.

After final systems conversions in the
third quarter of 2002, all customers will have
convenient access to our new, improved
product and service offerings wherever
we operate. They will be able to make
deposits and conduct other transactions
at any of our branches across 24 states.

Including our specialized businesses,
the new U.S. Bank brand is recognizable
from coast to coast. When customers see
the U.S. Bank name, they can expect
familiar faces, convenient access, top-
quality solutions and unma;ched service

Bl).S_Bancorp closes acquisition o

NOVA Corp

ial.S. Ba

orp closes acquisition of 20 Southern

* Name change and deposit

Bnd FIRMCO metrge into U.S. Bancorp onto common platform integrations to be completed
et Management, Inc. onsumer loans convert to « Teller and personal banker system

LlVlortgage loans conver common platorm

LOMMon o

upgrades to be completed

Bfomotion launchesacrossall |
business line + Teller and personal banker system

Stems

Lonve 0 common platform

upgrades begin in selected markets

* Name change and deposit integrations

Continue in selected markets




Capitalizing
on Growth Opportunities

The combination of Firstar and Our future begins with our basic where by our Five Star Service Guarantee,

U.S. Bancorp has created a larger, banking operations. We already rank Consumers enjoy expanded access
stronger company with a solid founda- among the top three commercial banks in through 2,147 branches and 4,904 ATMs

tion for growth. We will grow by using 50 metropolitan areas based on deposits. in 24 states, plus state-of-the-art telephone
strategic cost advantage to gain market We are penetrating all our markets even and Internet banking channels. Businesses
share, emphasizing customer service and further with our expanded, improved set also benefit from our expanded geographic

investing in higher-growth businesses. of high-quality products—backed every- reach and technology investments.
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National retailers, in particular, are bene-
fiting from enhanced depository and
treasury management products accessible
through common accounts across the
region, including the expansion of our
cash vault capabilities to new markets.
Trust customers benefit from our greater
economies of scale and state-of-the-art
products and systems.

We continually strive to serve cus-
tomers across business lines, gaining more
of their business. In 2001, for example,
U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray Fixed Income
Capital Markets had a record year in
corporate debt issuance, managing 35
issues with a par amount of more than
$19 billion, including preferred stock and
note issues for U.S. Bancorp. Meanwhile,
customers deposited more than $490
million into U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray
Prime Accounts®™ and other brokerage
accounts through U.S. Bank branches and
ATMs—up over 134 percent from a year
earlier. When the integration is completed,
investors will have access to their broker-
age accounts at all of our bank branches.

Ultimately, our growth depends on
our people. We have created a sales
culture driven by customer needs and
rewarded by incentives for outstanding,
measurable performance. Every employee,
from the front line to the back office,
is eligible for incentives to strengthen
existing customer relationships, build
new ones, and provide outstanding
guaranteed service to all customers,

whether external or internal.

Hispanic Initiative Taps Success

The U.S. Hispanic community num-
bers more than 35 million consumers
with $450 billion in spending and invest-
ment power. Approximately 1.2 million
Hispanic businesses have $200 billion
in revenues. It’s a remarkable success
story —and opportunity.

Our Hispanic Initiative, launched in
2001, is our coordinated program to be
an outstanding bank, responsive business
partner and superior employer in key
markets. It focuses on more than 300

branches serving communities with large

Hispanic populations, both English- and
Spanish-speaking. More than ever before,
we are hiring additional Hispanic employ-
ees who reflect the diversity of their local
communities and who communicate
more effectively with customers. OQur
employees are visible community leaders
who have strong relationships with
Hispanic individuals, businesses and
community organizations.

Our ATMs and 24-Hour Banking
system feature expanded Spanish language
options. Additionally, we have telephone
customer service representatives who speak
Spanish and other foreign languages.

We also are displaying more signs and
materials in Spanish.

We offer many programs that help
meet the needs of various segments of
Hispanic customers. To help first-time
borrowers, we created the Credit Builder
Secured Loan. We also accept identifica-
tion issued by the Consulate of Mexico,
issue the Visa® Payroll Card and offer a
low-cost money transfer program.

Our Hispanic Initiative extends to
partnerships with Hispanic Chambers of
Commerce and other organizations, and
to community service. Free seminars, for
example, cover topics ranging from the
basics of banking in the United States
{especially geared to Spanish-speaking
immigrants) to first-time home owner-
ship. Hispanic customers know they can
turn to U.S. Bank to turn their American
Dream into reality.

Payment Services: Growth Engine
Payment Services represents one of
our greatest growth opportunities. We
continue to build our core commercial
and consumer card businesses while
investing in other industry-leading,
payment-related businesses.
PowerTrack® our innovative online
payment processing and transaction
tracking system, has seemingly unlimited
potential. First introduced to the freight
industry, this single-source information
center provides powerful control for the
logistics process. On the Internet or via a

private network, shipment information is

stored as a single electronic document
that is instantly available to both shipper
and carrier. By eliminating manual rec-
onciliation of invoices and freight bills,
companies can save significantly on each
transaction. With expansion into other
industries, PowerTrack delivers the
future— faster, more accurate payments
and exceptional analytical reporting
tools for better management decisions.
The result is more efficiency and control
for both buyer and seller.

In 2001 we closed on our purchase
of NOVA Corporation, now known as
NOVA Information Systems, Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp. This
merchant payment processor ranks as the
third-largest in the United States, serving
650,000 businesses of all sizes. Merchants
benefit from our industry-leading product
offerings, including electronic check
processing, a variety of Web-enabled
tools, and a full array of point-of-sale
applications in addition to credit card
and debit card processing.

Within our Transaction Services
division, Elan Financial Services serves
more than 3,000 financial institutions
through a complete range of products and
services including credit card issuing, and
ATM, debit card and merchant processing.
Elan also provides full-service support
and management tools that are offered
uniquely through a single source. The suite
of products enables small- to mid-sized
financial institution clients to compete
effectively with larger institutions. Elan
leverages these unique capabilities to also
provide ATM driving and deployment,
and debit gateway services to large
corporate clients.

U.S. Bancorp
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Local Market Leadership

U.S. Bank markets are segmented
into Metropolitan Banking in large
urban areas and Community Banking in
smaller urban and non-urban locales.
U.S. Bank maximizes its ability to serve
our Metropolitan Banking markets
through the independent management of
our major lines of business. In Commu-
nity Banking markets, however, all lines
of business are offered and marketed
through branch offices. In every market,
large or small, our local management
teams make the decisions that most
directly affect their customers. Local
autonomy in resource allocation, com-
munity affairs, pricing and business devel-

opment enhances local market control.

Local Bank Boards

The best decisions and the best cus-
tomer service come from knowing our
markets and our customers. To enhance
our own management’s understanding of
local economies, critical issues, business

and public affairs, we have established

local bank boards throughout our markets.

The boards include local business and
civic leaders in addition to U.S. Bank
executives, The perspective of these board

members is invaluable.

Community Involvement

At U.S. Bancorp, community is
more than a location. Community is the
corporate spirit of accepting the role
as a facilitator for the people, businesses
and nonprofit organizations in our
markets to achieve their financial goals
and enrich their lives.

To that end, we provide both corpo-
rate and local leadership on issues of
community importance; we tailor our
products and services to our communi-
ties’ diverse needs; our local managers
are visible and involved in community
organizations and economic development
efforts; and we encourage and support
our employees’ ongoing volunteer efforts.
We believe that our success depends on
the vitality of the communities we serve,
and we bring together many resources to
help make possible economic, educational

and cultural development.

Local management. Local
decisions. Local involvement.
At U.S. Bancorp, we are deeply
rooted in the communities

we serve, and we recognize
that the best solutions come
most often from those who
are closest to the market.

U.S. Bancorp Foundation
2001 Charitable Contributions
by Program Area

32% United Way & Human Services
28% Economic Opportunity
18% Arts & Culture
16% Education
5% Employee Matching Gifts
1% Miscellaneous

H JOmOM®mO

Through the U.S. Bancorp Founda-
tion, we contribute millions of dollars
back to the communities in which we do
business through charitable grants to
nonprofit organizations. We provide
critical financing for revitalization efforts,
job programs and affordable housing.
We sponsor the United Way at generous
levels to meet critical human service needs.
We sponsor a wide variety of amateur
and professional artistic groups; profes-
sional, college and high school sporting
events and teams; and neighborhood and
civic events. From the smallest towns to
the largest cities, U.S. Bancorp is an inte-

gral part of the fabric of every hometown.

Development Network

The U.S. Bancorp Development
Network comprises 35 geographically
based employee chapters with a common
mission —to promote the personal and
professional development of our employ-
ees, to provide networking opportunities
within our organization and to offer a
framework for involvement in commu-
nity service. Individual Development
Network chapters recruit public school
tutors and mentors from our employee
base, raise funds for many charitable
causes and community efforts, partici-
pate in various walkathons and races,
assist elderly residents with simple home
repairs and maintenance, build Habitat
for Humanity homes, and become

involved in other community services.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

U.S. Bancorp and its subsidiaries (“the Company”) compose
the organization created by the acquisition by Firstar
Corporation (“Firstar”) of the former U.S. Bancorp of
Minneapolis, Minnesota (“USBM”). The merger was
completed on February 27, 2001, as a pooling-of-interests,
and accordingly all financial information has been restated
to include the historical information of both companies.
Each share of Firstar stock was exchanged for one share of
the Company’s common stock while each share of USBM
stock was exchanged for 1.265 shares of the Company’s
common stock. The new Company retained the

U.S. Bancorp name.

Earnings Summary The Company reported net income of
$1.7 billion in 2001, or $.88 per diluted share, compared
with $2.9 billion, or $1.50 per diluted share, in 2000.
Return on average assets and return on average common
equity were 1.03 percent and 10.5 percent in 2001,
compared with returns of 1.81 percent and 20.0 percent in
2000. The year-over-year decline in earnings per diluted
share and return on average assets was primarily due to a
decline in capital markets activities, merger and
restructuring-related items and a higher provision for credit
losses which reflected deterioration in economic conditions
and credit quality relative to a year ago. The reduction in
the Company’s return on average common equity also
reflected the impact of recent acquisitions, which were
accounted for using the purchase method. Net income
included after-tax merger and restructuring-related items of
$844.3 million ($1.3 billion on a pre-tax basis) in 2001
compared with $231.3 million ($348.7 million on a pre-tax
basis) in 2000. Merger and restructuring-related items, on a
pre-tax basis, included a $62.2 million gain on the sale of
branches, $847.2 million of noninterest expenses and
$382.2 million of provision for credit losses associated with
the merger of Firstar and USBM. Merger and restructuring-
related items also included $50.7 million of expense for
restructuring operations of U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray, and
$48.5 million related to the acquisition of NOVA
Corporation (“NOVA”) and other recent acquisitions. The
efficiency ratio (the ratio of expenses to revenues) increased
to 57.5 percent in 2001 compared with 51.9 percent in
2000 primarily due to the impact of merger and
restructuring-related items. Refer to page 22 for further
discussion of merger and restructuring-related items.

The Company had operating earnings (net income
excluding merger and restructuring-related items} of

U.S. Bancorp

$2.6 billion in 2001, or $1.32 per diluted share, compared
with $3.1 billion, or $1.62 per diluted share in 2000.
Operating earnings on a “cash basis” (calculated by adding
amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets to
operating earnings) was $1.59 per diluted share in 2001,
compared with $1.82 per diluted share in 2000. Return on
average assets and return on average common equity,
excluding merger-related items, were 1.54 percent and

15.7 percent in 2001, compared with returns of

1.96 percent and 21.6 percent in 2000. Operating earnings
in 2001 reflected total net revenue growth on a taxable-
equivalent basis, excluding merger-related gains, of

6.7 percent, offset by growth in noninterest expenses,
excluding merger and restructuring-related charges, of

5.4 percent. On an operating basis, the efficiency ratio was
49.5 percent in 2001, compared with 48.8 percent in 2000.
The banking efliciency ratio (the ratio of expenses to
revenues without the impact of investment banking and
brokerage activity) before merger and restructuring-related
charges was 45.2 percent in 2001, compared with

43.5 percent in 2000. The increase in the banking efficiency
ratio was primarily due to the impact of recent acquisitions
including NOVA.

Net income and operating earnings for 2001 included a
number of significant items. During 2001, the provision for
credit losses was $2.5 billion, an increase of $1.7 billion
from a year ago. The change was due to an increased level
of nonperforming assets and charge-offs, deterioration in
specific credit portfolios, merger-related portfolio
restructurings and specific actions taken by management to
accelerate the Company’s workout strategy for
nonperforming assets. Results for 2001 also reflect the
impairment of retail leasing residuals due to sluggish
pre-owned car markets, recognition of mortgage servicing
rights (“MSR’”) impairment during the declining rate
environment and asset write-downs of commercial leasing
partnerships and repossessed tractor/trailer property. These
asset impairments were partially offset by gains related to
sales of buildings and investment securities.

The Company analyzes its performance on a net
income basis determined in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States, as well as
on an operating basis before merger-related charges referred
to in this analysis as “operating earnings”. Operating
earnings and related discussions are presented as
supplementary information in this analysis to enhance the
readers’ understanding of, and highlight trends in, the
Company’s core financial results excluding the non-recurring




EZTI¥] Selected Financial Data

Year Ended December 31

(Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Condensed Income Statement
Interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) ................ .. $11,139.5 $12,157.9 $10,723.0 $10,535.9 $9,921.8
Interest expense ...... ... i 46748 6,022.9 4,790.3 4,859.7 4,389.8

Net interest iNCOMe ... .. ... . . s 6,464.7 6,135.0 5,932.7 5,676.2 5,532.0
Securities gains, net . ... ... 329.1 8.1 13.2 29.1 7.3
Noninterest income(a) ........... .o i 4,968.1 4,875.1 4,231.7 3,572.8 27113

Totalnetrevenue ......... ... ... ... . ... i 11,761.9 11,018.2 10,177.6 9,278.1 8,250.6
Noninterest expense(a) ... ..o 5,658.8 5,368.3 5,128.5 4,829.6 4,306.7
Provision for credit losses(a) ......... ... ..ot 2,146.6 828.0 638.5 453.4 619.6

Income before taxes and merger and restructuring-related

OIS . 3,956.5 4,821.9 44106 3,995.1 3,324.3
Taxable-equivalent adjustment ............................. 55.9 85.4 96.3 111.2 1211
INCOME 1AXES ... .t e 1,349.8 1,629.6 1,515.3 1,364.6 1,079.3
Operating €arnings (@) .........oovere i 2,550.8 3,106.9 2,799.0 2,519.3 21239
Merger and restructuring-related items (after-tax) ........... (844.3) (231.3) (417.2) (386.4) (524.8)

Net income in accordance with GAAP. ................ ... $ 1,708.5 $ 2,875.6 $ 2,381.8 $ 21329 $1,599.3
Per Common Share
Earnings per Share . ...........c..voueroear e $ .89 $ 151 $ 125 $ 112 $ .86
Diluted earnings pershare .............. ... ..ol .88 1.50 1.23 1.10 .85
Dividends declared per share(b) .................... ....... 75 65 46 .33 27
Average shares outstanding. ................. .. ... 1,927.9 1,806.0 1,907.8 1,898.8 1,841.0
Average diluted shares outstanding ............ ... ... .. ... 1,939.5 1,918.5 1,930.0 1,930.5 1,872.2
Financial Ratios
Returnon average assets.................... ... ... . 1.03% 1.81% 1.59% 1.49% 1.24%
Returnon average equity ............. .. ... o o i 10.5 20.0 18.0 17.2 147
Net interest margin (taxable-equivalent basis)............... 4.45 4.36 4.44 4.44 472
Efficiency ratio ... ... 57.5 51.9 55.7 58.3 59.9
Financial Ratios Excluding Merger and

Restructuring-Related Items (a)
Return on average assets. .. ........ ... ... 1.54% 1.96% 1.86% 1.76% 1.64%
Return on average equity ............ ... ... 15.7 21.6 21.2 20.3 19.5
Efficiency ratic ........ ... 49.5 48.8 50.5 52.2 52.2
Banking efficiency ratio(c) .......... ... 452 43.5 46.3 48.7 517
Average Balance Sheet
L0aNS . $ 118,177 $118,317 $ 109,638 $ 102,451 $ 95,149
Loans heldforsale......... ... o il 1,911 1,303 1,450 1,264 549
Investment securities ........... ... oo 21,816 17,311 19,271 21,114 19,128
Earning assets ......... ... . 145,165 140,606 133,757 127,738 117,173
ASSEES . 165,944 158,481 150,167 142,887 129,493
Noninterest-bearing deposits . ...................... ... 25,109 23,820 23,556 23,011 20,984
D POSHS . . et 104,956 103,426 99,920 98,840 93,322
Short-term borrowings . ........oiiii i 12,980 12,586 11,707 11,102 11,791
Long-termdebt ... . ... . .. 24,608 22,410 20,248 15,732 9,481
Total shareholders’ equity. ...t 16,201 14,365 13,221 12,383 10,882
Year-end Balance Sheet
L0aNS . $ 114,405 $ 122,365 $ 113,229 $ 106,958 $ 99,029
investment securities ........ .. .. 26,608 17,642 17,449 20,965 20,442
ASSEES L. e 171,390 164,921 154,318 150,714 137,488
DEPOSIES . .o et e 105,219 109,535 103,417 104,346 98,323
Long-termdebt ... ... .. 25,716 21,876 21,027 18,679 13,181
Total shareholders’ equity................ ..o, 16,461 15,168 13,947 12,574 11,402

(a) The Company analyzes its performance on a net income basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, as well as on an operating basis
before merger and restructuring-related items referred to as '‘operating earnings.”” Operating earnings are presented as supplemental information to enhance the readers’
understanding of, and highlight trends in, the Company’s financial results excluding the impact of merger and restructuring-related items of specific business acquisitions and
restructuring activities. Operating earnings should not be viewed as a substitute for net income and earnings per share as determined in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. Merger and restructuring-related items excluded from net income to derive operating earnings may be significant and may not be

comparable to other companies,
(b) Dividends per share have not been restated for the 2001 merger of Firstar and USBM.
(c) Without investment banking and brokerage activity.
effects of discrete business acquisitions and restructuring
activities. Operating earnings should not be viewed as a
substitute for net income and earnings per share as
determined in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States. Merger and
restructuring-related items excluded from net income to
derive operating earnings may be significant and may not be
comparable to other companies.
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Reconciliation of Operating Earnings(a) to Net Income in Accordance with GAAP

Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Operating earnings . ... i i $ 2,550.8 $3,106.9 $2,799.0 $2,519.3 $2,123.9
Merger and restructuring-related items
Gains on the sale of branches .......................... 62.2 —_ — 48.1 —
Integration, conversion and other charges................ (946.4) (348.7) (355.1) (593.8) (633.0)
Securities losses to restructure portfolio ................. — — (177.7) — —
Provision for credit losses(b) .................. . ... ... (382.2) — (7.5) (37.9) (20.3)
Pretax impact . ... (1,266.4) (348.7) (540.3) (583.6) (653.3)
Applicable tax benefit....... ... .o 4221 117.4 123.1 197.2 128.7
Net income in accordance with GAAP ..................... .. $ 1,706.5 $2,875.6 $2,381.8 $2,132.9 $1,599.3

(a) The Company analyzes its performance on a net income basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, as well as on an operating basis
before merger and restructuring-related items referred to as “‘operating earnings.’' Operating earnings are presented as supplemental information to enhance the readers’
understanding of, and hightight trends in, the Company’s financial results excluding the impact of merger and restructuring-related items of specific business acquisitions and
restructuring activities. Operating earnings should not be viewed as a substitute for net income and earnings per share as determined in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. Merger and restructuring-refated items excluded from net income to derive operating earnings may be significant and may not be

comparable to other companies.
(b

=

Provision for credit fosses in 20071 includes losses of $201.3 miilion on the disposition of an unsecured small business credit line portfolio, losses of $76.68 million on the sales of

high loan-to-value home equity and indirect automobile loan portfolios, $30.0 million of charges to align credit policies and risk management practices, and $14.3 million to

restructure a co-branding credit card relationship.

Acquisition and Divestiture Activity In addition to
restating all prior periods to reflect the merger of Firstar
and USBM, operating results for 2001 reflect the following
transactions accounted for as purchases from the date of
completion. On July 24, 2001, the Company acquired
NOVA, the nation’s third largest merchant processing
service provider, in a stock and cash transaction valued at
approximately $2.1 billion. On September 7, 2001, the
Company acquired Pacific Century Bank in a cash
transaction. The acquisition included 20 branches located in
Southern California with approximately $712 million in
deposits and $570 million in loans. On October 13, 2000,
the Company acquired Scripps Financial Corporation of San
Diego, which had 10 branches in San Diego County and
total assets of $650 million. On September 28, 2000, the
Company acquired Lyon Financial Services, Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the privately held Schwan’s Sales
Enterprises Inc. in Marshall, Minnesota. Lyon Financial
specializes in small-ticket lease transactions and had

$1.3 billion in assets. On April 7, 2000, the Company
acquired Oliver-Allen Corporation, Inc., a privately held
information technology equipment leasing company with
total assets of $280 million. On January 14, 2000, the
Company acquired Peninsula Bank of San Diego, which had
11 branches in San Diego County and total assets of

$491 million. In addition to these business combinations,
the Company purchased 41 branches in Tennessee from
First Union National Bank on December 8, 2000,
representing approximately $450 million in assets and

$1.8 billion in deposits.

On September 20, 1999, Firstar and Mercantile
Bancorporation, Inc. (“Mercantile”) merged in a pooling-
of-interests transaction and accordingly all financial
information has been restated to include the historical
information of both companies. Each share of Mercantile
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stock was exchanged for 2.091 shares of Firstar common
stock. Refer to Note 3 and Note 4 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information regarding business combinations.

On January 18, 2002, the Company announced a
definitive agreement to acquire The Leader Mortgage
Company, LLC (“Leader”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
First Defiance Financial Corporation, in a cash transaction.
Leader specializes in acquiring servicing of loans originated
for state and local housing authorities. Leader had
$506 million in assets at December 31, 2001. In 2001, it
had $2.1 billion in mortgage production and an $8.6 billion
servicing portfolio at December 31, 2001. The transaction is
expected to close in the second quarter of 2002.

STATEMENT OF INCOME ANALYSIS

Net Interest Income Net interest income on a taxable-
equivalent basis was $6.5 billion in 2001, compared with
$6.1 billion in 2000 and $5.9 billion in 1999. The

5.4 percent increase in 2001 as compared with 2000 was
due to improving net interest margin and growth in average
earning assets. The net interest margin in 2001 was

4.45 percent, compared with 4.36 percent in 2000. The
improvement in the net interest margin was due to the
funding benefit of the declining rate environment and
improved spreads due to product re-pricing dynamics and
loan conduit activities. This was offset somewhat by the
first quarter 2001 sales of the high loan-to-value (“LTV™)
home equity portfolios and lower yields on the investment
portfolio. Average earning assets for 2001 increased

$4.6 billion (3.2 percent) over 2000. The increase was
primarily driven by increases in the investment portfolio,
core retail loan growth and the impact of acquisitions. This
growth was partially offset by a $2.7 billion decline in
lower margin residential mortgages and a $2.2 billion




EETITE] Analysis of Net Interest Income

2001 2000
(Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999 v 2000 v 1999
Components of net interest income
Income on earning assets ........ . ... il $11,139.5 $12,157.9 $10,723.0 $(1,018.4) $1,434.9
Expenses on interest bearing liabilities................ 4,674.8 6,022.9 4,790.3 (1,348.1) 1,232.6
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) ......... .. $ 6,464.7 $ 6,135.0 $ 59327 $ 3297 $ 2023
Net interest income, as reported .. ........... ... oai.. $ 6,408.8 $ 6,049.6 $ 5,836.4 $ 359.2 $ 2132
Average yields and rates paid (taxable-equivalent basis)
Earning assetsyield. ....................... ... ... 7.67% 8.65% 8.02% (.98)% 83%
Rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities.............. .. 3.92 5.19 437 (1.27) .82
Gross interest margin ................. ... 3.76% 3.46% 3.65% 29% (.19)%
Netinterestmargin............. .o i 4.45% 4.36% 4.44% .09% (.08)%
Average balances
Investment securities . ... ... $ 21,916 $ 17,311 $ 19,271 $ 4,605 $ (1,960)
LoaNS . . e 118,177 118,317 108,638 (140) 8,679
Earningassets............... . .. 145,165 140,606 133,757 4,559 6,849
Interest-bearing liabilities ................ ... ... ... 119,380 116,002 109,719 3,388 6,283
Net free funds(a)......... .. v 25775 24,604 24,038 1,171 566
(a) Represents noninterest-bearing deposits, allowance for credit losses, non-earning assets, other liabilities and equity.
reduction related to transfers of short-term, high credit increase in interest-bearing deposits was primarily due to a
quality, low margin commercial loans to Stellar Funding $4.2 billion increase (48.8 percent) in time deposits greater
Group, Inc. (“loan conduit™). than $100,000 reflecting the rising interest rate environment
Average investment securities were $4.6 billion during 2000. Average net free funds increased $566 million
(26.6 percent) higher in 2001 compared with 2000, in 2000 including an increase in noninterest-bearing deposits
reflecting net purchases of securities. of $264 million (1.1 percent) compared with 1999. The net
Average interest-bearing deposits increased $241 million interest margin declined from 4.44 percent in 1999 to
{.3 percent) from 2000. Growth in average interest 4.36 percent in 2000, as lagging deposit growth in 2000
checking and money market deposits was more than offset relative to total earning assets increased the Company’s
by reductions in the average balances of higher cost time incremental cost of funding. Refer to the Consolidated
certificates of deposit less than $100,000. The decline in Daily Average Balance Sheet and Related Yields and Rates
time certificates of deposit less than $100,000 reflects on pages 86 and 87 for further interest margin detail.

funding decisions toward more favorably priced wholesale . . . ,
. . . . . Provision for Credit Losses The provision for credit
funding sources given the interest rate environment during

2001.

Average net free funds increased $1.2 billion from a

losses is recorded to bring the allowance for credit losses to
a level deemed appropriate by management based on

. . . . . . factors discussed in “Analysis and Determination of
vear ago including an increase in noninterest-bearing

deposits of $1.3 billion (5.4 percent) compared with 2000.
Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis

Allowance for Credit Losses™ on pages 34 through 36.
During 2001, the provision for credit losses was
$2,528.8 million, compared with $828.0 million in 2000 and
$646.0 million in 1999.

Included in the provision for credit losses for 2001 was

increased $202.3 million (3.4 percent) in 2000 compared
with 1999. The increase was primarily due to growth in

earning assets offset somewhat by a declining net interest i .
. . . . a merger and restructuring-related provision of
margin. Average earning assets increased $6.8 billion . ,
. . $382.2 million. The merger and restructuring-related
(5.1 percent) in 2000, primarily due to strong core loan o ) S -
o . . provision consisted of: a $201.3 million provision for losses
growth and acquisitions partially offset by reductions in ) o i
. . . related to the disposition of an unsecured small business
residential mortgages and securities. Average loans for 2000

were up $8.7 billion (7.9 percent) from 1999, reflecting product; a $90.0 million charge to align risk management
) ' T i i -off polict i
growth in commercial loans, retail loans, and acquisitions, practices, align charge-off policies and expedite the

. . . . transition out of a specific segment of the healthcare
offset by reductions in residential mortgage loans. Average . i . .
. . oy industry not meeting the risk appetite of the Company; a
investment securities were $2.0 billion {10.2 percent) lower . S
. . . . $76.6 million provision for losses related to the sales of
in 2000 compared with 1999, reflecting both maturities and . . T )
high LTV home equity loans and the indirect automobile

les of ities. Average interest-bearing deposits
Saes OF SCENIIRIes. Average inte § ceb loan portfolio of USBM; and a $14.3 million charge related

increased $3.2 billion (4.2 percent) from 1999. This
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Net Interest Income — Changes Due to Rate and Volume

2001 v 2000 2000 v 1999
(Dollars in Millions) Volume Yield /Rate Total Volume Yield/Rate Total
Increase (decrease) in
Interest income

Commercial loans.................... $ 9 (% 615.6) (3 614.7) $ 511.1 $457.8 $ 968.9
Commercial real estate............... 3.6 (297.9) (294.3) 249.2 116.0 365.2
Residential mortgages ............... (204.6) (5.1) (209.7) (233.3) 3.0 (230.3)
Retailloans .................... ..., 254.4 (247.1) 7.3 202.0 130.0 332.0

Totalloans....................... 54.3 (1,165.7) (1,111.4) 729.0 706.8 1,435.8
Loans heldforsale .................. 47.7 (2.9) 44.8 (10.5) 8.7 (1.8)
Investment securities................. 3141 (190.5) 123.6 (128.2) 71.9 (56.3)
Money market investments ........... (12.7) (14.6) (27.3) (6.3) 15.3 9.0
Trading securities.................... (.8) 23 1.7 11.3 (1.5) 9.8
Other earning assets................. (22.1) (27.7) (49.8) 18.7 19.7 38.4

Total ... 380.7 (1,399.1) (1,018.4) 614.0 820.9 1,434.9

Interest expense

Interest checking .................... 19.2 (86.0) (66.8) 25 36.9 39.4
Money market accounts .............. 94.7 (383.7) (289.0) 9.0 148.8 157.8
Savings accounts . ............. ... (6.7) (24.8) (31.5) (17.5) (20.4) (37.9)
Time certificates of deposit less than

$100,000. ... (142.9) (74.0) (216.9) (21.9) 157.6 135.7
Time deposits greater than $100,000 . . 9.2 (195.7) (186.5) 2256 128.2 353.8

Total interest-bearing deposits. . ... (26.5) (764.2) (790.7) 197.7 4511 648.8
Short-term borrowings ............... 245 (272.1) (247.6) 43.7 155.6 199.3
Long-termdebt............ ... ... .. 148.1 (495.8) (347.7) 120.3 263.2 383.5
Company obligated mandatorily

redeemable preferred securities ... 44.4 (6.5) 37.9 — 1.0 1.0

Total ........ . 190.5 (1,538.6) (1,348.1) 361.7 870.9 1,232.6
Increase (decrease) in net interest

iNCOME . .......oviiii i $ 190.2 $ 1395 $ 3297 $ 252.3 ($50.0) $ 202.3

This table shows the components of the change in net interest income by volume and rate on a taxable-equivalent basis. The effect of changes in rates on volume changes is allocated
based on the percentage relationship of changes in volume and changes in rate. This table does not take into account the level of noninterest-bearing funding, nor does it fuilly reflect

changes in the mix of assets and liabilities.

to the restructuring of a co-branding credit card
relationship. Refer to Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further information on merger and
restructuring-related items.

The provision for credit losses in 2001, excluding
merger and restructuring-related items, was
$2,146.6 million, an increase of $1,318.6 million over 2000.
The increase was primarily due to a $160.0 million charge
during the first quarter of 2001 in connection with an
accelerated loan workout strategy and a $1,025.0 million
incremental provision recognized in the third quarter of
2001. The third quarter incremental provision for credit
losses was taken after extensive reviews of the Company’s
commercial portfolio in light of declining economic
conditions and company-specific trends. This action
recognized an increasing probability that the economic
slowdown already occurring had accelerated and may be
more prolonged than previously anticipated. Given the
continuing economic stress in various industry sectors,
increasing unemployment and trends in consumer
delinquencies and charge-offs, the Company may experience
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higher levels of nonperforming loans and volatility in net

charge-offs during the next several quarters.

Refer to “Corporate Risk Profile” on pages 29 through

36, for further information on the factors considered by the

Company in assessing the credit quality of the loan

portfolio and establishing the allowance for credit losses.

Noninterest Income Noninterest income in 2001 was
$5.4 billion, compared with $4.9 billion in 2000 and
$4.2 billion in 1999. The increase of $476.2 million

{9.8 percent) in 2001 compared with 2000 included
$62.2 million of merger and restructuring-related gains in

connection with the required sale of 14 branches associated
with the merger of Firstar and USBM. Refer to Note 4 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further

information on merger and restructuring-related items.

Excluding merger and restructuring-related gains,

noninterest income was $5.3 billion in 2001, an increase of
$414.0 million (8.5 percent) from 2000. Credit card fee
revenue increased $12.5 million (1.6 percent) in 2001

compared to revenue growth of $113.6 million




EETIEX Noninterest Income

(Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Credit card f88 FEVENUE . .. .. .o e $ 7743 $ 7618 $ 648.2
Merchant and ATM processing revenUE ... ... ...ttt 428.8 230.3 189.6
Trust and investment management fees. ........... . . . . 894.4 926.2 887.1
Deposit SErvice Charges .. ... .. 660.6 551.1 497.2
Cash management fEeS. .. ... . .. e 347.3 292.4 280.6
Mortgage banking revenue. .. ... ... .. e 234.0 189.9 190.4
Trading account profits and COMMISSIONS .......... .. . .. i i 221.6 258.4 2224
Investment products fees and COMMISSIONS . .. .. ... i e 460.1 466.6 450.8
Investment DAanKING revenUE ... ... ... e e e e 258.2 360.3 246.6
INSUrance ProdUCE TEVENUE . .. ..\ oo e e e e e e e 1454 1453 105.3
Commercial ProdUCt FEVEBNUE . .. .\ ...t ettt e e e 385.9 304.4 2157
Retail product revenue . ... ... . e 18.1 69.1 78.0
Securities gains, Net. . ... . 3291 8.1 13.2
O BT L e 139.4 319.3 219.8

Total operating noninterest iNCOMe ... ... .. . i e 5,297.2 4,883.2 42449
Merger and restructuring-related gains. . ... . . 622 — —

Total NONINtErest INCOME . ... . . e e e $ 5,359.4 $ 48832 $ 42449

(17.5 percent) in 2000 reﬂectiﬂg, slower growth in
corporate, purchasing and retail card transaction volumes
during the year. Corporate card transaction volumes
declined somewhat in late 2001 principally due to slower
economic conditions and declining business travel since the
events of September 11, 2001. Merchant and ATM
processing revenue increased $198.5 million, or

86.2 percent, principally due to the NOVA acquisition.
Deposit service charges, commercial product revenue, cash
management fees, and mortgage banking revenue also
improved in 2001 compared with 2000 by $109.5 million
{19.9 percent), $81.5 million (26.8 percent), $54.9 million
(18.8 percent), and $44.1 million (23.2 percent),
respectively. The increase in deposit service charges was
primarily due to the alignment and re-design of products
and features following the merger of Firstar and USBM.
The increase in commercial product revenue and cash
management fees was primarily driven by the growth in
coré business, loan conduit activities and product
enhancements. Mortgage banking revenue increased in 2001
compared with 2000 due to increased origination and sales
fees and loan servicing revenue, partially offset by a
decrease in gains on the sale of servicing rights. Trust and
investment management fees declined $31.8 million

(3.4 percent) and capital markets-related revenue declined
$145.4 million (13.4 percent) reflecting softness in equity
capital markets since late 2000. Included in noninterest
income for 2001 was $329.1 million of gains on the sale of
investment securities and principal-only residuals compared
with $8.1 million of similar gains in 2000. Other income
declined $179.9 million from a year ago, primarily reflecting
a $125.0 million decline in the level of earnings from equity
investments compared with 2000 and a $40.0 million
impairment of retail leasing residuals in 2001. The decline

in other income for 2001 also reflected a decline in
building-related gains of $42.5 million from 2000.
Noninterest income in 2000 increased $638.3 million
{(15.0 percent) compared with 1999. The increase was
driven by a $165.5 million (18.0 percent) increase in capital
markets-related revenue, credit card fee revenue growth of
$113.6 million (17.5 percent), increased commercial
product revenue of $88.7 million (41.1 percent), increased
service charges on deposit accounts of $53.9 million
(10.8 percent), gains of $55.0 million on the disposal of
the Company’s ownership in office buildings in Portland,
Boise and Minneapolis, merchant and ATM processing
revenue growth of $40.7 million (21.5 percent), due in part
to the acquisition of the Mellon Network Services
processing business, increased insurance product revenue of
$40.0 million (38.0 percent), growth in trust and
investment management revenue of $39.1 million
(4.4 percent), and revenues associated with equity
investments, partially offset by a $20.0 million gain on the
sale of branches in Kansas and lowa completed in 1999.

Noninterest Expense Noninterest expense in 2001 was
$6.6 billion compared with $5.7 billion in both 2000 and
1999. Noninterest expense included merger and
restructuring-related charges of $946.4 million in 2001,
compared with $348.7 million in 2000 and $532.8 million
in 1999. Excluding merger and restructuring-related charges,
noninterest expense on an operating basis was $5.7 billion
in 2001, compared with $5.4 billion in 2000 and

$5.1 billion in 1999. The increase in 2001 noninterest
expense, on an operating basis, of $290.5 million

(5.4 percent) was primarily the result of recent acquisitions,
including NOVA, Scripps Financial Corporation, Pacific
Century Bank, Lyon Financial Services, Inc. and 41 branches
in Tennessee representing an aggregate increase of




eI Y] Noninterest Expense

(Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
SaIAMI S . . i e e $2,347.1 $2,427.1 $2,355.3
Employee Denefits. . ... .. 366.2 399.8 410.1
NEt OCCUDPANCY . . .. o oottt et e et e e e 417.9 396.9 371.8
Furniture and eqUIpMENt .. ... . e 305.5 308.2 307.9
Professional SErVICES . ... .t e 123.8 109.0 95.7
Advertising and marketing . ... e 121.6 122.1 124.1
Travel and entertainment .. ... ... 90.6 107.0 88.4
SO WA ..o 136.1 111.9 72.2
Dat@ PrOCESSING . ... ottt ettt e 80.0 149.7 1337
COMMUNICETION . ... ettt e et et e e e e e s 181.4 138.8 123.4
POSEAGE . . o 179.8 174.5 170.7
P NG . e e 77.9 86.5 90.7
GOOAWIll . . e e 2511 235.0 175.8
Other intangible assets ... ... . ... . . . 278.4 157.3 154.0
[T P 701.4 444.5 454.7
Total operating noninterest expense . ... . . 5,658.8 5,368.3 5,128.5
Merger and restructuring-related charges ......... ... ... . . . i i 946.4 348.7 532.8
Total NONINTEresSt BXPONSE . ...\ttt et e e $6,605.2 $5,717.0 $5,661.3
EffiCIENCY ratio (@) .. .o oot 57.5% 51.9% 55.7%
Efficiency ratio, before merger and restructuring-relateditems ................. ... ... ... 49.5 48.8 50.5
Banking efficiency ratio, before merger and restructuring-related items(b) ................... 452 435 46.3

(a) Computed as noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis and noninterest income excluding securities gains (losses), net

(b) Without investment banking and brokerage activity.

approximately $241.7 million. In addition to the impact of
acquisitions, noninterest expense increased over 2000 due to
recognition of mortgage servicing rights (“MSR”)
impairments of $60.8 million related to increasing mortgage
prepayments during the declining rate environment, and
asset write-downs of $52.6 million related to commercial
leasing partnerships and repossessed tractor/trailer property.
These increases were partially offset by a reduction in
expenses related to capital markets activity of

$108.0 million and cost savings related to merger and
restructuring-related activities.

The increase in 2000 noninterest expenses, on an
operating basis, of $239.8 million (4.7 percent) was
primarily attributed to growth in expenses related to
investment banking and brokerage activity of
$228.6 million, the impact of purchase acquisitions and
divestitures of $175.9 million and planned spending on
service-quality technology and other customer service
initiatives of USBM. These increases were somewhat offset
by cost savings related to the integration of Mercantile.

The efficiency ratio before merger-related charges
increased slightly to 49.5 percent in 2001 compared with
48.8 percent in 2000 and 50.5 petcent in 1999. The banking
efficiency ratio before merger-related charges was
45.2 percent for 2001, compared with 43.5 percent in 2000
and 46.3 percent in 1999. Both the efficiency ratio and the
banking efliciency ratio increased in 2001 primarily due to
the NOVA acquisition. The improved banking efficiency
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ratio in 2000 compared with 1999 reflects the results of
integrating acquired banking businesses.

Merger and Restructuring-Related Items The Company
incurred merger and restructuring-related items in each of
the last three years in conjunction with its acquisitions. In
2001, merger and restructuring-related items included in
pretax earnings were $1,266.4 million, including

$382.2 million in the provision for credit losses, a

$62.2 million gain on the required sale of branches and
$946.4 million of noninterest expense. The total merger and
restructuring-related items consisted of $1,167.2 million
related to the Firstar and USBM merger, $50.7 million of
restructuring expenses for U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray and
$48.5 million related to NOVA and other acquisitions.
With respect to the Firstar and USBM merger, the

$1,167.2 million of merger and restructuring-related items
included $268.2 million for severance and employee-related
costs and $477.6 million of charges to exit business lines
and products, sell credit portfolios or otherwise realign
business practices in the new Company. The Company also
incurred $208.1 million of systems conversion and business
integration costs, $48.7 million for lease cancellation and
other building-related costs, $226.8 million for transaction
costs, funding a charitable foundation to reaffirm a
commitment to its markets and other costs, and a

$62.2 million gain related to the required sale of branches.
Total merger and restructuring-related items associated with
the Firstar and USBM merger are expected to reach




Loan Portfolio Distribution

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
At December 31 (Dollars in Millions) Amount  of Total Amount  of Total Amount  of Total Amount  of Total Amount  of Total
Commercial
Commercial...................... $ 40,472 35.4% | $ 47,041 38.5% | $ 42,021 37.1%|$ 37,777 35.3% | $33,662 34.0%
Lease financing .................. 5,858 5.1 5776 4.7 3,835 3.4 3,291 3.1 2,667 2.7
Total commercial .......... 46,330 40.5 52,817 432 45,856 40.5 41,068 38.4 36,329 36.7
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages ........... 18,765 16.4 19,466 15.9 18,636 16.5 16,602 15.5 15,739 15.9
Construction and development .. .. 6,608 5.8 6,977 57 6,506 57 5,208 4.9 4,059 4.1
Total commercial real estate . . 25,373 22.2 26,443 21.6 25,142 22.2 21,808 20.4 19,798 20.0
Residential mortgages ......... 5,746 5.0 7,753 6.3 11,395 10.1 13,980 13.1 15,892 16.0
Retail
Creditcard ...................... 5,889 5.1 6,012 4.9 5,004 44 4,856 4.5 4,993 5.1
Retail leasing .................... 4,906 4.3 4,153 34 2,123 1.9 1,621 15 1,087 141
Other retail
Home equity and second
mortgage ................. 14,318 12.5 13,600 111 * * * * * *
Revolving credit .............. 2,673 2.3 2,750 2.2 * * * * * *
instaliment . .................. 2,292 2.0 2,186 1.8 * > * * * *
Automobile . ....... ... . ... .. 5,660 5.0 5,609 4.6 * * * * * *
Student ........... ... ... 1,218 1.1 1,042 9 * * * * * *
Total other retail . .... ... 26,161 229 25,187 20.6 23,709 209 23,625 221 20,930 211
Total retail ................ 36,956 32.3 35,352 289 30,836 27.2 30,102 28.1 27,010 27.3
Total loans............. $114,405 100.0% | $122,365 100.0% | $113,229 100.0% | $106,958 100.0% | $99,029 100.0%

*Information not available

$1.4 billion with integration activities substantively being
completed in the third quarter of 2002.

In response to significant changes in the securities
markets during 2001, including increased volatility, changes
in equity valuations and the increasingly competitive
environment for the industry, U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray
restructured it operations. The restructuring is expected to
improve the operating efliciency of the business by
removing excess capacity from its product distribution
network and by implementing more effective business
processes. These restructuring activities were completed in
2001.

In 2000, merger and restructuring-related items
included noninterest expenses consisting of $227.0 million
related to the merger of Firstar and Mercantile,
$52.6 million related to the merger of Firstar and Star Banc
and $69.1 million primarily related to other acquisitions of
USBM. Included in merger and restructuring-related items
were $59.4 for severance and employee-related costs,
$193.5 million for systems conversions, $47.3 million for
lease cancellations and other building-related costs and
$48.5 million of other business integration costs.

In 1999, merger and restructuring-related items
included noninterest expenses consisting of $417.0 million
related to the merger of Firstar and Mercantile,
$95.9 million related to the merger of Firstar and Star Banc

and $27.4 million primarily related to other acquisitions by
USBM. Included in merger and restructuring-related items
were $149.6 for severance and employee-related costs,
$132.5 million for systems conversions, $177.7 million
related to the restructuring of Mercantile’s securities
portfolio, $6.2 million for lease cancellations and other
building-related costs and $66.8 million to fund charitable
foundations and other business integration costs.

Refer to Note 3 and Note 4 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information
on these acquired businesses and merger and restructuring-
related items.

Income Tax Expense The provision for income taxes was
$927.7 million in 2001, compared with $1,512.2 million in
2000 and $1,392.2 million in 1999. The Company’s effective
tax rate was 35.2 percent in 2001, compared with
34.5 percent in 2000 and 36.9 percent in 1999. The
effective tax rate increased in 2001 compared with 2000
primarily due to a decline in tax-exempt interest related to
sales of investment securities, the impact of unitary state tax
apportionment factors on the Company, non-deductible
merger-related costs and the acquisition of NOVA.

At December 31, 2001, the Company’s net deferred tax
liability was $573.2 million, compared with $512.8 million
at December 31, 2000. For further information on income
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taxes, refer to Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS

Average earning assets were $145.2 billion in 2001
compared with $140.6 billion in 2000. The increase of
$4.6 billion (3.2 percent) was primarily driven by increases
in the investment portfolio, core retail loan growth, and the
impact of acquisitions. This growth was partially offset by a
$2.7 billion decline in lower margin residential mortgages
and a $2.2 billion reduction related to transfers of short-
term, high credit quality, low margin commercial loans to
the loan conduit. The increase was funded with an increase
in average interest-bearing liabilities of $3.4 billion
consisting principally of more favorably priced long-term
wholesale funds and an increase in net free funds of
$1.2 billion including an increase in average noninterest-
bearing deposits of $1.3 billion.

For average balance information, refer to Consolidated
Daily Average Balance Sheet and Related Yields and Rates
on pages 86 and 87.

Loans The Company’s loan portfolio decreased $8.0 billion
to $114.4 billion at December 31, 2001, from $122.4 billion
at December 31, 2000. The change in loans outstanding was
impacted by several management actions, including the sale
of high LTV home equity and indirect automobile
portfolios, the transfer of a discontinued unsecured small
business product to loans held for sale, branch divestitures
required by the merger of Firstar and USBM, and transfers
of short-term, high credit quality, low margin commercial
loans to the loan conduit. In addition, the Company
continued its business strategy to reduce the lower margin
residential mortgage portfolio. Average total loans
decreased less than one percent to $118.2 billion in 2001
compared with $118.3 billion in 2000. Excluding residential
mortgages, average loans for 2001 were $2.6 billion

(2.4 percent) higher than 2000. Average loans on a core
basis (excluding loan conduit activities, transfer of loans to
held for sale and residential mortgages) increased by $4.6
billion (4.3 percent) relative to the prior year.

Selected Loan Maturity Distribution

The Company’s loan portfolio inherently has credit
risk, which may ultimately result in loan charge-offs. The
Company manages this risk through stringent, centralized
credit policies and review procedures, as well as
diversification along geographic and customer lines. Refer to
“Corporate Risk Profile” on pages 29 through 36, for a
more detailed discussion of the management of credit risk
including the allowance for credit losses.

Commercial Commercial loans, including lease financing,
totaled $46.3 billion at December 31, 2001, down

$6.5 billion (12.3 percent) from year-end 2000. The
decline in commercial loans reflected tighter credit
underwriting throughout 2001, slower economic growth,
the Company’s transfer of approximately $3.7 billion of
short-term, high credit quality, low margin commercial
loans into the loan conduit and the transfer of $680 million
in unsecured small business product to loans held for sale.
This was offset somewhat by core growth in equipment
lease financing and bank acquisitions. Average commercial
loans in 2001 were flat compared with 2000. On a core
basis (without loan conduit activittes and transfers to loans
held for sale), average commercial loans increased by 2.1
percent from a year ago.

The Company offers a broad array of traditional
commercial lending products and specialized products such
as asset-based lending, lease financing, agricultural credit
and correspondent banking. The Company monitors and
manages the portfolio diversification by industry, customer
and geography. The commercial portfolio reflects the
Company’s focus of serving small business customers,
middle market and larger corporate businesses throughout
its 24 state banking region and national customers within
certain niche industry groups.

Table 9 provides a summary of the significant industry
groups and geographic locations of commercial loans
outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000. The
commercial loan portfolio is diversified among various
industries with somewhat higher concentrations in
consumer products and services, capital goods (including
manufacturing and commercial construction-related

Over One
One Year Through Over Five

At December 31, 2001 (Dollars in Millions) or Less Five Years Years Total
CoOmMmMErCial . . ..o e $25,761 $17,896 $ 2,673 $ 46,330
Commerciat real estate .......... ... .. .. . ... 7,256 12,238 5,879 25,373
Residential mortgages ... 495 954 4,297 5,746
Retail . e 13,452 13,417 10,087 36,956
Total loans .. ... $46,964 $44,505 $22,936 $114,405

Total of loans due after one year with
Predetermined interestrates .......... ... . ... .. $ 37,420
Floating interestrates ........... ... ... $ 30,021
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Commercial Loan Exposure by Industry Group and Geography

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000

Industry Group (Dollars in Millions) Loans Percent ’ Loans Percent
Consumer products and SErviCes ...t $ 8,591 18.5% $ 9,791 18.4%
Capital GQOOAS ... o e 6,270 13.5 6,984 13.2
Consumer Staples . ... ... 4,638 10.0 5,427 10.3
Financials ... ... 4,291 9.3 5,438 10.3
AGHCURUIE ... 3,340 7.2 4,177 7.9
TraNS POt ON . . e 2,544 55 2,775 5.3
Paper and forestry products, mining and basic materials ................ 1,931 4.2 2,249 43
Private investors . .. ... 1,803 3.9 2,405 4.6
HealhCare ... e 1,424 3.1 1,631 3.1
Mortgage banking . .......... i 1,400 3.0 961 1.8
Technology. .. ..o e 1,094 24 1,223 23
EnergY . 405 .9 742 14
Other . 8,599 185 9,014 171
Tt $46,330 100.0% $52,817 100.0%
Geography
California .. . $ 3,969 8.6% $ 3,174 6.0%
Colorado . ... o 2,008 4.3 2,661 5.0
OIS o 2,339 5.0 3,336 6.3
MINNESOa . . ... e 6,511 141 8,724 16.5
MiSSOU .o e 2,104 4.5 2,163 41
OO L 2,896 6.3 2,269 4.3
OPRGON oo 2,014 4.3 2,769 52
Washington ... .. 3,882 8.4 4,860 9.2
WSO ONSIN L . 3,115 6.7 3,153 6.0
lowa, Kansas, Nebraska, North Dakota, South Dakota .................. 5,059 10.9 4,547 8.6
Arkansas, Indiana, Kentucky, Tennessee .............................. 1,897 41 2,230 42
Ildaho, Montana, Wyoming ............... 1,014 2.2 1,316 25
Arizona, Nevada, Utah ... ... .. .. . . 1,057 2.3 1,460 2.8
Total bankingregion.......... ... .. 37,865 81.7 42,662 80.8
Outside the Company’s banking region ........... ... ... . ... ... ... 8,465 18.3 10,155 19.2
TOtal . $46,330 100.0% $52,817 100.0%

businesses), and consumer staples industries. Additionally,
the commercial portfolio is diversified across the Company’s
geographical markets with 81.7 percent of total commercial
loans within the 24 state banking region. Credit
relationships outside of the Company’s banking region are
typically niche businesses including the mortgage banking
and the leasing businesses. The mortgage banking sector
represented approximately 3.0 percent of commercial loans
at December 31, 2001, compared with 1.8 percent at
December 31, 2000. Loans to mortgage banking customers
are primarily warehouse lines which are collateralized with
the underlying mortgages. The Company regularly monitors
its mortgage collateral position to manage its risk exposure.
The Company provides financing to enable customers
to grow their businesses through acquisitions of existing
businesses, buyouts or other recapitalizations. Such
leveraged financings approximated $3.9 billion in loans
outstanding at December 31, 2001, compared with
approximately $4.9 billion outstanding at December 31,
2000. The decline was primarily due to tighter credit
underwriting, payoffs and the Company’s aggressive

workout strategies during 2001. During a business cycle
with slower economic growth, businesses with leveraged
capital structures may experience insufficient cash flows to
service their debt. The Company manages its exposure to
leveraged financings by maintaining strong underwriting
standards, portfolio diversification and effectively managing
the relationship with the customer either directly or
through reputable financial intermediaries. At inception of
the credit relationship, the Company’s underwriting
standards require the businesses to have acceptable capital
levels and demonstrated sufficient cash flows to support
debt service of the loans. The Company’s portfolio of
leveraged financings is included in Table 9 and is diversified
among industry groups similar to the total commercial loan
portfolio.

Commercial Real Estate The Company’s portfolio of
commercial real estate mortgages and construction loans
declined to $25.4 billion at December 31, 2001, compared
with $26.4 billion at December 31, 2000. Commercial
mortgages outstanding decreased to $18.8 billion at
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December 31, 2001, compared with $19.5 billion at
December 31, 2000. Real estate construction and
development loans at December 31, 2001, totaled

$6.6 billion compared with $7.0 billion at year-end 2000.
Average commercial real estate loans were $26.1 billion in
2001; essentially flat compared with a year ago.

Table 10 provides a summary of commercial real estate
exposures by property type and geographic location. The
Company maintains the real estate construction designation
until the project is producing sufficient cash flow to service
traditional mortgage financing, at which time, if retained,
the loan is transferred to the commercial mortgage
portfolio. Approximately $601 million of construction loans
were transferred to the commercial mortgage portfolio in
2001.

At year-end 2001, real estate secured $207 million of
tax-exempt industrial development loans. The Company’s
commercial real estate mortgages and construction loans
had unfunded commitments of $6.0 billion at December 31,
2001.

The Company also finances the operations of real
estate developers and other entities with operations related

to real estate. These loans are not secured directly by real
estate and are subject to terms and conditions similar to
commercial loans. These loans were included in the
commercial loan category and totaled $1.4 billion at
December 31, 2001.

Residential Mortgages Residential mortgages, held in the
loan portfolio, decreased to $5.7 billion at December 31,
2001, from $7.8 billion at December 31, 2000. The decline
reflected management’s decision to reduce these lower
yielding loans and the related adverse prepayment risk by
selling most single-family residential real estate loan
originations into the secondary market.

Retail Total retail loans outstanding, which includes credit
card, retail leasing, home equity, and other retail loans,
increased $1.6 billion (4.5 percent) to $37.0 billion at
December 31, 2001, from $35.4 billion at December 31,
2000. This increase was primarily related to growth in retail
leases of $753 million, and home equity lines and loans of
$718 million. This growth was tempered somewhat by

Commercial Real Estate Exposure by Property Type and Geography

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000

Property Type (Doilars in Millions) Loans Percent Loans Percent
Business owner ocoupied . ... ... e $ 5,159 20.3% $ 6,245 23.6%
Multi-family . ..o 2,842 11.2 3,908 14.8
Commercial property
Industrial. . ... o 1,995 7.9 1,923 7.3
O . e 2,948 11.6 2,761 10.4
Retail . .o 2,704 10.7 2,537 9.6
10 { 3= P 1,949 7.7 2,755 104
Homebuilders . ... i 1,417 5.6 1,521 5.8
Hotel/motel ..o e 1,985 7.8 1,916 7.2
Healthcare facilities ........... .. e 1,183 47 1,084 4.1
OB . 3,191 125 1,793 6.8
Total $25,373 100.0% $26,443 100.0%
Geography
California ..o e e $ 3,399 13.4% $ 3,255 12.3%
Colorado . ... oo 840 3.3 855 3.2
BlMOIS .. e s 1,581 6.2 836 3.2
MINNESOtA . . .. e 1,401 5.5 1,088 41
MISSOUMT ..o 2,439 9.6 2,842 10.7
D . e e 2,274 9.0 2,425 9.2
OrBgON ottt 1,427 5.6 1,638 8.2
Washinglon ... e 2,671 10.5 2,937 111
WiSCONSIN . L 2,128 8.4 2,113 8.0
lowa, Kansas, Nebraska, North Dakota, South Dakota ............... ... 2,016 8.0 2,982 11.3
Arkansas, Indiana, Kentucky, Tennessee ................ . ..c.cvuuie.. 2,055 8.1 1,798 6.8
Idaho, Montana, Wyoming ............... . i 690 27 573 22
Arizona, Nevada, Utah . ... ... ... .. .. e 1,182 4.7 1,264 4.8
Total banking region . ... ... i 24,103 95.0 24,606 93.1
Outside the Company's banking region ................... ... oot 1,270 5.0 1,837 6.9
Tt o $25,373 100.0% $26,443 100.0%
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portfolio sales of $1.3 billion related to the high LTV
home equity portfolio and indirect automobile loans
completed in the first quarter of 2001. Average retail loans
increased $2.5 billion {7.7 percent) to $35.2 billion in
2001. On a core basis, average retail loans increased

12.2 percent from a year ago with growth in most retail
loan categories. Of the total retail loans and residential
mortgages outstanding, approximately 93 percent are to
customers located in the Company’s banking region.

Loans Held for Sale At December 31, 2001, loans held for
sale (“LHFS”), which consisted primarily of residential
mortgage loans to be sold in the secondary markets, were
$2.8 billion compared with $764 million at December 31,
2000. The increase reflected the surge in residential
mortgage production volume in 2001 due to declining

EETICEE]N Investment Securities

Available-for-Sale

interest rates. Residential mortgage production increased to

$15.6 billion in 2001 compared with $6.7 billion in 2000.

Securities The Company uses its investment securities
portfolio for several purposes. It serves as a vehicle to
manage interest rate and prepayment risk, generates interest
and dividend income from the investment of excess funds
depending on loan demand, provides liquidity to meet
liquidity requirements and is used as collateral for public
deposits and wholesale funding sources.

At December 31, 2001, investment securities of
$26.6 billion consisted of securities available-for-sale
($26.3 billion) and held-to-maturity ($.3 billion),
compared with total investment securities of $17.6 billion at
December 31, 2000. During the year, management realigned
the portfolio to hedge against interest rate changes and the

Held-to-Maturity

Weighted Weighted
Average Weighted Average Weighted
Amortized Fair  Maturity in Average Amortized Fair  Maturity in Average
December 31, 2001 (Dollars in Millions) Cost Value Years Yield Cost Value Years Yield
U.S. Treasuries and agencies
Maturing in one year or less........... $ 105 $ 108 .37 4.29% 3 — $ — — —%
Maturing after one year through
fiveyears............ ... oo 290 298 2.35 4.74 —_ — — —
Maturing after five years through
TN Years ... 44 45 5.83 4.86 — - — —
Maturing after ten years............... — — —_ — — - — —_
Total............ ... ... $ 439 3 449 2.22 4.64 $ — $ — — —
Mortgage and asset-backed securities
Maturing in one year orless........... $ 40 $ 40 81 5.59 $ — $ — — —
Maturing after one year through
fiveyears.. ........ ... ... 13,626 13,704 3.90 5.91 28 28 4.05 7.67
Maturing after five years through
tenyears ... ... 8,786 8,718 5.84 5.44 — — — —
Maturing after ten years............... 1,576 1,566 14.57 3.37 — — — —
Total........... ... ... $24,028 $24,028 530 557 $ 28 $ 28 4.05 7.67
Obligations of states and political subdivisions
Maturing in one year or less........... $ 185 $ 187 46 7.26 $ 83 $ 84 .54 4.30
Maturing after one year through
fiveyears................. ... 384 393 2.79 7.33 67 69 3.1 6.31
Maturing after five years through
tenyears ... e 228 231 7.00 7.01 64 67 7.74 6.58
Maturing after tenyears............... 80 80 16.05 8.68 57 58 15.04 6.87
Total......... .. ... $ 877 $ 891 4.60 7.35 $271 $278 591 5.87
Other debt securities
Maturing in one year orless........... $ 137 $ 138 .53 2.84 $ — $ — — —
Maturing after one year through
fiveyears......... ... 69 70 1.93 6.11 — — — —
Maturing after five years through
tenyears ......... .o 7 6 6.46 8.03 — — — —_
Maturing after tenyears............... 262 235 25.35 3.03 — — — —
Total ........... ... $ 475 $ 449 14.51 3.49 $ — $ — — —
Other investments. . ...................... $ 475 $ 492 — — $ — $ — — -
Total investment securities................ $26,294 $26,309 5.40 5.58% $298 $306 5.74 6.04%

Note: Information related to asset-backed securities included above is presented based upon weighted average maturities anticipating future prepayments. Average yields are
presented on a fully-taxable equivalent basis. Yields on available-for-sale securities are computed based on histarical cost balances,

2001 2000
Amortized Percent Amortized Percent
At December 31 (Dollars in Millions} Cost of Total Cost of Total
U.S. Treasuries and @genCiBS . ... ... ... et e $ 439 1.7% $ 1,600 9.1%
Asset-backed securities
Collateralized mortgage obligations .......... ... ... ... 15,178 57.1 6,264 35.8
Mortgage-backed SECUITIES .. ... .. ..t e 8,878 334 5,572 31.9
Total asset-backed securities . ... . . . e 24,058 90.5 11,836 67.7
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ........ ... ... ... .. o i 1,148 43 2,586 148
Other securities and INVEStMENTS . . . ... ... i e 950 3.5 1,472 8.4
Total investment SeCUrties ... .. ... . i i e e $26,593 100.0% $17,494 100.0%
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EZTICXE Deposits

The composition of deposits was as follows:

December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Noninterest-bearing deposits ............................ $ 31,212 $ 26,633 $ 26,350 $ 27,479 $ 24,062
Interest-bearing deposits
Savings accounts. ... oo 4,637 4,516 5,445 6,352 6,414
Interest checking . ......... ... i 15,251 13,982 13,141 13,385 12,212
Money market accounts.............. ... ... 24,835 23,899 22,751 22,086 18,672
Subtotal ... 44,723 42,397 41,337 41,823 37,298
Time certificates of deposit less than $100,000............ 20,724 25,780 25,394 27,935 29,548
Time deposits greater than $100,000
DOMESHC ..o 7,286 11,221 9,348 6,261 6,622
Foreign ... 1,274 3,504 988 848 793
Total deposits. ........... i $105,219 $109,535 $103,417 $104,346 $ 98,323
Percent of total deposits 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Noninterest-bearing deposits .................... ... .. ... 29.7% 24.3% 25.5% 26.3% 24.5%
Interest-bearing deposits
Savings accounts.............. . i 4.4 4.1 53 6.1 6.5
Interest checking ......... ... ... ...l 145 12.8 12.7 12.8 124
Money market accounts. ... ... 23.6 21.8 22.0 21.2 19.0
CSubtotal ... 425 38.7 40.0 401 37.9
Time certificates of deposit less than $100,000......... ... 19.7 23.5 245 26.8 30.1
Time deposits greater than $100,000
Domestic .. ... 6.9 10.3 9.0 6.0 6.7
Foreign......... ..o 1.2 3.2 1.0 8 8
Total deposits..............oi i 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
The maturity of time deposits greater than $100,000 was as follows:
December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001
TrEE MOMtNS OF IS8 .t e e e e e e s $4,060
Over three months through Six MONINS ... L. e e e e e e 1,903
Over six months through twelve MONTNS .. ... e e e e e e 1,200
OVEr tWeIVE MOMINS . . 1,397
L= S $8,560

impact of prepayments in the mortgage servicing rights
portfolio. The Company purchased $32.3 billion and sold
$19.2 billion of investment securities during the realignment
process and generated $329.1 million in securities gains in
the declining interest rate environment.

The weighted-average yield of the available-for-sale
portfolio was 5.58 percent at December 31, 2001, compared
with 7.23 percent at December 31, 2000. The average
maturity of the available-for-sale portfolio dropped to
5.4 years at December 31, 2001, down from 9.5 years at
December 31, 2000. The relative mix of the type of
investment securities maintained in the portfolio is provided
in Table 11. The change in investment portfolio mix
reflected sales of tax-exempt municipal securities which
were replaced by collateralized mortgage obligations. At
December 31, 2001, the investment portfolio included a
~ $15 million net unrealized gain, compared with a net
unrealized gain of $148 million at December 31, 2000.
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Deposits Total deposits were $105.2 billion at
December 31, 2001, down $4.3 billion (3.9 percent) from
$109.5 billion at year-end 2000. The decline since
December 31, 2000, was primarily due to the required sale
of 14 branches related to the merger of Firstar and USBM
as well as management’s funding decisions to reduce higher
cost time deposits greater than $100,000.
Noninterest-bearing deposits were $31.2 billion at
December 31, 2001, compared with $26.6 billion at
December 31, 2000. Average noninterest-bearing deposits
increased to $25.1 billion in 2001 compared with
$23.8 billion in 2000. The increase in noninterest-bearing
deposits was primarily attributable to business demand
accounts that maintain compensating balances with the
Company and to bank acquisitions. Core interest-bearing
deposits, including savings accounts, interest checking and
money market accounts, increased $2.3 billion
(5.5 percent) from a year ago. Average core interest-
bearing deposits increased $2.6 billion (6.4 percent) during




2001. The downturn in equity capital markets in 2001 and
the current interest rate environment have prompted many
customers to increase their liquidity in accessible deposits.
Time certificates of deposit less than $100,000 declined
$5.1 billion (19.6 percent) during the year. Large
denomination deposits, both domestic and foreign,
decreased $6.2 billion (41.9 percent). These deposits are
largely viewed as purchased funds and are managed to
levels deemed appropriate given alternative funding sources.
Average time certificates of deposit less than $100,000
declined $2.5 billion (9.8 percent) and average large
denomination deposits were essentially flat compared with
2000. The decline in average time certificates of deposit less
than $100,000 reflected the net impact of bank acquisitions
and branch divestitures and management’s pricing decisions
to change the mix of funding toward lower rate wholesale
funding sources.

Table 12 provides a summary of total deposits by type
of deposit.

Borrowings The Company utilizes both short-term and
long-term borrowings to fund growth of earning assets in
excess of deposit growth. Short-term borrowings, which
include federal funds purchased, securities sold under
agreements to repurchase and other short-term borrowings,
were $14.7 billion at December 31, 2001, up $2.8 billion
(24.0 percent) from $11.8 billion at year-end 2000. Short-
term funding is managed to levels deemed appropriate given
alternative funding sources.

Long-term debt was $25.7 billion at December 31,
2001, up from $21.9 billion at December 31, 2000. The
increase in long-term funding reflects favorable funding
costs during the declining rate environment relative to rate
reductions for shorter-term borrowings or large
denomination deposits. During 2001, the Company issued
$1.1 billion of senior contingent convertible debt as well as
$1.5 billion of “Company-obligated Mandatorily
Redeemable Preferred Securities of Subsidiary Trusts
Holding Solely the Junior Subordinated Debentures of the
Parent Company” commonly referred to as “Trust Preferred
Securities”. The Company’s subsidiary U.S. Bank National
Association issued $1.5 billion of fixed-rate subordinated
notes. In addition, the Company’s bank subsidiaries
obrtained $5.3 biilion of long-term Federal Home Loan
Bank advances in 2001. Refer to “Liquidity Risk
Management” on pages 38 through 40 for discussion of
liquidity management of the Company.

CORPORATE RISK PROFILE

Overview Managing risks is an essential part of successfully
operating a financial services company. The most prominent
risk exposures are credit, interest rate, market and liquidity.
The Company also has exposure related to changes in

residual valuations and ongoing operational activities. Credit
risk is the risk of not collecting interest and/or the
principal balance of a loan or investment when it is due.
Interest rate risk is the potential reduction of net interest
income as a result of changes in interest rates. Rate
movements can affect the repricing of assets and liabilities
differently, as well as their market value. Market risk arises
from fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
and equity prices that may result in changes in the values of
financial instruments, such as trading account and available-
for-sale securities that are accounted for on a mark-to-
market basis. Liquidity risk is the possible inability to fund
obligations to depositors, investors and borrowers. Residual
risk is the potential reduction in the “end-of-term” value of
leased assets or the residual cash flows related to asset
securitization and other off-balance sheet structures.
Operational risk represents the possibility that transactions
are processed erroneously and that material errors are not
detected by the systems of internal accounting controls.

Credit Risk Management The Company’s strategy for
credit risk management includes stringent, centralized credit
policies and uniform underwriting criteria for all loans,
including specialized lending categories such as mortgage
banking, energy, commercial real estate and real estate
construction, leveraged financing and consumer credit. The
strategy also emphasizes diversification on a geographic,
industry and customer level, regular credit examinations,
and quarterly management reviews of large loans and loans
experiencing deterioration of credit quality. The Company
strives to identify potential problem loans early, take any
necessary charge-offs promptly, and maintain adequate
reserve levels. Commercial banking operations rely on a
strong credit culture that combines prudent credit policies
and individual lender accountability. In addition, the
commercial lenders generally focus on middle market
companies within their regions or niche national markets.
The Company utilizes a credit risk rating system in order to
measure the credit quality of individual commercial loan
transactions and regularly forecasts potential changes in risk
ratings and nonperforming status. The risk rating system is
intended to identify and measure the credit quality of
lending relationships. In the Company’s retail banking
operations, standard credit scoring systems are used to
assess consumer credit risks and to price consumer products
accordingly. The Company also engages in non-lending
activities that may give rise to credit risk, including interest
rate swap contracts for customers or balance sheet hedging
purposes, foreign exchange transactions, and the processing
of credit card transactions for merchants. These activities
are subject to the similar credit review, analysis and
approval processes as those applied to commercial loans.
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In evaluating its credit risk, the Company considers
changes, if any, in underwriting activities, the loan portfolio
composition {including product mix and geographic,
industry or customer-specific concentrations), trends in loan
performance, and macroeconomic factors. Generally, the
domestic economy has experienced slower growth since late
2000. Accordingly, the Company began to re-evaluate
underwriting activities to tighten credit availability to certain
types of lending, industries and customers. Additionally, in
connection with the merger of Firstar and USBM, the
Company has continued to integrate underwriting standards
throughout the organization. Core loan growth for the
Company was 4.3 percent in 2001 with the majority of this
growth in retail lending.

During 2001, corporate earnings growth rates continued
to weaken and credit quality indicators among certain
industry sectors have continued to deteriorate. Large
corporate and middle market commercial businesses
announced or continued to implement restructuring
activities in an effort to improve operating margins. The
stagnant economic growth is evidenced by the Federal
Reserve Board’s (“FRB”) recent actions during late 2000
and 2001 to stimulate economic growth through a series of
interest rate reductions. In response to declining economic
conditions, company-specific portfolio trends, and the
Firstar/USBM merger, the Company undertook an extensive
review of its commercial and consumer loan portfolios in
early 2001. As a result of this review, the Company initiated
several actions during the first six months of 2001 including
aligning the risk management practices and charge-off
policies of the companies and restructuring and disposing of
certain portfolios that did not align with the credit risk
profile of the combined company. Credit portfolio
restructuring activities included a specific segment of the
Company’s healthcare portfolio, selling certain consumer
loan portfolios of USBM, renegotiating a credit card co-
branding relationship and discontinuing an unsecured small
business product that did nort align with the product
offerings of the combined company. The Company also
implemented accelerated loan workout strategies for certain
commercial credits. By the end of the second quarter of
2001, economic stimulus by the FRB as well as
management’s actions appeared to have reduced the rate of
credit quality deterioration. However, world events during
the third quarter of 2001 had a profound impact on
consumer confidence and related spending, governmental
priorities and business activities. As a result of these events,
the Company expected the economic slowdown to
accelerate or be more prolonged than originally estimated
by management. Since September 11, 2001, the FRB has
reduced the discount rate four times in an effort to stabilize
the financial markets and economic growth. Accordingly,
the Company conducted an additional review of its credit
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portfolios and recognized the need to address the impact
that these events are expected to have on its credit
portfolios. In response to this evaluation, the Company
increased the provision for credit losses approximately
$1,025.0 million in the third quarter of 2001 beyond
expected levels.

Credit Diversification Tables 7, 9 and 10 provide
information with respect to the overall diversification of the
credit portfolio and changes in mix during 2001. Certain
industry segments, including transportation, manufacturing,
and technology sectors have experienced economic stress in
2001. At December 31, 2001, the transportation sector
represented 5.5 percent of the total commercial loan
portfolio. It has been impacted by reduced airline travel,
slower economic activity and higher fuel costs that
adversely impacted trucking businesses. At year-end 2001,
the Company’s transportation portfolio consisted of airline
and airfreight businesses (28.8 percent of the sector),
trucking businesses (53.2 percent) and railroad and
shipping. Capital goods represented 13.5 percent of the
total commercial portfolio at December 31, 2001. Included
in this sector were approximately 29.2 percent of loans to
diversified manufacturing businesses while engineering and
construction equipment and machinery businesses were
30.7 percent and 22.8 percent, respectively, of the capital
goods portfolio. Manufacturing production levels and
inventory reductions caused some deterioration in these
portfolios during late 2000 and 2001. During 2001, the
technology sector was adversely impacted by lower capital
investments by businesses over the past twelve to eighteen
months. At December 31, 2001, the technology industry
represented only 2.4 percent of the commercial loan
portfolio.

Since mid-2000, the agriculture and paper and forestry
products sectors have been stressed. However, these sectors
have improved relative to a year ago. At December 31,
2001, the Company’s agricultural portfolio was diversified
with 36.9 percent of agricultural loans to livestock
producers, 27.3 percent to crop producers, 20.3 percent to
food processors and 15.5 percent to wholesalers of
agricultural products. Volatility in crop prices continues to
adversely affect the cash flows of crop producers. Food
processors and wholesalers have been less negatively
affected by commodity pricing and a rebound in livestock
prices in 2001 has improved the credit exposure within this
sector. At December 31, 2001, loans to paper and forestry
products businesses represented 2.2 percent of the
commercial loan portfolio. The industry continues to be
adversely impacted by foreign supplies and over-capacity
within the industry; however, workout strategies continue
to reduce the credit exposure to this industry.




Analysis of Net Charge-Offs Net charge-offs increased
$721.1 million to $1,546.5 million in 2001, compared with
$825.4 million in 2000 and $672.6 million in 1999. The
ratio of tortal net charge-offs to average loans was
1.31 percent in 2001, compared with .70 percent in 2000
and .61 percent in 1999. The increase in 2001 net charge-
offs was due to deterioration in economic conditions
affecting the commercial loan portfolio, actions taken by
the Company during 2001, and an increase in credit card
net charge-offs. Also included in 2001 net charge-offs were
$90.0 million of write-offs to conform risk management
practices, align charge-off policies and expedite the
transition out of a specific segment of the healthcare
portfolio not meeting the risk profile of the Company.
Commercial and commercial real estate loan net
charge-offs for 2001 were $884.6 million, compared with
$289.2 million in 2000 and $179.3 million in 1999.
Approximately $313.2 million of the increase in charge-offs
reflected several factors including: a large cattle fraud,
recent collateral deterioration specific to transportation
equipment caused by the impact of higher fuel prices and

EETITEE] Net Charge-offs as a Percentage of Average Loans Outstanding

the economy, further deterioration in the manufacturing,
communications and technology sectors and specific
management decisions to accelerate its workout strategy for
certain borrowers. Commercial and commercial real estate
net charge-offs for 2001 also included $255.0 million in
merger and restructuring-related charge-offs and charge-offs
associated with the accelerated loan workout strategy
announced in the first quarter of 2001. The increase in
commercial loan net charge-offs in 2000 included higher
losses on a growing portfolio of small business products,
growth in the corporate card portfolio, credit losses related
to acquired leasing businesses and lower levels of recoveries
compared with 1999.

Retail loan net charge-offs in 2001 were $649.3 million,
compared with $523.8 million in 2000 and $478.5 million
in 1999. The ratio of retail loan net charge-offs to average
loans in 2001 was 1.85 percent, up from 1.60 percent in
2000 and 1.57 percent in 1999. The increase in retail loan
net charge-offs in 2001 was primarily due to higher
bankruptcies and consumer delinquencies reflecting the

continuing downturn in economic conditions.

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Year Ended December 31
Commercial
Commercial ... .. 1.62% .56% A1% *% *%
Lease financing ............ 1.95 46 24 * *
Total commercial ............. . i i 1.66 .55 .40 31 .50
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages . ... 21 .03 .02 * *
Construction and development ............................ A7 11 .03 * *
Total commercial real estate .. ......................... .20 .05 .02 (.04) (.05)
Residential mortgages ....................... . ... ... 18 13 2 .08 .06
Retail
Creditcard ... i e 4.80 4.18 4.00 4.02 4.57
Retail leasing ... ‘ .65 41 .28 * *
Otherretail ....... ... oo 1.40 1.23 1.19 * *
Total retail ... ... 1.85 1.60 1.57 1.51 1.65
Totalloans....... ... 1.31% 70% B1% 53% .83%

*Information not available

Analysis of Nonperforming Assets Nonperforming assets
include nonaccrual loans, restructured loans, other real
estate and other nonperforming assets owned by the
Company. [nterest payments are typically applied against the
principal balance and not recorded as income.

At December 31, 2001, nonperforming assets totaled
$1,120.0 million, compared with $867.0 million at year-end
2000 and $588.5 million at year-end 1999. The
$253.0 million increase in nonperforming assets from
December 31, 2000 reflects an increase of $190.0 million of
nonperforming commercial and commercial real estate
loans, a $22.2 million increase in nonperforming residential
mortgages and a $23.8 million increase in nonperforming

retail loans. The increase in nonperforming commercial
loans was primarily due to: merger and restructuring-related
and risk management actions taken during the year; loans
being written down to secondary market valuations and
placed on nonperforming status; and continuing stress in
sectors of the economy. The increase was partially offset by
the disposition of nonperforming loans identified as part of
the Company’s accelerated workout programs and
commercial charge-offs taken during 2001. Certain industry
sectors, including agriculture, have stabilized or improved
from a year ago. The increase in nonperforming residential
mortgages and retail loans generally reflects changes in
portfolio delinquencies and the national trends in
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unemployment and personal bankruptcies during 2001. The Accruing loans 90 days or more past due totaled

ratio of nonperforming assets to loans plus other real estate $462.9 million at December 31, 2001, compared with
was .98 percent at December 31, 2001, compared with $385.2 million at December 31, 2000, and $248.6 million at
.71 percent at year-end 2000 and .52 percent at year-end December 31, 1999. These loans are not included in
1999. Given the continued economic stress in various nonperforming assets and continue to accrue interest
industry sectors, the Company may experience higher levels because they are secured by collateral and/or are in the
of nonperforming assets during the next several quarters. process of collection and are reasonably expected to result
LELIEREY Nonperforming Assets(a)
At December 31,
(Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Commercial
Commercial ...................... ... .. $ 526.6 $470.4 $219.0 $230.4 $263.9
Lease financing ......... .. ... .. ... .. 180.8 70.5 315 17.7 0.8
Total commercial,.................... 707.4 540.9 250.5 248.1 273.7
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages .................. 131.3 105.5 138.2 86.9 94.9
Construction and development ........... 35.9 382 31.6 28.4 19.5
Total commercial real estate .......... 167.2 143.7 169.8 115.3 114.4
Residential mortgages .. ......... ... .. 791 56.9 72.8 98.7 95.0
Retail
Creditcard .................. ... — 8.8 5.0 26 *
Retail leasing .. ......... ... ... ..... 6.5 — 4 5 .5
Otherretail ............ ... ............ 411 15.0 21.1 30.4 171
Totalretail .. ........ ... ......... .. 47.6 23.8 26.5 33.5 17.6
Total nonperforming loans......... 1,001.3 765.3 519.6 495.6 500.7
Otherrealestate ........... ... .. ... .. 43.8 61.1 40.0 35.1 57.0
Otherassets ............................ 74.9 40.6 28.9 16.9 ] 17.4
Total nonperforming assets........ $1,120.0 $867.0 $588.5 $547.6 $575.1
Accruing loans 90 days or more past due(b) .. $ 4629 $385.2 $248.6 $252.9 $213.7
Nonperforming loans to total loans........... .88% .63% 46% 46% 51%
Nonperforming assets to total loans plus
otherrealestate ........................ .98 71 .52 51 .58
Net interest lost on nonperforming loans ... .. $§ 630 $ 50.8 $ 295 $ 213 $ 321

Delinquent Loan Ratios(c)
At December 31,

90 days or more past due 2001 2000 1999 1998 1897
Commercial
Commercial ............................. 1.44% 1.11% S57% .69% *%
Lease financing ......................... 3.53 1.24 .82 57 *
Total commercial . .................... 1.71 1.13 .59 .68 84
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages .................. .73 .61 .82 .59 *
Construction and development . .......... .56 57 53 .60 *
Total commercial real estate .......... .68 .60 74 .59 67
Residential mortgages ... ........... ... 2.44 1.49 1.11 1.26 .89
Retail
Creditcard ........... ... ... .......... 2.18 1.85 1.33 1.07 *
Retail leasing .......................... .24 .20 14 13 *
Otherretail ............................. .84 .64 .47 47 *
Totalretail........................... .98 79 .59 55 .50
Total............. 1.28% .94% .68% .70% 72%

(a) Throughout this document, nonperforming assets and related ratios do not include accruing loans 90 days or more past due.
(b) These loans are not included in nonperforming assets and continue to accrue interest because they are secured by collateral and /or are in the process of collection and are
reasonably expected to result in repayment or restoration to current status.
(¢} Ratios include nonperforming loans and are expressed as a percentage of ending loan balances.
* Information not available
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EEDIERI Summary of Allowance for Credit Losses
(Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Balance at beginning ofyear ........... ... . L $1,786.9 $1,710.3 $1,705.7 $1,665.8 $1,600.1
Charge-offs
Commercial
Commercial ......... ... 779.0 319.8 250.1 * *
Lease financing........... ... ... o ool 144.4 27.9 12.4 * *
Total commercial .......... ... ... 923.4 347.7 262.5 202.3 2328
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages . . ...t 49.5 15.8 191 * *
Construction and development ..................... 12.6 10.3 2.6 * *
Total commercial real estate.................... 62.1 26.1 21.7 23.6 27.3
Residential mortgages .............. ... .. 15.8 137 16.2 14.4 11.1
Retail
Creditcard ... ... ... e 294.1 235.8 2202 223.9 258.3
Retail leasing . ......... ... o i i 342 14.8 6.2 * "
Otherretail .......... ..o i 441.8 379.5 376.0 * *
Totalretail ............ 770.1 630.1 602.4 533.4 522.4
Total charge-offs ........................... 1,771.4 1,017.6 902.8 7737 793.6
Recoveries
Commercial
Commercial ... ... .. . . 60.6 64.0 84.8 * *
Lease financing.......... ... ...l 30.4 7.2 4.0 * *
Total commercial .............. ... e 9.0 71.2 88.8 81.9 59.3
Commercial real estate :
Commercial mortgages .. ... 8.1 10.8 151 * *
Construction and development..................... .8 2.6 1.0 * *
Total commercial real estate.................... 9.9 13.4 16.1 31.0 37.7
Residential mortgages................ ..o, 3.2 1.3 1.4 3.0 25
Retait
Crediteard ...t 234 27.5 34.6 36.9 38.3
Retailleasing . .............. .o 4.5 2.0 1.1 " "
Otherretail ....... ... ... ... i i 929 76.8 88.2 * *
Totalretail ... ... i 120.8 106.3 123.9 112.6 931
Total recoveries ... 2249 192.2 230.2 2285 192.6
Net Charge-offs
Commercial
Commercial .......... . .. 7184 255.8 165.3 ) *
Lease financing........ ... .. ... il 114.0 20.7 8.4 * *
Total commercial .............. ..o i 832.4 276.5 173.7 120.4 173.5
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages . ... 40.4 5.0 4.0 * *
Construction and development . .................... 11.8 7.7 1.6 * *
Total commercial real estate.................... 522 127 5.6 (7.4) (10.4)
Residential mortgages . ............. ... o ool 12.6 12.4 14.8 114 8.6
Retail
Creditcard . ....... ..o 270.7 208.3 185.6 187.0 220.0
Retail leasing .............. ... ... 29.7 12.8 5.1 * *
Otherretail ............ ... ..o i i 348.9 302.7 287.8 * *
Totalretail ............ ... ... .o i 649.3 523.8 ‘ 478.5 420.8 429.3
Total net charge-offs ....................... 1,646.5 8254 - 672.6 545.2 601.0
Provision for credit [0SSes ............ . i 2,528.8 828.0 646.0 491.3 639.9
Losses from loan sales/transfers......................... (329.3) — — — —
Acquisitions and other changes .......................... 17.4 74.0 31.2 93.8 26.8
Balance atendofyear ......... ... . o $2,457.3 $1,786.9 $1,710.3 $1,705.7 $1,665.8
Allowance as a percentage of:
Period-end 10ans..........o i 2.15% 1.46% 1.51% 1.59% 1.68%
Nonperforming (oans ............... ..., 245 233 329 344 333
Nonperforming assets ............... .. ... ... 219 206 291 312 290
Net charge-offs .......... ... ... . o 159 216 254 313 277

*Information not available
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in repayment or restoration to current status. Retail loans
30 days to 89 days or more past due were 3.11 percent of
the total retail portfolio at December 31, 2001, compared
with 2.82 percent of the total retail portfolio at

December 31, 2000. Retail loans 90 days or more past due
totaled .98 percent of the total retail loan portfolio at
December 31, 2001, compared with .79 percent of the total
retail loan portfolio at December 31, 2000, and .59 percent
at December 31, 1999. The increase in retail loan
delinquencies was primarily related to the credit card, home
equity and revolving credit line portfolios and reflects the
economic slowdown and unemployment trends during 2001.

Analysis and Determination of Allowance for Credit Losses
The allowance for credit losses provides coverage for
probable losses inherent in the Company’s loan portfolio.
Management evaluates the allowance each quarter to
determine that it is adequate to cover inherent losses. The
evaluation of each element and the overall allowance is
based on a continuing assessment of problem loans and
related off-balance sheet items, recent loss experience, and
other factors, including regulatory guidance and economic
conditions. Management has determined that the allowance
for credit losses is adequate.

At December 31, 2001, the allowance was $2.5 billion
(2.15 percent of loans). This compares with an allowance
of $1.8 billion (1.46 percent of loans), at year-end 2000,
and $1.7 billion (1.51 percent of loans), at December 31,
1999. The ratio of the allowance for credit losses to
nonperforming loans was 245 percent at December 31,
2001, compared with 233 percent at year-end 2000 and
329 percent at year-end 1999. The ratio of the allowance
for credit losses to net charge-offs was 159 percent at
December 31, 2001, compared with 216 percent at year-end
2000 and 254 percent at year-end 1999. The Company
considers historical charge-off levels in addition to existing
conditions, among other factors, when establishing the
allowance for credit losses.

Several factors impacted the allowance for credit losses
during 2001, including merger and restructuring-related
credit actions and management’s extensive review of the
commercial loan portfolio in light of current economic
conditions. The level of the allowance was also impacted
by risk rating changes by regulators of shared national
credits agented by other banks, Company-specific portfolio
trends discussed previously, and the transfer of the
unsecured small business product portfolio to loans held
for sale. The increase in the allowance for credit losses
reflects the impact of changes in the economy since
December 31, 2000, and related deterioration in certain
sectors of the Company’s credit portfolio. It also reflects
management’s recognition that the current economic
slowdown has accelerated and may be more prolonged as a
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result of world events occurring in the third quarter of
2001.

Management determines the amount of allowance that
is required for certain loan categories based on relative risk
characteristics of the loan portfolio. Table 16 shows the
amount of the allowance for credit losses by loan category.
During 2001, the Company, in connection with the merger
of Firstar and USBM, conformed its methodology for
determining specific allowances for the elements of the loan
portfolio. While both predecessor companies utilized credit
risk rating processes, migration analysis and historical loss
experience to determine each element of its allowance for
credit losses, Firstar specifically determined its commercial
allowance based on its net loss experience, while USBM
utilized its gross loss experience. Although diversity exists in
practice, the Company has adopted a net loss experience
methodology in determining the allowance for commercial
credit losses. Adopting the net loss experience methodology
is based, in part, on regulatory guidelines promulgated with
respect to evaluating the allowance for credit losses. In
addition to adopting a net loss experience method, the
Company enhanced its commercial migration methods for
higher quality commercial loan categories to better
differentiate historical loss factors within those categories.
Also, given the current business cycle, historical loss factors
utilized in determining the allowance for commercial loans
were weighted to reflect the adverse impact of recent losses.
Table 16 shows the determination of each element of the
allowance for credit losses on a consistent basis for 2001
and 2000. Due to the Company’s inability to gather
historical loss data on a combined basis for 1997 through
1999, the methodologies and amounts assigned to each
element of the loan portfolio for these years have not been
conformed.

The allowance recorded for commercial loans is based
on a quarterly review of individual credit relationships. The
Company’s regular risk rating process is an integral
component of the methodology utilized in determining the
allowance for credit losses. An analysis of the migration of
commercial and commercial real estate loans and actual loss
experience throughout the business cycle is also conducted
quarterly to assess reserves established for credits with
similar risk characteristics. An allowance is established for
pools of commercial and commercial real estate loans based
on the risk ratings assigned. The amount is supported by
the results of the migration analysis that considers historical
loss experience by risk rating, as well as current and
historical economic conditions and industry risk factors.
The Company separately analyzes the carrying value of
impaired loans to determine whether the carrying value is
less than or equal to the appraised collateral value or the
present value of expected cash flows. Based on this analysis,
an allowance for credit losses may be specifically established




Elements of the Allowance for Credit Losses(a)

Allowance Amount

Allowance as a Percent of Total Loans

December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Commercial
Commercial .................. $1,068.1 § 4188 $ 4083 $ 3437 $ 3705 2.64% .90% .97% 91% 1.10%
Lease financing............... 107.5 17.7 20.2 21.5 16.4 1.84 .29 .53 .65 .61
Total commercial .......... 1,175.6 436.5 428.5 365.2 386.9 2.54 .83 .93 .89 1.06
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages ........ 176.6 42.7 110.4 105.2 105.6 .94 .22 .59 .63 .67
Construction and development . . 76.4 17.7 225 25.9 27.7 1.16 .25 .35 50 .68
Total commercial real estate . . 253.0 60.4 132.9 131.1 133.3 1.00 .23 .53 .80 .67
Residential mortgages ...... 16.1 9.6 18.6 27.2 36.9 .28 12 16 19 .23
Retail
Creditcard ................... 295.2 265.6 320.8 304.3 217.4 5.01 3.95 6.41 6.27 4.35
Retail teasing . ................ 38.7 27.2 18.6 6.5 4.9 .79 .85 .88 .40 45
Otherretail ................... 377.2 360.0 389.2 365.6 257.9 1.44 1.47 1.64 1.55 1.23
Total retail ................ 71141 652.8 728.6 676.4 480.2 1.92 1.85 2.36 2.25 1.78
Total allocated allowance. . . 2,155.8 1,159.3 11,3086 1,1999 1,037.3 1.89 .95 1.16 1.12 1.05
Unallocated portion ........ 301.5 627.6 401.7 505.8 628.5 .26 .51 .35 47 .63
Total allowance .................. $2,457.3 $1,786.9 $1,710.3 $1,705.7 $1,665.8 2.15% 1.46% 1.51% 1.59% 1.68%

(a) During 2001, the Company changed its methodology for determining the specific allowance for elements of the loan portfolio. Table 16 has been restated for 2000. Due to the
Company’s inability to gather historical loss data on a combined basis for 1997 through 1999, the methodologies and amounts assigned to each element of the loan portfolio for
these years have not been conformed. Utilizing the prior methods the total assigned allowance for 2000 was $1,397.3 million and the unallocated portion was $389.6 million. Refer
to paragraph four in the section captioned ‘'‘Analysis and Determination of Allowance for Credit Losses"” on page 34.

for impaired loans. The allowance established for
commercial and commercial real estate loan portfolios,
including impaired commercial and commercial real estate
loans, increased $931.7 million to $1,428.6 million in 2001.
The change reflected higher levels of nonperforming loans,
increased loss severity reflected in the historical migration,
increasing sector risk in certain industries and deterioration
in credit risk ratings from a year ago.

The allowance recorded for retail portfolios is based
on an analysis of product mix, credit scoring and risk
composition of the portfolio, loss and bankruptcy
experiences, economic conditions and historical and
expected delinquency and charge-off statistics for each
homogenous category or group of loans. Based on this
information and analysis, an allowance is established
approximating a rolling twelve-month estimate of net
charge-offs. The allowance for retail loans increased
$58.3 million to $711.1 million in 2001. The increase
primarily reflected the continuing downturn in economic
conditions.

Regardless of the extent of the Company’s analysis of
customer performance, portfolio trends or risk management
processes, certain inherent but undetected losses are
probable within the loan portfolio. This is due to several
factors including inherent delays in obtaining information
regarding a customer’s financial condition or changes in
their unique business conditions, the judgmental nature of
individual loan evaluations, collateral assessments and the
interpretation of economic trends. Volatility of economic or

customer-specific conditions affecting the identification and
estimation of losses for larger non-homogeneous credits and
the sensitivity of assumptions utilized to establish
allowances for homogenous groups of loans are among
other factors. For each of these factors, the estimated
inherent loss is recorded as an unallocated allowance. The
Company estimates a range of inherent losses related to the
existence of these exposures and for the risk in
concentrations to specific borrowers, financings of highly
leveraged transactions, products or industries. The estimates
are based upon the Company’s evaluation of imprecision
risk associated with the commercial and retail allowance
levels and the estimated impact of the current economic
environment on portfolio segments or concentrations. The
unallocated allowance decreased to $301.5 million at
December 31, 2001, from $627.6 million at December 31,
2000. The change in unallocated allowance reflects
deterioration in credit quality during 2001. Although the
Company determines the amount of each element of the
allowance separately and this process is an important credit
management tool, the entire allowance for credit losses is
available for the entire loan portfolio. The actual amount
of losses incurred can vary significantly from the recorded
amounts. The Company’s methodology includes several
factors intended to minimize the differences in recorded and
actual losses. These factors allow the Company to adjust its
estimate of losses based on the most recent information
available. Refer to Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated
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Financial Statements for accounting policies related to the
allowance for credit losses.

Residual Risk Management The Company manages its
risk to changes in the value of lease residual assets through
disciplined residual setting and valuation at the inception of
a lease, diversification of its vehicles, a focus on longer term
vehicle leases, effective end-of-term marketing of off-leased
vehicles, regular asset valuation reviews and monitoring of
residual value gains or losses upon the disposition of assets.
To reduce the financial impact of potential changes in
vehicle residuals, the Company maintains residual value risk
insurance. Also, equipment lease originations are subject to
the same stringent underwriting standards referred to in the
segment captioned “Credit Risk Management”.

Included in the retail leasing portfolio was
approximately $2.8 billion of retail leasing residuals at
December 31, 2001, compared with $2.4 billion at
December 31, 2000. The Company monitors concentrations
of leases by manufacturer, vehicle “make” and vehicle type.
At year-end 2001, no vehicle-type concentration exceeded
five percent of the aggregate portfolio. Because retail
residual valuations tend to be less volatile for longer-term
leases, relative to the estimated residual at inception of the
lease, management actively manages lease origination
production to achieve a longer-term portfolio. At
December 31, 2001, the weighted-average term of the
portfolio was 51 months. Since 1998, the used vehicle
market has experienced a decline in used car prices. Several
factors have contributed to this deflationary cycle.
Aggressive leasing programs by automobile manufacturers
and competitors within the banking industry included a
marketing focus on monthly lease payments, enhanced
residuals at lease inception, shorter-term leases and low
mileage leases. These practices have created a cyclical
oversupply of certain off-lease vehicles. Recently,
automobile manufacturers and others have retreated from
these marketing programs or begun to exit the leasing
business. Another factor impacting the used vehicle market
has been the trend in new vehicle prices that decreased in
the late 1990’s. This trend has been driven by surplus
automobile manufacturing capacity and related production
and highly competitive Internet sales programs.
Recessionary factors are expected to moderate new car
production during the next several quarters. Also, many
Internet marketers failed or transformed into distribution
channels of dealers rather than direct competitors. These
recent trends are expected to abate the deflationary pricing
pressures of the past few years. In response to factors
impacting used vehicle prices, the Company recognized a
retail lease impairment of $40.0 million in 2001. Given the
current economic environment, it is difficult to assess the
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timing and degree of changes in residual values that may
impact financial results over the next several quarters.

At December 31, 2001, the commercial leasing
portfolio had $984.6 million of residuals. Ac year-end 2001,
lease residuals related to railcars were 16.2 percent. Trucks
and other transportation equipment represented
30.2 percent of the aggregate portfolio while aircraft and
manufacturing were 14.9 percent and 12.7 percent,
respectively. No other significant concentrations of more
than 10 percent existed at December 31, 2001. During
2001, reduced airline travel and higher fuel costs adversely
impacted aircraft and transportation equipment lease
residual values. Although impairment of equipment lease
residuals was not significant in 2001, continuing economic
stress in certain industries may further impact used
equipment values into next year.

Interest Rate Risk Management In the banking industry,
a major risk exposure is changing interest rates. To
minimize the volatility of net interest income and exposure
to economic losses, the Company manages its exposure to
changes in interest rates through asset and liability
management activities within guidelines established by its
Asset Liability Policy Committee (“ALPC”) and approved
by the Board of Directors. ALPC has the responsibility for
approving and ensuring compliance with asset/liability
management policies, including interest rate risk exposure,
off-balance sheet activity and the investment portfolio. The
Company uses three methods for measuring and analyzing
consolidated interest rate risk: Net Interest Income
Simulation Analysis, Market Value of Equity Modeling and
Repricing Mismatch Analysis.

Net Interest Income Simulation Analysis One of the
primary tools used to measure interest rate risk and the
effect of interest rate changes on net interest income and
net interest margin is simulation analysis. The monthly
analysis incorporates substantially all of the Company’s
assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments,
together with forecasted changes in the balance sheet and
assumptions that reflect the current interest rate
environment. Through these simulations, management
estimates the impact on net interest income of a 300 basis
point upward or downward gradual change of market
interest rates over a one year period. The simulations also
estimate the effect of immediate and sustained parallel shifts
in the yield curve of 50 basis points as well as the effect of
immediate and sustained flattening or steepening of the
yield curve. These simulations include assumptions about
how the balance sheet is likely to change with changes in
loan and deposit growth. Assumptions are made to project
rates for new loans and deposits based on historical
analysis, management’s outlook and repricing strategies.
Loan prepayment and other options risks are developed




EECIEEEA Derivative Positions

Asset and Liability Management Positions

Weighted-
N Average
Maturing Remainigg
December 31, 2001 Fair  Maturity
(Dollars in Millions} 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter Total Value in Years
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps
Notional amount ......................... $3295 $1,625 $3,223  $1,861 $875 $5,240 §$16,119  $329.6 6.30
Weighted-average
Receiverate ......................... 4.57% 6.04% 5.06% 6.05% 5.73% 6.68% 5.74%
Payrate ............. ... ... ... 2.00 1.97 2.10 2.14 2.1 2.07 2.068
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps
Notional amount ......................... $ 500 % 962 §$ 500 $ — $ — $§ — $1962 8 (21) 1.74
Weighted-average
Receiverate ......................... 1.79% 1.90% 1.87% —% —% —% 1.86%
Payrate ................. ... 2.08 4.24 3.98 — — — 3.62
Basis SWAPS ... $1000 8§ — 8 — § — $ — $ — $1000 §$ 2 0.69
Future and forwards ........................ 4,087 — — —_ — — 4,087 717 —
options ... — — — — 45 — 45 — 4.9
Customer Intermediated Positions
Weighted-
) Average
Maturing Rema‘migg
December 31, 2001 Fair  Maturity
(Dollars in Millions ) 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter Total Value In Years
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps
Notional amount . ........................ $ 218 $ 408 § 386 $ 276 $424 $ 425 $ 2137 $ 635 3.83
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps
Notional amount .. ....................... 217 409 386 276 424 425 2,137 (53.4) 3.83
Basis swaps .. ... o — — 2 — — — 2 — 2.67
Options .. ... 514 615 78 —_ — 4 1,211 — 1.29
Foreign exchange contracts
Purchase .......... ... . ... . ... ... 1,810 26 — — — — 1,836 60.0 .25
Sell . o 1,801 26 — — — — 1,827 (58.0) .25

from industry estimates of prepayment speeds. Because the
results of these simulations can be significantly influenced
by assumptions utilized, management evaluates the
sensitivity of the simulation’s results to changes in key
assumptions.

The results from the simulation are reviewed by ALPC
monthly and are used to guide hedging strategies. ALPC
policy guidelines limit the estimated change in net interest
income to 5.0 percent of forecasted net interest income
over the succeeding 12 months. In simulations as of
December 31, 2001, the interest rate risk position of the
Company was relatively neutral as the impact of a
downward movement in rates or an upward movement in
rates of 300 basis points over a twelve month period
resulted in less than 1.0 percent change in net interest
income. At December 31, 2001, the Company was well
within policy guidelines.

Market Value of Equity Modeling The Company also
utilizes the market value of equity as a measurement tool in
managing interest rate sensitivity. The market value of
equity measures the degree to which the market values of
the Company’s assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet
instruments will change given a change in interest rates.
ALPC guidelines limit the change in market value of equity

in a 200 basis point parallel rate shock to 15 percent of the
base case. Given the low level of rates currently the down
200 basis point scenario cannot be computed. ALPC
reviews other down rate scenarios to evaluate the impact of
falling rates.

The valuation analysis is dependent upon certain key
assumptions about the nature of indeterminate maturity of
assets and liabilities. Management estimates the average life
and rate characteristics of asset and liability accounts based
upon historical analysis and management’s expectation of
rate behavior. The results of the valuation analysis as of
December 31, 2001, were well within policy guidelines.

Repricing Mismatch Analysis The Company also evaluates
its interest rate sensitivity position to maintain a balance
between the amounts of interest-bearing assets and
interest-bearing liabilities which are expected to mature or
reprice at any point in time. While a traditional repricing
mismatch analysis (“gap analysis”) provides a snapshot of
interest rate risk, it does not take into consideration that
assets and liabilities with similar repricing characteristics
may not reprice at the same time or to the same degree.
Also, it does not necessarily predict the impact of changes
in general levels of interest rates on net interest income.
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Use of Derivatives to Manage Market and Interest Rate
Risk In the ordinary course of business, the Company
enters into derivative transactions to manage its market and
prepayment risks and to accommodate the business
requirements of its customers. By their nature, derivative
instruments are subject to market risk. The Company does
not utilize derivative instruments for speculative purposes.
To manage its interest rate risk, the Company may enter
into interest rate swap agreements and, to a lesser degree,
basis swaps, and interest rate options such as caps and
floors. Interest rate swaps involve the exchange of fixed-
and variable-rate payments without the exchange of the
underlying notional amount on which the interest payments
are calculated. Interest rate caps protect against rising
interest rates while interest rate floors protect against falling
interest rates. In connection with its mortgage banking
business, the Company may enter into forward
commitments, futures and options to hedge interest rate
risk of fixed-rate mortgage loans held for sale and unfunded
commitments. All interest rate derivatives that qualify for
hedge accounting are recorded at fair value as other assets
or liabilities on the balance sheet and designated as either
“fair value” or “cash flow” hedges. The Company performs
an assessment, both at the inception of the hedge and
quarterly thereafter, to determine whether these derivatives
are highly effective in offsetting changes in the value of the
hedged items. Hedge ineffectiveness for both cash flow and
fair value hedges is immediately recorded in noninterest
income.

The Company also enters into derivative contracts to
accommodate the business requirements of its customers.
Customer intermediated transactions may include interest
rate derivatives and foreign exchange forward contracts and
options. Foreign exchange-based forward contracts provide
for the delayed delivery of a purchase or sale of foreign
currency. Generally, the Company enters into offsetting
derivative positions to mitigate its market risk associated
with customer-based contracts. Intermediated interest rate
swaps, foreign exchange contracts and all other derivative
contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recorded at fair value and resulting gains or losses are
recorded in trading account profits and commissions.
Derivative instruments are subject to credit risk associated
with counterparties to the derivative contracts. Credit risk
associated with derivatives is measured based on the
replacement cost should the counterparties with contracts
in a gain position to the Company fail to perform under the
terms of the contracts. The Company manages this risk
through diversification of its derivative positions among
dealers, primarily commercial banks, broker-dealers and
corporations, with established relationships and requiring
collateral to support credit exposures in excess of
established guidelines. To minimize the risk, the Company
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enters into legally enforceable master netting agreements,
which permit the close out and netting of transactions with
the same counterparty upon the occurrence of certain
events. Also, a portion of the derivative activity involves
exchange-traded instruments. Because exchange-traded
instruments conform to standard terms and are subject to
policies set by the exchange involved, including
counterparty approval, margin requirements and security
deposit requirements, the credit risk is substantively
reduced.

Table 17 summarizes information on derivative
positions as of December 31, 2001.

Market Risk Management In addition to interest rate risk
and market risk associated with derivatives, the Company is
exposed to other forms of market risk as a consequence of
conducting normal business activities. Business activities that
contribute to market risk include, among other things,
market making, underwriting, proprietary trading and
foreign exchange positions. Value at Risk (“VaR”) is a key
measure of market risk for the Company. VaR represents
the maximum amount that the Company has placed at risk
of loss, with a ninety-nine percent degree of confidence, in
the course of its risk taking activities. Its purpose is to
describe the amount of earnings at risk due to potential
losses from adverse market movements.

VaR modeling on trading activities is subject to certain
limitations. Additionally, it should be recognized that there
are assumptions and estimates associated with VaR
modeling and actual results could differ from these
assumptions and estimates. The Company mitigates these
uncertainties through regular monitoring of trading activities
by management and other risk management practices
including stop-loss limits and position limits. A stress-test
model is used to provide management with a perspective on
market events that a VaR model does not capture. In each
case, the historical worst performance of each asset class is
observed and applied to current trading positions.

ALPC establishes market risk limits subject to approval
by the Company’s Board of Directors. The Company’s VaR
limit was $40.0 million at December 31, 2001. The market
risk inherent in the Company’s customer-based derivative
trading, mortgage banking pipeline, broker-dealer activities,
including equities, fixed income, high yield securities and
foreign exchange, as estimated by the VaR analysis, was
$10.9 million at December 31, 2001.

Liquidity Risk Management ALPC establishes policies, as
well as analyzes and manages liquidity, to ensure that
adequate funds are available to meet normal operating
requirements in addition to unexpected customer demands
for funds, such as high levels of deposit withdrawals or
loan demand, in a timely and cost-effective manner. The
most important factor in the preservation of liquidity is




maintaining public confidence that facilitates the retention
and growth of a large, stable supply of core deposits and
wholesale funds. Ultimately, public confidence is generated
through profitable operations, sound credit quality and a
strong capital position. The Company’s performance in
these areas has enabled it to develop a large and reliable
base of core funding within its market areas and in
domestic and global capital markets. Liquidity management
is viewed from a long-term and short-term perspective, as
well as from an asset and liability perspective. Management
monitors liquidity through a regular review of maturity
profiles, yield and rate behaviors, and loan and deposit
forecasts to minimize funding risk.

The Company maintains strategic liquidity and
contingency plans that are subject to the availability of asset
liquidity in the balance sheet. ALPC periodically reviews the
Company’s ability to meet funding deficiencies due to
adverse business events. These funding needs are then
matched with specific asset-based sources to ensure
sufficient funds are available. Also, strategic liquidity policies
require diversification of wholesale funding sources to avoid
concentrations in any one market source. Subsidiary banks
are members of various Federal Home Loan Banks that
provide a source of funding through FHLB advances. The
Company maintains a Grand Cayman office for issuing
eurodollar certificates of deposit. The Company also
establishes relationships with dealers to issue national
market retail and institutional savings certificates and short-
and medium-term bank notes. Also, the Company’s
subsidiary banks have significant correspondent banking
networks and corporate accounts. Accordingly, it has access
to national fed funds, funding through repurchase
agreements and sources of more stable regionally based
certificates of deposit.

Asset securitization and conduits represent another
source of funding the Company’s growth through off-
balance sheet structures. The Company has two off-balance
sheet conduits that hold high-grade assets. The conduits,
which are funded by issuing commercial paper, held average
assets of $14.8 billion including short-term participations in
commercial loans, commercial paper and investment
securities. The Company provides liquidity facilities to both
conduits and credit enhancement to the loan conduit that
may be triggered by certain events. Based on the current
performance of each structure the Company does not
anticipate these triggers will occur in the foreseeable future.
Included in noninterest income was $132.7 million of
revenue related to these conduits in 2001 including fees for
servicing activities and liquidity facilities and credit
enhancements.

In November 2001, the Company established a
$738 million securitization structure related to an unsecured
small business credit product that was being discontinued.

Additionally, the Company previously created asset-backed
securitizations to fund the noninterest-bearing corporate
card loan portfolio and indirect automobile loans. The
corporate card securitization held $403 million in average
assets in 2001 and is scheduled to be liquidated in
February 2002. The indirect automobile securitization held
$655 million of average assets in 2001. The Company
provided credit enhancements in the form of subordination
and reserve accounts at the inception of the transactions.
The Company’s risk, primarily for losses in the underlying
assets, is considered in determining the fair value of the
Company’s retained interests in these securitizations. The
Company recognized income from residual interests and
servicing fees for these securitizations of $15.5 million in
2001. Refer to Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further information on these off-
balance sheet structures.

With respect to real estate and certain equipment, the
Company enters into capital or operating leases to meet its
business requirements. Certain operating lease arrangements
involve third party lessors that acquire these business assets
through leveraged financing structures commonly referred to
as “synthetic leases”. At December 31, 2001, synthetic lease
structures held real estate assets of $372.7 million and
equipment of $41.6 million. The Company provides
guarantees to the lender in the event of default by the
leveraged financing structures or in the event that the
Company does not exercise its option to purchase the
property at the end of the lease term and the fair value of
the assets is less than the purchase price. The Company’s
minimum lease obligations for capital and operating
arrangements, including those related to synthetic leases, are
disclosed in Note 22 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Credit, liquidity, operational and legal structural risks
exist due to the nature and complexity of asset
securitizations and other off-balance sheet structures. ALPC
regularly monitors the performance of each off-balance
sheet structure in an effort to minimize these risks and
ensure compliance with the requirements of the structures.
The Company utilizes its credit risk management systems to
evaluate credit quality of underlying assets and regularly
forecasts cash flows to evaluate any potential impairment of
retained interests. Also, regulatory guidelines require
consideration of asset securitizations in the determination of
risk-based capital ratios.

The Company’s ability to raise negotiated funding at
competitive prices is influenced by rating agencies’ views of
the Company’s credit quality, liquidity, capital and earnings.
The debt ratings noted in Table 18 reflect the rating agencies’
recognition of the strong, consistent financial performance of
the Company and quality of the balance sheet.
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Debt Ratings

Standard &
At December 31, 2001 Moody’s Poors Fitch
U.S. Bancorp
Short-term DOITOWINGS ... e e e e F1
Senior debt and medium-term NoteS .. ... oot e Al A At
Subordinated debt ... .. e A2 A— A
Preferred stOCK . ... .. A3 BBB+ A
CoOmMMETCIal PAPET . ... P-1 A-1 F1
U.S. Bank National Association
Short-term time Qeposits .. ... . e P-1 A-1 F1+
Long-term time deposits . .. ... ... . Aa3 A+ AA—
BanK MO e S - . oo Aa3/P-1 A+/A-1 A+/F1+
Subordinated debt . ... L Al A A

The parent company’s routine funding requirements
consist primarily of operating expenses, dividends to
shareholders, debt service and funds used for acquisitions.
The parent company obtains funding to meet its obligations
from dividends collected from its subsidiaries and the
issuance of debt securities. Subsidiary management fees
fund operating expenses, while shareholder dividends and
debt service are satisfied primarily through dividends from
its subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2001, parent company long-term debt
outstanding was $6.1 billion, compared with $6.6 billion at
December 31, 2000. In 2001, the parent company issued
$1.1 billion of senior contingent convertible debt, offset by
$1.6 billion of maturities and other repayments of long-
term debt. Total parent company debt maturing in 2002 is
$1.5 billion. These debt obligations are expected to be met
through medium-term note issuances and dividends from
subsidiaries, as well as from the approximately $3.2 biilion
of parent company cash and cash equivalents at
December 31, 2001. Federal banking laws regulate the
amount of dividends that may be paid by banking
subsidiaries without prior approval. The amount of
dividends available to the parent company from its banking
subsidiaries was $1.2 billion at December 31, 2001. For
further information, see Note 23 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company is committed to managing capital for
maximum sharcholder benefit and maintaining strong
protection for depositors and creditors. Total shareholders’
equity was $16.5 billion at December 31, 2001, compared
with $15.2 billion at December 31, 2000. The increase was
primarily the result of corporate earnings and the issuance
of stock in connection with the NOVA acquisition, offset
by dividend payments, merger and restructuring-related
items and share repurchases.

On February 27, 2001, the Company increased its
dividend rate per common share 15.4 percent from $.1625
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per quarter to $.1875 per quarter. Excluding merger and
restructuring-related charges, the dividend payour ratio for
2001 increased to 57.0 percent compared with payout ratios
of 40.1 percent in 2000 and 31.7 percent in 1999.

Management has established financial objectives which
provide a framework to monitor future capital needs. The
Company’s dividend policy is influenced by the belief that
most shareholders are interested in long-term performance
as well as current dividend yields. The current dividend
payout level is considered reasonable given the Company’s
present cash flow position, level of earnings and the
strength of its subsidiary banks’ capital ratios. Future
dividends will be determined based on results of operations,
growth expectations, financial condition, regulatory
constraints and other factors deemed relevant by the Board
of Directors.

On July 17, 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors
authorized the repurchase of up to 56.4 million shares of
the Company’s common stock in connection with the
July 24, 2001, acquisition of NOVA. During 2001, the
Company repurchased 19.7 million shares of common stock
in both public and private transactions in connection with
this authorization. The Company had forward contracts to
purchase 26.7 million shares within this authorization.
These contracts were settled in January 2002. On
December 18, 2001, the Board of Directors approved an
authorization to repurchase an additional 100 million shares
of common stock through 2003.

On February 16, 2000, the Board of Directors of
USBM authorized the repurchase of up to $2.5 billion of its
common stock over a two year period ending March 31,
2002. On April 11, 2000, Firstar’s Board of Directors
approved a common stock repurchase program of
100 million shares. The stock repurchase programs of both
Firstar and USBM were rescinded on October 4, 2000, and
January 17, 2001, respectively, in connection with the
planned merger of the formerly separate companies. For a
complete analysis of activities impacting shareholders’ equity




Regulatory Capital Ratios

At December 31 (Dollars in Millions} 2001 2000
U.S. Bancorp
Tangible COMMON EQUILY . .. ..ottt et et e e e e e e e e e $ 9,374 $10,045
As a percent of tangible @8Sets . . ... 5.7% 6.3%
TIBr 1 CAPIAL oo o $12,488 $11,602
As a percent of risk-weighted assets . ......... .. ... . 7.7% 7.2%
As a percent of adjusted quarterly average assets (leverageratio) ......... ... i 7.7% 7.4%
Total risk-based capital .. ... ... $19,148 $17,038
As a percent of risk-weighted assets .. ... ... ... . 11.7% 10.6%
Bank Subsidiaries(a)
U.S. Bank National Association
Tier 1 capital . ... 7.5% 7.3%
Total risk-based capital . .. ... . e 11.8 11.2
OV a0 .. e 7.7 7.9
U.S. Bank National Association ND
Tier 1 capilal .. .o 18.1% 10.3%
Total risk-based capital . .. ... .. ... 23.1 15.6
L= - Vo T 17.9 10.2
U.S. Bank National Association MT
Tier 1 CAPIAL . .o e e e 19.4% 14.9%
Total risk-hased Capital . ... . e e 20.5 17.6
[T =T = T T 14.0 12.0
Well-
Bank Regulatory Capital Requirements Minimum Capitalized
Tier 1 CaPital . . e e 4.0% 6.0%
Total risk-based capital .. ... ... . e 8.0 10.0
I - Vo - 4.0 5.0

(a) These balances and ratios were prepared in accordance with regulatory accounting principles as disclosed in the subsidiaries’ regufatory reports.

and capital management programs, refer to Note 15 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Banking regulators define minimum capital
requirements for banks and financial services holding
companies. Additionally, credit rating agencies evaluate
capital adequacy including tangible common equity as a
percentage of tangible assets. The Company manages
various capital ratios to maintain appropriate capital levels
in accordance with Board-approved capital guidelines. At
December 31, 2001, tangible common equity was
$9.4 billion (5.7 percent of tangible assets), compared with
6.3 percent at year-end 2000. The decline in the tangible
common equity ratio was primarily due to the acquisition
of NOVA during the third quarter of 2001. As of
December 31, 2001, tier 1 and total risk-based capital ratios
were 7.7 percent and 11.7 percent, respectively, well above
the minimum regulatory requirements of 4.0 percent for
tier 1 and 8.0 percent for total risk-based capital. This
compared to tier 1 and total risk-based capital ratios of
7.2 percent and 10.6 percent at December 31, 2000. The
improvement in the total risk-based capital ratio during
2001 primarily reflected changes in the mix of investment
securities in addition to the issuance of Trust Preferred
Securities. Regulatory authorities have also established a
minimum “leverage” ratio of 4.0 percent, which is defined
as tier 1 equity to average quarterly assets. For the fourth
quarter of 2001, the Company’s leverage ratio improved to

7.7 percent compared with 7.4 percent in the fourth quarter
of a year ago.

With respect to each of its banking subsidiaries, the
Company intends to maintain sufficient capital to be “well
capitalized” as defined by the regulatory agencies. The “well
capitalized” category requires tier 1 and total risk-based
capital ratios of at least 6.0 percent and 10.0 percent,
respectively, and a minimum leverage ratio of 5.0 percent.
All banking subsidiaries are considered “well capitalized” at
December 31, 2001.

Table 19 provides a summary of tier 1 and total risk-
based capital ratios as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, as
defined by the regulatory agencies.

FOURTH QUARTER SUMMARY

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company had net income
of $695.4 million ($.36 per diluted share), compared with
$768.7 million ($.40 per diluted share) in the fourth
quarter of 2000. The Company reported operating earnings
(net income excluding merger and restructuring-related
items) of $785.2 million ($.40 per diluted share) in the
fourth quarter of 2001, compared with operating earnings
of $824.2 million ($.43 per diluted share) in the fourth
quarter of 2000. Fourth quarter net interest income on a
taxable-equivalent basis increased $122.6 million to
$1,684.8 million, compared with the fourth quarter of
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2000, primarily reflecting increased earning assets driven by
increases in the investment portfolio, core retail loan
growth and acquisitions, partially offset by a $4.3 billion
reduction in loans related to transfers of short-term, high
credit quality, low margin commercial loans to the loan
conduit, a $2.8 billion decline in residential mortgage loans,
and the sale of indirect automobile and high LTV home
equity loans in the first quarter of 2001. The net interest
margin on a taxable-equivalent basis increased in the fourth
quarter of 2001 to 4.60 percent, compared with

4.33 percent in the fourth quarter of 2000, reflecting
funding benefits during the declining rate environment, a
more favorable funding mix and improving loan spreads,
partially offset by lower yields on the investment portfolio.

Fourth Quarter Summary

The provision for credit losses increased to
$265.8 million in the fourth quarter of 2001, compared
with $229.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2000. The
increase was the result of higher charge-offs from a year ago
due to deterioration in economic conditions and credit
quality in the loan portfolio.

Noninterest income increased $58.7 million from the
same quarter a year ago, to $1,323.6 million. Credit card
fee revenue declined quarter over quarter by $18.6 million
(8.8 percent) reflecting lower corporate card transaction
volumes. Merchant and ATM processing revenue increased
$116.0 million principally due to the acquisition of NOVA.
Deposit service charges, cash management fees, commercial
product revenue and mortgage banking revenue improved in
the fourth quarter of 2001 from a year ago. The

Three Months Ended
December 31,

(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2001 2000
Condensed Income Statement
Interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) ... ... ... .. e $2,529.3 $3,179.7
I OISt B PO .ttt e 844.5 1,617.5
Nt INtErEst INCOME L. .. e e 1,684.8 1,562.2
SECUNLIES GAINS, MBt . . . o e e 22.0 7.0
NONINEEr eSSt INCOME . . . . e 1,301.6 1,257.9
TOtal N rEVENUE . .. o e e e e 3,008.4 2,827.1
NONINIErest EXPENSE(@) .. .. e e 1,503.9 1,347.8
Provision for Credit 10SSeS .. ..o e 265.8 229.5
Income before taxes and merger and restructuring-related items............. ... i 1,238.7 1,249.8
Taxable-equivalent adjustment ... ... . 9.9 20.7
INCOME T8BXES . ..ot e e 443.6 404.9
Operating @arMINGS (B) . - vttt it e e e e 785.2 824.2
Merger and restructuring-related items (after-tax) ........... . . e (89.8) (55.5)
Net income in accordance with GAAP .. ... . $ 6954 $ 768.7
Per Common Share
Earnings per Share ... .. . e $ .36 $ 41
Diluted earnings Per Share ... .. . i .36 .40
Dividends declared per share (b ) . ... o 1875 1625
Financial Ratios
RetUrn 0N average @SSeTS. .. ... .. . 1.64% 1.89%
Return on average equity ... ... 16.5 20.7
Net interest margin (taxable-equivalent basis) . ... . e 4.80 4.33
EffiCionCy ratio ... e 55.1 50.8
Financial Ratios Excluding Merger and Restructuring-Related ltems(a)
REtUIN ON @VErage @SSeIS . . ..o\ttt e e e 1.85% 2.02%
Return on average equily .. ... ... e 18.6 22.2
EffiCionCy ratio . ... 50.4 47.8
Banking efficiency ratio(C) . ... o 46.6 419

(a) The Company analyzes its performance on a net income basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, as well as on an operating basis
before merger and restructuring-related items referred to as '‘operating earnings.” Operating earnings are presented as supplemental information to enhance the readers’
understanding of, and hightight trends in, the Company’s financial results excluding the impact of merger and restructuring-related items of specific business acquisitions and
restructuring activities. Operating earnings should not be viewed as a substitute for net income and earnings per share as determined in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted fn the United States. Merger and restructuring-refated items excluded from net income to derive operating earnings may be significant and may not be

comparable to othsr companies.
(b) Dividends per share have not been restated for the 2001 merger of Firstar and USBM.
(c) Without investment banking and brokerage activity.
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improvements reflected core business growth, product
enhancements, loan conduit activities and strong mortgage
originations. Capital markets-related revenue declined
$31.6 million (12.0 percent) reflecting softness in equity
capital markets since late 2000. Other income declined
$99.6 million from the same quarter a year ago primarily
due to a $10.0 million retail lease residual impairment
recognized in the fourth quarter of 2001 and a decline in
the level of equity investment earnings.

Fourth quarter noninterest expense totaled
$1,644.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2001 compared
with $1,431.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2000.
Excluding merger-related charges, noninterest expense
totaled $1,503.9 million, an increase of $156.1 million
(11.6 percent) from the fourth quarter of 2000.
Approximately $100 million of the increase was the result
of acquisitions. In addition to the impact of acquisitions,
noninterest expenses were higher due to recognizing a
$27.3 million MSR impairment in the fourth quarter of
2001 and increases due to core business growth, offset
somewhat by a reduction in expenses related to capital
markets activities.

LINE OF BUSINESS FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating segments are components of the Company about
which financial information is available and is evaluated
regularly in deciding how to allocate resources and assess
performance. Prior to the merger of Firstar and USBM, the
Company operated its business units separately in 2000 and
1999 and the basis of financial presentation differed
significantly. Accordingly, the presentation of comparative
business line results for 1999 is not practicable at this time.

At the date of the merger of Firstar and USBM, the
Company reorganized into the following operating
segments: Wholesale Banking, Consumer Banking, Private
Client, Trust and Asset Management, Payment Services,
Capital Markets, and Treasury and Corporate Support.
Units providing central support and other corporate
activities are reported as part of Treasury and Corporate
Support and allocated as appropriate. For detailed
descriptions of these operating segments see “BUSINESS
SEGMENTS” in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Basis of Financial Presentation Business line results are
derived from the Company’s business unit profitability
reporting system by specifically attributing managed balance
sheet assets, deposits and other Habilities and their related
interest income or expense. Funds transfer pricing
methodologies are utilized to allocate a cost for funds used
or credit for funds provided to all business line assets and
liabilities using a matched funding concept. Also, the
business unit is allocated the taxable-equivalent benefit of

tax-exempt products. The provision for credit losses
recorded by each operating segment was primarily based on
the net charge-offs of each line of business. The difference
between the provision for credit losses determined in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States recognized by the Company on a
consolidated basis and the provision recorded by the
business lines is recorded in Treasury and Corporate
Support. Noninterest income and expenses directly managed
by each business line, including fees, service charges, salaries
and benefits, and other direct expenses are accounted for
within each segment’s financial results in a manner similar
to the consolidated financial statements. Noninterest
expenses incurred by centrally managed operations or a
business line that directly supports another business line’s
operations are not charged to the applicable business line.
Income taxes are assessed to each line of business at a
standard tax rate with the residual tax expense or benefit to
arrive at the consolidated effective tax rate included in
Treasury and Corporate Support. Merger and restructuring-
related items are not identified by or allocated to lines of
business. Because capital levels are evaluated and managed
centrally, capital is not allocated to the business units.
Designations, assignments and allocations may change from
time to time as management accounting systems are
enhanced or product lines change. During 2001, certain
organization and methodology changes were made to reflect
the merger. All results for 2001 and 2000 have been
restated to present consistent methodologies for all business
lines.

Wholesale Banking offers lending, depository, treasury
management and other financial services to middle market,
large corporate and public sector clients. Wholesale
Banking contributed $1,364.4 million of the Company’s
pre-tax income in 2001, compared with $1,667.3 million in
2000, a decrease of $302.9 million (18.2 percent). The
decline was primarily driven by an increase in the provision
for credit losses and certain asset write-downs taken by the
business line. The line of business generated operating
income of $1,956.8 million in 2001 and $1,827.8 million in
2000, a 7.1 percent increase. Total net revenue grew by
$175.9 million (8.0 percent) in 2001. Net interest income
on a taxable-equivalent basis increased 4.7 percent for the
year primarily due to core deposit growth, as well as the
impact of banking and equipment finance leasing
acquisitions. The increase is offset somewhat by the transfer
of short-term, high credit quality, low margin commercial
loans to the loan conduit and the impact of declining rates
on the funding benefit of deposits. Noninterest income
increased 19.4 percent in 2001 reflecting revenue related to
the leasing acquisitions, core growth in syndication and cash
management-related fees and growth in securitization fee
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income related to the loan conduit. Net fee income growth
included a $6.0 million impairment of commercial leasing
residuals and lower earnings of approximately $33.4 million
from relationship-based equity investments managed by the
line of business. Offsetting the net growth in revenue was
an increase in noninterest expenses of $46.9 million

(12.9 percent), primarily due to bank and lease
acquisitions, planned growth in targeted markets and certain
asset write-downs. Included in expenses during the year
were asset write-downs of commercial leasing partnerships
of $38.4 million and repossessed tractor/trailer and other
related property of $14.0 million. Cost savings from
business integration activities during 2001 substantively
offset the core and acquisition-related expense growth.
Additionally, the provision for credit losses increased
$431.9 million during 2001. The increase reflected
increasing net charge-offs due to the deterioration in credit
quality reflected by an increase in nonperforming
commercial loans. Refer to “Corporate Risk Profile” on
pages 29 through 36 for further information on factors
impacting the credit quality of the loan portfolios.

Consumer Banking delivers products and services to the
broad consumer market and small businesses through

banking offices, telemarketing, on-line services, direct mail
and automated teller machines (“ATMs”). It encompasses
community banking, metropolitan banking, small business
banking, consumer lending, mortgage banking and
investment product sales. Consumer Banking contributed
$1,866.4 million of the Company’s pre-tax income in 2001
compared with $2,039.4 million in 2000, a decrease of

8.5 percent. The decline was driven by the impact of
declining rates on the funding benefit of deposits, an
increase in the provision for credit losses, banking
acquisitions and certain asset write-downs taken by the
Company. The line of business generated operating income
of $2,287.7 million in 2001, a decline of 4.2 percent from
2000. Total net revenue grew by 1.3 percent during 2001,
or $53.9 million over 2000. Fee-based revenue growth was
strong, increasing by 19.0 percent over 2000, while net
interest income declined 4.7 percent. The decline in net
interest income reflected the impact of declining interest
rates on the funding benefit of consumer deposits. It also
reflects the sale of approximately $1.3 billion of high LTV
home equity and indirect automobile loans in the first
quarter of 2001, and the divestiture of branches with
$771.0 million of deposits during the second quarter of
2001 in connection with the merger of Firstar and USBM.

EETIC¥ XN Line of Business Financial Performance

Average Balance Sheet Data

Operating earnings, before merger and restructuring-refated items . .................. .. $ 867.9 $1,0605

Merger and restructuring-related items (after-tax)(a) ............... ..

Netincome ... . .. e

LOaNS

Noninterest-bearing deposits .......... ... ... o
Interest-bearing deposits .............. ... ..

Total AEPOSIES . . oot e e e e $17,223 $ 14,372 19.8

Wholesale Consumer
Banking Banking
Percent Percent
Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 Change 2001 2000 Change
Condensed Income Statement
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis)................. . ... ... . $1,774.4 $1,695.0 4.7%| $2,895.1 $3,039.3 (4.7%)
Noninterest iINCOME ... .. . e e 594.2 497.7 19.4 1,2426 10445 19.0
Total Net FEVENUE. . ... e 23686 2,192.7 8.0 4137.7 4,083.8 1.3
NONINtEreSt @XPENSE . ..o e 397.9 355.6 11.9 1,685.3 1,6287 3.5
Other intangible amortization . ...... ... ... .. 14 1.3 7.7 150.4 62.3 *
Goodwill amortization ... . ... ... 12.5 8.0 56.3 14.3 4.4 *
Total NONINTErest EXPENSE . ...\t et 411.8 364.9 12.9 1,850.0 1,6954 9.1
Operating INCOME . .. ... e e 1,956.8 1,827.8 71 2,287.7 2,388.4 (4.2)
Provision for credit [0SSeS . ... ... 592.4 160.5 * 421.3 349.0 20.7
Income before income taxes............ ... 1,3644 16673 (182) | 1,866.4 2,039.4 (8.5)
Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment ............. ... 496.5 606.8 (18.2) 679.2 7421 (8.5)

(18.2) | $1,187.2 $1,297.3  (8.5)

............ $ 54,036 $55,106 (1.9) | $43,017 $ 42,306 1.7
............ 60,174 60,296 (.2) 49,919 47,943 4.1
............ 10,687 9,434 13.3 11,999 11,935 5
............ 6,536 4938 324 61,358 62,266 (1.5)

$ 73,357 $74,201 (1.1)

(a) Merger and restructuring-refated items are not allocated to the business lines.
* Not meaningful.
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The decline was partially offset by a funding benefit of
deposits related to the acquisition of 41 branches in
Tennessee. Growth in fee-based revenue was primarily
attributed to an increase in retail deposit and cash
management fees, mortgage banking originations, the
alignment and redesign of products and features in
connection with the merger of Firstar and USBM, and fee
revenue related to the Tennessee branch acquisition. Fee
income growth for 2001 was tempered somewhat by the
recognition of an impairment of retail leasing residuals of
$40.0 million during the third and fourth quarters. Consumer
Banking results reflect an increase in noninterest expense of
$154.6 million (9.1 percent) primarily related to impairments
of MSRs of $60.8 million and the Tennessee branch
acquisition. Additionally, the provision for credit losses
increased $72.3 million (20.7 percent) during the year. The
increase reflects deterioration in asset quality, higher
consumer bankruptcies and economic trends impacting the
business unit’s loan and retail leasing portfolios.

Private Client, Trust and Asset Management provides
mutual fund processing services, trust, private banking and

financial advisory services through four businesses,

including: the Private Client Group, Corporate Trust Services,

Institutional Trust and Custody, and Fund Services.

The business segment also offers investment management
setvices to several client segments including mutual funds,
institutional customers, and private asset management.
Private Client, Trust and Asset Management contributed
$641.3 million of the Company’s pre-tax income in 2001
compared with $649.2 million in 2000, a 1.2 percent
decline. Growth in net interest income during 2001
compared with 2000, was driven by core loan and deposit
growth partially offset by the impact of declining rates on
the funding benefit of deposits. Noninterest income
declined 3.5 percent during 2001 compared with a year ago
primarily due to trust and investment management fees
being adversely affected by the current capital markets
conditions. Noninterest expense decreased 2.3 percent
($11.1 million) in 2001. Cost savings related to integration
activities primarily drove the decline in noninterest expense.

Payment Services includes consumer and business credit
cards, corporate and purchasing card services, consumer
lines of credit, ATM processing and merchant processing.
Payment Services contributed $724.3 million of the
Company’s pre-tax income in 2001 compared with

$708.6 million in 2000, a 2.2 percent increase. The business
unit’s financial results were, in part, impacted by an increase
in the provision for credit losses and the NOVA acquisition

Private Client, Trust Payment Capital Treasury and Consolidated
and Asset Management Services Markets Caorporate Support Company
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
2001 2000 Change 2001 2000 Change 2001 2000 Change 2001 2000 Change 2001 2000 Change
$ 2444 % 2236 9.3% % 4596 § 428.6 72%| % 178 % 249 (285)%| $10734 § 7236 483% | % 6,464.7 $ 6,135.0 5.4%
876.3 908.1 (3.5) 1,289.0 1,080.8 19.3 831.2 1,097.6 (24.3) 463.9 2547 821 5,297.2 4,883.2 8.5
1,120.7 1,131.7 (1.0) 1,748.6 1,509.2 15.9 849.0 1,1225 (244) 1,537.3 978.3 571 11,7619 11,018.2 6.7
448.2 459.4 (2.4) 525.2 4128 272 738.2 907.4 (18.6) 1,334.5 11,2121 101 51293 49760 31
20.8 20.7 5 55.4 23.8 * —_ A —_ 50.4 49.1 2.6 278.4 157.3 77.0
4 4 — 11.9 11.4 4.4 A .7 (85.7) 211.9 210.1 .9 251.1 235.0 6.9
469.4 480.5 (2.3) 592.5 448.0 323 738.3 908.2 (18.7) 1,596.8 1,471.3 8.5 r 5,658.8 5,368.3 5.4
651.3 651.2 —_ 11561 1,0861.2 8.9 110.7 2143 (48.3) (59.5) (493.0) (87.9) 6,103.1 5,649.9 8.0
10.0 2.0 * 4318 3526 225 17.6 — * 673.5 (36.1) * 2,146.6 828.0 *
641.3 649.2 (1.2) 724.3 708.6 2.2 93.1 2143 (56.6) (733.0) (456.9) 60.4 3,956.5 48219 (17.9)
233.4 236.2 (1.2) 263.6 257.9 2.2 33.9 78.0 (56.5) (300.9) (206.0) 46.1 L 1,405.7 1,715.0 (18.0)
$ 4079 % 4130 (1.2)|$ 4607 $ 4507 22 |$592% 1363 (56.6) | $(432.1)% (250.9) 722 25508 3,068 (17.9)
(844.3) (231.3)
L$ 1,706.5 $ 2,875.6
$ 4370 % 3,794 152 | $ 9,972 % 9,531 46 |$ 483 % 263 837 § 6,299 % 7,317 (13.9) E118,177 $118,317 (.1)
5,424 5,130 57 12,142 10,652 14.0 3,478 3,394 25 34,807 31,066 12.0 165,944 158,481 4.7
2,134 2,119 N4 168 188 (10.6) 174 154 13.0 (53) (10) * 25,109 23,820 5.4
4,916 4722 4.1 — —_ — — — — 7,037 7,680 (8.4) 79,847 79,606 3
$ 7,050 $ 6,841 3.1 $ 168 $ 188 (10.6) | 174 % 154 13.0 $ 6984 8 7,670 (8.9)JJ§ 104,956 $ 103,426 1.5
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completed during the third quarter of 2001. The line of
business generated operating income of $1,156.1 million in
2001, an 8.9 percent increase compared with 2000. Total
net revenue growth was 15.9 percent, or $239.4 million,
compared with 2000 including the impact of the NOVA
acquisition of $134.3 million. Excluding the NOVA
acquisitions, total net revenue growth was approximately
7.0 percent. Total net revenue growth was partially offset
by increased in noninterest expense of 32.3 percent,
primarily driven by the NOVA acquisition. Excluding the
impact of the NOVA acquisition, noninterest expenses for
the business line were essentially flat relative to a year ago.
Additionally, the provision for credit losses increased
$79.2 million (22.5 percent) in 2001. The increase in
provision reflects deterioration in delinquencies, higher
bankruptcies and credit losses in the credit card portfolio
and the economic slowdown impacting consumers.

Capital Markets cngages in equity and fixed income trading
activities, offers investment banking and underwriting services
for corporate and public sector customers and provides
financial advisory services and securities, mutual funds,
annuities and insurance products to consumers and
regionally based businesses through a network of brokerage
offices. Capital Markets contributed $93.1 million of the
Company’s pre-tax income in 2001, compared with

$214.3 million in 2000, a decrease of 56.6 percent. The
unfavorable variance in pre-tax income from 2000 was due
to significant decreases in fees related to trading, investment
product fees and commissions and investment banking
revenues reflecting the recent adverse capital markets
conditions. In response to significant changes in the securities
markets including increased volatility, changes in equity
valuations, a slowdown in the market for new and secondary
issuances of equity and the increasingly competitive
environment for the industry, U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray
restructured its operations during 2001. Additionally, in June
2001, the Company decided to discontinue its U.S. Bancorp
Libra operations, a business unit that specialized in
underwriting and trading high-yield debt and mezzanine
securities. These restructuring activities are expected to
improve operating efficiency of the business unit by removing
excess capacity from the product distribution system and
brokerage operations.

Treasury and Corporate Support includes the Company’s
investment and residential mortgage portfolios, funding,
capital management and asset securitization activities,
interest rate risk management, the net effect of transfer
pricing related to loan and deposit balances, and the change
in residual allocations associated with the provision for loan
losses. It also includes business activities managed on a -
corporate‘basis, including income and expense of enterprise-

U.S. Bancorp

wide operations and administrative support functions.
Treasury and Corporate Support recorded a pre-tax loss of
$733.0 million in 2001, compared to a loss of

$456.9 million in 2000. The incremental loss was driven by
an increase in the provision for credit losses, lower earnings
from equity investments and non-recurring gains from the
disposal of ofhce buildings in 2000. During 2001, total net
revenue was $1,537.3 million compared with $978.3 million
a year ago. The $559.0 million increase was primarily due
10 an increase in average investment securities and the
residual benefit of declining interest rates given the
Company’s interest rate risk management position. Also
included in 2001 were approximately $289.8 million of
securities gains compared with $8.1 million in 2000, offset
somewhat by lower earnings from equity investments of
$78.0 million and gains from the disposal of office buildings
in 2000. Noninterest expenses were $1,596.8 million in
2001 compared with $1,471.3 million for the same period
of 2000. The increase was primarily related to core business
operations and higher costs related to increased affordable
housing projects. Provision for credit losses for this business
unit represents the residual aggregate of the credit losses
allocated to the reportable business units (based on net
charge-offs for the accounting period) and the Company’s
recorded provision determined in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States.
Provision for credit losses for the year ended December 31,
2001, was $673.5 million compared with a net recovery of
$36.1 million in 2000. The change in the provision reflects
the Company’s decision in the third quarter of 2001 to
increase the allowance for credit losses in light of recent
events, declining economic conditions and deterioration in
the credit quality of the loan portfolio from a year ago.
Refer to “Corporate Risk Profile” for further information
on provision for credit losses, nonperforming assets and
factors considered by the Company in assessing the credit
quality of the loan portfolio and establishing the aliowance
for credit losses.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 133 (“SFAS 133”), “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended, establishes
accounting and reporting standards for all derivative
instruments and criteria for designation and effectiveness of
hedging activities. SFAS 133 requires that an entity recognize
all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance
sheet and measure those instruments at fair value, The
changes in the fair value of the derivatives are recognized
currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria
are met. If the derivative qualifies as a hedge, the accounting
treatment varies based on the type of risk being hedged. On




January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS 133. Transition
adjustments related to adoption resulted in an after-tax loss
of approximately $4.1 million recorded in net income and an
after-tax increase of $5.2 million to other comprehensive
income. The transition adjustments related to adoption were
not material to the Company’s financial statements, and as
such, were not separately reported in the consolidated
statement of income.

Accounting for Business Combinations and Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets In June 2001, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141 (“SFAS 141”), “Business
Combinations” and Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 142 (“SFAS 142”), “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”. SFAS 141 mandates the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001, and establishes specific criteria
for the recognition of intangible assets separately from
goodwill. SFAS 142 addresses the accounting for goodwill
and intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition. The
Company is required to adopt SFAS 142 on January 1,
2002. The most significant changes made by SFAS 142 are
that goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets will no
longer be amortized and will be tested for impairment at
least annually, thereafter. Any impairment charges from the
initial impairment test at the time of adoption would be
recognized as a “cumulative effect of change in accounting
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principles” in the income statement. The amortization
provisions of SFAS 142 apply to goodwill and intangible
assets acquired after June 30, 2001. With respect to
goodwill and intangible assets acquired prior to July 1,
2001, the amortization provisions of SFAS 142 are effective
upon adoption of SFAS 142.

The Company will apply the amortization provisions of
SFAS 142 during the first quarter of 2002. Management
anticipates that applying the provisions of SFAS 141 to recent
acquisitions and the provisions of SFAS 142 to purchase
acquisitions completed prior to July 1, 2001, will increase
after-tax income for the year ending December 31, 2002, by
approximately $200 to $210 million, or $.10 per diluted share.
This considers the application of SFAS 142’s definition of a
business and the impact of reclassifying certain assets from
goodwill to intangibles and changes in estimated useful lives of
certain intangible assets. The Company has not vet fully
determined the impact on earnings of impairments related to
goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets under the new
guidelines required by SFAS 142. Any material impairment
charge resuiting from these transitional accounting rules will
be reflected as a “cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principles” in the first quarter of 2002. Because banking
regulations exclude 100 percent of goodwill from the
determination of capital adequacy, the impact of any
impairment on the Company’s capital adequacy will not be
significant.
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Responsibility for Financial
Statements of U.S. Bancorp

Responsibility for the financial statements and other
information presented throughout the Annual Report on
Form 10-K rests with the management of U.S. Bancorp. The
Company believes that the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States and present fairly the
substance of transactions based on the circumstances and
management’s best estimates and judgment. All financial
information throughout the Annual Report on Form 10-K is
consistent with that in the financial statements.

In meeting its responsibilities for the reliability of the financial
statements, the Company depends on its system of internal
controls. The system is designed to provide reasonable assurance
that assets are safeguarded and transactions are executed in
accordance with the appropriate corporate authorization and
recorded properly to permit the preparation of the financial
statements. To test compliance, the Company carries out an
extensive audit program. This program includes a review for
compliance with written policies and procedures and a
comprehensive review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control systems. Although control procedures are
designed and tested, it must be recognized that there are limits
inherent in all systems of internal accounting control and, as
such, errors and irregularities may nevertheless occur. Also,
estimates and judgments are required to assess and balance the
relative cost and expected benefits of the controls. The
Company believes that its system of internal controls provides
reasonable assurance that errors or irregularities that could be
material to the financial statements are prevented or would be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions.

The Board of Directors of the Company has an Audit
Committee composed of directors who are not officers or
employees of U.S. Bancorp. The committee meets periodically
with management, the internal auditors and the independent
accountants to consider audit results and to discuss internal
accounting control, auditing and financial reporting matters.

The Company’s independent accountants,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have been engaged to render
an independent professional opinion on the financial
statements and to assist in carrying out certain aspects of the
audit program described above. Their opinion on the financial
statements is based on procedures conducted in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
and forms the basis for their report as to the fair
presentation, in the financial statements, of the Company’s
financial position, operating results and cash flows.

% /{‘2‘//‘ o

David M. Moffett
Vice Chairman and
Chief Financial Officer

Jerry A. Grundhofer
President and
Chief Executive Officer

U.S. Bancorp

Report of Independent
Accountants

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of U.S. Bancorp:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
and the related consolidated statements of income,
shareholders” equity and cash flows present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of U.S. Bancorp and
its subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of
these statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
January 15, 2002




Consolidated Balance Sheet

At December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000
Assets
Cash and due from BanKs . ... .. ... . $ 9,120 $ 8,475
Money market INVeSIMENES .. .. ... .. e 625 657
Trading @CCOUNE SECUIITIES . . . .. ottt et e e e e 982 753
Investment securities
Held-to-maturity (fair value $306 and $257, respectively) ... ... . i 299 252
AVaIlADIE-Or-SalE . . . . 26,309 17,390
Loans held for Sale .. .. e 2,820 764
Loans
COMMEICIAl . . o e e e e e e 46,330 52,817
Commercial real EStale . ... ... e 25,373 26,443
Residential MOrtgageS . ... e e 5,746 7,753
Rl . . o e e e 36,956 35,352
T Otal I0ANS .. e e 114,405 122,365
Less allowance for credit I0SSeS ... ... e e 2,457 1,787
N OaNS . . 111,948 120,578
PremiSes and BOUIDMIENt . . . e e 1,741 1,836
Customers’ liability On @CCePtaNCES . ... .. 178 183
GOOAWIll L 5,488 4,312
Other INtaNgIDIE B8 SO . . . .o e e 1,924 997
OFNBr A8SBS . . o e 9,956 8,724
Ol BSOS oo $171,390 $164,921
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Deposits
N OIS - D ANING . . . o et e $ 31,212 $ 26,633
1) =1 =13 oYY 5 T P 65,447 68,177
Time certificates of depos‘it greater than $100,000. . ... ... . o e 8,560 14,725
Total dEPOSIES . . ..o 105,219 109,535
Short-termM DOITOWINGS .. . . oo e e e 14,670 11,833
LONg- e et . . . o 25,716 21,876
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trusts holding solely the junior
subordinated debentures of the parent company ............. . 2,826 1,400
Acceptances OUtSTANAING . . ... . o 178 183
O her Habilities .. . e 6,320 4,926
Total liabilities.............. ... ... S 154,929 149,753
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock, par value $0.01 a share
authorized: 2001 — 4,000,000,000 shares; 2000 — 2,000,000,000 shares
issued: 2001 — 1,972,777,763 shares; 2000 — 1,843,541,593 shares ........ ... .. ..o i 20 19
CapItal SUIDIUS . .o e 4,906 4,276
Retained  arnings .. .. 11,918 11,658
Less cost of common stock in treasury: 2001 — 21,068,251 shares; 2000 — 41,458,159 shares............ (478) (880)
Other COMPrERENSIVE IMCOMIE . . o i et et e et et 95 95
Total shareholders’ equItY . . ... . o 16,461 15,168
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ... .. i $171,390 $164,921

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31 (Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2001 2000 1999

Interest Income

e - T =Y $ 9,4554 $10,562.5 $ 91227
Loans held for sale. .. .. . e 146.9 102.1 103.9
Investment securities
TaXADIE . 1,206.1 1,008.3 1,047 .1
NoON-taxable . ... . e 89.5 140.6 150.1
Money market INVESIMENTS . ... ... .. e e 26.6 53.9 44.9
Trading SECUNLIES .. ... . e 57.5 53.7 45.0
Other INterest INCOME ... ... e 101.6 151.4 113.0
Total interest INCOME. ... . 11,083.6 12,072.5 10,626.7
Interest Expense
DO .o e e s 2,828.1 3,618.8 2,970.0
Short-term BOrTOWINgGS . . . ..o 534.1 781.7 582.4
Long-term debt ... . . . 1,162.7 1,510.4 1,126.8
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trusts holding
solely the junior subordinated debentures of the parentcompany ........................ 148.9 112.0 111.0
Total INterest EXPENSE . ... .. e e e 4,674.8 6,022.9 4,790.3
Net Interest INCOME ... e 6,408.8 6,049.6 5,836.4
Provision for credit 108Ses .. ... ... e 2,528.8 828.0 646.0
Net interest income after provision for creditlosses................. ... ... . 3,880.0 5221.6 5,190.4
Noninterest Income
Credit card fee revenUE . ... .. 7743 761.8 648.2
Merchant and ATM processing revenuUe . ... e 428.8 230.3 189.6
Trust and investment management fees............... . e 894.4 926.2 887.1
Deposit SErVICE Charges . .. ... . 660.86 5511 497.2
Cash management fBeS. .. ... e 347.3 292.4 280.6
Mortgage banking revenue . .. ... .. e 234.0 189.9 190.4
Trading account profits and cCommissions ............ .. i 2218 258.4 222.4
Investment products fees and cCommisSSIONS ... ...ttt 460.1 ’ 466.6 450.8
Investment banking revenuUe ... ... . ... 258.2 360.3 246.6
Commercial ProdUCE TEVENUE . ... ... e e 385.9 304.4 215.7
Securities gains, Net. . ... . . e 329.1 8.1 13.2
Merger and restructuring-related gains......... ... . 62.2 — —
O T 302.9 533.7 403.1
Total NoNINtErest INCOME . ... .o e e e e 5,359.4 4,883.2 4,244.9
Noninterest Expense
SIS .. e e e e 2,347.1 2,427 .1 2,355.3
Employee benefits .. .. e 366.2 399.8 410.1
NEt OCCUPANCY . . . e e e e 417.9 396.9 371.8
Furniture and equUIpmMENnt . . ... . e 305.5 308.2 307.9
COmMmMUNICAtION . ... e e e 1814 138.8 123.4
PO age . . 179.8 174.5 170.7
GOOAWIlL. . e e 2511 235.0 175.8
Other intangible assets ... ... ... . . e 278.4 157.3 154.0
Merger and restructuring-related charges ........... ... ... 946.4 348.7 532.8
O L e 1,331.4 1,130.7 1,059.5
Total NONINtErest BXPENSE . ... . e e e 6,605.2 5,717.0 5,661.3
Income before income taxes ................. B 2,634.2 4,387.8 3,774.0
Applicable INCOME taXeS . . ... . . 9277 15122 1,392.2
Nt INCOME . o e e $ 1,708.5 $ 2,8756 $ 2,381.8
Earnings per Share . ... ... . e $ .89 $ 1.51 3 1.25
Diluted arnings Per Share ... ... ... $ .88 $ 150 $ 128
Average COMMON SNAIES ... .. et e e 1,927.9 1,906.0 1,907.8
Average diluted common Shares. ... ... i 1,939.5 1,918.5 1,930.0

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

Common Other Total
Shares Common Capital Retained Treasury Comprehensive Shareholders’
{Dollars in Milliens) QOutstanding Stock Surplus Earnings Stock tncome Equity
Balance December 31, 1998 ... ... . ... 1,903,461,698 $19.3 $4,338.7 3% 87584 § (755.4) $ 2129 $12,573.9
Netincome . ... ... ... i, 2,381.8 2,381.8
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale . .. (743.9) (743.9)
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized
innetincome.............. ... . .. .. 163.9 163.9
Incometaxes............. ..o el 210.5 2105
Total comprehensive income ........... 2,012.3
Cash dividends declared on common stock . ... (1,090.8) (1,090.8)
Issuance of common stock and treasury shares . . 69,705,239 2 213.8 1,377.0 1,591.0
Purchase of treasury stock ................... (44,636,116) (1,187.9) (1,187.9)
Retirement of treasury stock.................. (.1) (343.8) 344.0 A
Shares reserved to meet deferred
compensation obligations. . ................. (21,643) 2.1 (2.0) 1
Amortization of restricted stock ............... 47.8 ' 47.8
Balance December 31, 1999 ... ... .. .. 1,928,509,178 $19.4 $4,258.6 $10,0494 $ (2243) $(156.6) $13,946.5
Netincome . ... . ... i 2,875.6 2,875.6
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale . .. 436.0 436.0
Foreign currency translation adjustment .... ... (.5) (.5)
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in
netincome ... o i (41.6) (41.6)
Incometaxes...........................L (141.8) (141.8)
Total comprehensive income ........... 3,127.7
Cash dividends declared on common stock . ... (1,267.0) (1,267.0)
Issuance of common stock and treasury shares . . 32,652,574 (35.0) 534.9 489.9
Purchase of treasury stock ................... (58,633,923) (1,182.2) (1,182.2)
Shares reserved to meet deferred
compensation obligations................... (444,395) 8.5 (8.5) —
Amortization of restricted stock ............... 43.5 43.5
Balance December 31, 2000 ..... ... ... 1,902,083,434 $19.4 $4,2756 $11,658.0 $ (880.1) $ 955 $15,168.4
Netincome.... ... ... ... ... it 1,706.5 1,706.5
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale . .. 194.5 194.5
Unrealized gain on derivatives ............. ... 106.0 106.0
Foreign currency translation adjustment ....... (4.0) (4.0)
Realized gain on derivatives .................. 42.4 42.4
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in
netincome ... (333.1) (333.1)
Incometaxes.............. ... e (5.9) (5.9)
Total comprehensive income ........... 1,706.4
Cash dividends declared on common stock . ... (1,446.5) (1,446.5)
Issuance of common stock and treasury shares . . 69,502,689 7 1,383.7 49.3 1,433.7
Purchase of treasury stock ................... (19,743,672) (467.9) (467.9)
Retirement of treasury stock.................. (.4) (823.2) 823.6 —
Shares reserved to meet deferred
compensation obligations................... (132,939) 3.0 (3.0) —
Amortization of restricted stock ............... 67.1 67.1
Balance December 31, 2001 ... .. ... .. 1,951,709,512 $19.7 $4,906.2 $11,918.0 § (478.1) $ 954

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

$16,461.2
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Operating Activities

NEE INCOME .« ot e e e $ 17065 $ 28756 $ 2,381.8
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Provision for credit [0SSES .. ... ... . e 2,528.8 828.0 646.0
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment ..................... ... ... 284.0 262.6 270.6
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles. .................... ... 529.5 3923 329.8
Provision for deferred inCome taxes . . ... ... i (184.0) 357.1 252.9
Net (increase) decrease in trading securities ................. ... oo oo (229.1) (135.6) 65.6
(Gain) loss on sale of securities and other assets, net ................... .. ... ..., (428.7) (47.3) 149.9
Mortgage loans originated for sale in the secondary market ........................... (15,500.2) (5,563.3) (6,117.1)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans .......... ... i i 13,483.0 5,475.0 7,229.3
Other assets and liabilities, net................ ... (7.9) (1.8) (242.2)
Net cash provided by operating activities ................. ... ... ..l 2,181.8 4,442.6 4,966.6
Investing Activities
Securities
SIS i 19,240.2 10,194.0 6,819.7
MU S .. o o 4,572.2 2,127.7 5,290.7
PUI NS S . o (32,278.6) (12,161.3) (9,135.8)
Loans
Sales and securitization ....... e e e e e 7,387.9 6,655.8 5,013.7
PUI NS ES .o (87.5) (688.4) (254.6)
Net increase in 10ans outstanding . ...... ... ..ttt (1,126.5) (13,511.0) (9,880.0)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment . ......... .. ... ... i 166.3 212.9 64.2
Purchases of premises and equipment. . ......... .. i (299.2) (382.8) (289.0)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired . ........ . .. e (741.4) 904 .4 241.9
Divestitures Of Branches . ... . ... . i (340.0) (78.2) (469.0)
OhEr, Net . e e (143.9) (289.1) (961.3)
Net cash used in investing activities. . ... ... . .. e (3,650.5) (7,016.0) (8,559.5)
Financing Activities
Net change in
DSt .t e (4,258.1) 3,403.7 (3,034.9)
SHOMt-termM DO T OWINGS o 5,244.3 702.1 544.9
Principal payments on long-term debt ... .. ... ... . (10,539.6) (5,277.5) (5,706.1)
Proceeds from long-term debt issuance. ......... ... .o i i e 11,702.3 5,862.7 8,067.5
Proceeds from issuance of Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities
of subsidiary trusts holding solely the junior subordinated debentures of the parent
COMPANY ittt e e ettt e e e e e 1,500.0 — —
Proceeds from issuance of COMmMON StOCK ... ..ot 136.4 210.0 275.5
Repurchase of COMMON StOCK ... .. . e e (467.9) (1,182.2) (1,187.9)
Cash dividends paid. ... ... (1,235.1) (1,271.3) (1,029.7)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities................ ... ... ... ... 2,082.3 2,447.5 (2,070.7)
Change in cash and cash equivalents .......... . ... .. i i 613.7 (125.9) (663.6)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year ........... ... ... ... o i 9,131.6 9,257.5 9,921.1
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ............ . ... .. il $ 97453 $ 9,131.6 $ 9,257.5

See Notes to Consofidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ETITE] Significant Accounting Policies

U.S. Bancorp and its subsidiaries (the “Company”)compose
the organization created by the acquisition by Firstar
Corporation (“Firstar”) of the former U.S. Bancorp
(“USBM”). The new Company retained the U.S. Bancorp
name. The Company is a multi-state financial services
holding company headquartered in Minneapolis, Minnesota.
The Company provides a full range of financial services
including lending and depository services through banking
offices principally in 24 states. The Company also engages in
credit card, merchant, and ATM processing, mortgage
banking, insurance, trust and investment management,
brokerage, leasing and investment banking activities
principally in domestic markets.

Basis of Presentation The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The consolidation eliminates all significant
intercompany accounts and transactions. Certain items in
prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the
current presentation.

Uses of Estimates The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual experience could differ
from those estimates.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Within the Company, financial performance is measured by
major lines of business based on the products and services
provided to customers through its distribution channels.
The Company has six reportable operating segments:

Wholesale Banking offers lending, depository, treasury
management and other financial services to middle market,
large corporate and public sector clients.

Consumer Banking delivers products and services to the
broad consumer market and small businesses through
banking offices, telemarketing, on-line services, direct mail
and automated teller machines (“ATMs”). It encompasses
community banking, metropolitan banking, small business
banking, consumer lending, mortgage banking, and
investment product sales.

Private Client, Trust and Asset Management provides
mutual fund processing services, trust, private banking and
financial advisory services through four businesses including:
the Private Client Group, Corporate Trust Services,

Institutional Trust and Custody and Fund Services. The business
segment also offers investment management services to
several client segments including mutual funds, institutional
customers, and private asset management.

Payment Services includes consumer and business credit
cards, corporate and purchasing card services, consumer
lines of credit, ATM processing and merchant processing.

Capital Markets engages in equity and fixed income
trading activities, offers investment banking and
underwriting services for corporate and public sector
customers and provides financial advisory services and
securities, mutual funds, annuities and insurance products to
consumers and regionally based businesses through a
network of brokerage ofhices.

Treasury and Corporate Support includes the
Company’s investment and residential mortgage portfolios,
funding, capital management and asset securitization
activities, interest rate risk management, the net effect of
transfer pricing related to loan and deposit balances, and
the change in residual allocations associated with the
provision for loan losses. It also includes business activities
managed on a corporate basis, including income and
expense of enterprise-wide operations and administrative
support functions.

Segment Results Accounting policies for the lines of
business are the same as those used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements with respect to activities
specifically attributable to each business line. However, the
preparation of business line results requires management to
establish methodologies to allocate funding costs and
benefits, expenses and other financial elements to each line
of business. For details of these methodologies and segment
results, see “‘Basis for Financial Presentation” on page 43
and Table 21 “Line of Business Financial Performance”
included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis which is
incorporated by reference into these Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

SECURITIES

Trading Account Securities Debt and equity securities
held for resale are classified as trading account securities
and reported at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains or
losses are determined on a trade date basis and reported in

noninterest income.

Available-for-sale Securities These securities are not
trading account securities but may be sold before maturity
in response to changes in the Company’s interest rate risk
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profile or demand for collateralized deposits by public
entities. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value
with unrealized net gains or losses reported within other
comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. When sold,
the amortized cost of the specific securities is used to
compute the gain or loss.

Held-to-maturity Securities Debt securities for which the
Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity are reported at historical cost adjusted for

amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts.
LOANS

Loans are reported net of unearned income. Interest income
is accrued on the unpaid principal balances as earned. Loan
and commitment fees are deferred and recognized over the
life of the loan and/or commitment period as yield
adjustments.

Allowance for Credit Losses Management determines the
adequacy of the allowance for credit losses based on
evaluations of the loan portfolio, recent loss experience,
and other pertinent factors, including economic conditions.
This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires
estimates, including amounts of future cash collections
expected on nonaccrual loans, that may be susceptible to
significant change. The allowance for credit losses relating
to impaired loans is based on the loan’s observable market
price, the collateral for certain collateral-dependent loans,
or the discounted cash flows using the loan’s effective
interest rate.

The Company determines the amount of the allowance
required for certain sectors based on relative risk
characteristics of the loan portfolio. The allowance
recorded for commercial loans is based on quarterly reviews
of individual credit relationships and an analysis of the
migration of commercial loans and actual loss experience.
The allowance recorded for homogeneous consumer loans
is based on an analysis of product mix, risk characteristics
of the portfolio, fraud loss and bankruptcy experiences, and
historical losses, adjusted for current trends, for each
homogenous category or group of loans. The allowance is
increased through provisions charged to operating earnings
and reduced by net charge-offs. ‘

Nonaccrual Loans Generally commercial loans (including
impaired loans) are placed on nonaccrual status when the
collection of interest or principal has become 90 days past
due or is otherwise considered doubtful. When a loan is
placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest is reversed.
Future interest payments are generally applied against
principal. Revolving consumer lines and credit cards are
charged off by 180 days past due and closed-end consumer
loans other than loans secured by 1-4 family properties are
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charged off at 120 days past due and are, therefore, not

placed on nonaccrual status.

Impaired Loans A loan is considered to be impaired
when, based on current information and events, it is
probable that the Company will be unable to collect all
amounts due (both interest and principal) according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement.

Leases The Company engages in both direct and leveraged
lease financing. The net investment in direct financing leases
is the sum of all minimum lease payments and estimated
residual values, less unearned income. Unearned income is
added to interest income over the terms of the leases to
produce a level yield.

The investment in leveraged leases is the sum of all
lease payments (less nonrecourse debt payments) plus
estimated residual values, less unearned income. Income
from leveraged leases is recognized over the term of the
leases based on the unrecovered equity investment.

Loans Held for Sale Loans held for sale {(“LHFS”)
represent mortgage loan originations intended to be sold in
the secondary market and other loans that management has
an active plan to sell. LHFS are carried at the lower of cost
or market value as determined on an aggregate basis by type
of loan. In the event management decides to sell loans
receivable, the loans are transferred at the lower of cost or
fair value. Any credit-related loss at the time of transfer is
recorded as a reduction in the allowance for credit losses.
Subsequent decreases in fair value are recognized in
noninterest income.

Other Real Estate Other real estate (“ORE”), which is
included in other assets, is property acquired through
foreclosure or other proceedings. ORE is carried at the
lower of cost or fair value, less estimated selling costs. The
property is evaluated regularly and any decreases in the
carrying amount are included in noninterest expense.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into
derivative transactions to manage its market and
prepayment risks and to accommodate the business
requirements of its customers. All derivative instruments are
recorded as either assets or liabilities at fair value.
Subsequent changes in a derivative’s fair value are
recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge
accounting criteria are met.

All derivative instruments that qualify for specific hedge
accounting are recorded at fair value and classified either as
a hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability
(“fair value” hedge) or as a hedge of the variability of cash
flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or
liability or a forecasted transaction (“cash flow” hedge).




Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly
effective and designated as a fair value hedge and the
offsetting changes in the fair value of the hedged item are
recorded in income. Changes in the fair value of a
derivative that is highly effective and designated as a cash
flow hedge are recognized in other comprehensive income
until income from the cash flows of the hedged item are
recognized. The Company performs an assessment, both at
the inception of the hedge and on a quarterly basis
thereafter, to determine whether these derivatives are highly
effective in offsetting changes in the value of the hedged

- items. Any change in fair value resulting from hedge
ineffectiveness is immediately recorded in noninterest
Income.

If a derivative designated as a hedge is terminated or
ceases to be highly effective, the gain or loss is amortized to
earnings over the remaining life of the hedged asset or
liability (fair value hedge) or over the same period(s) that
the forecasted hedged transactions impact earnings (cash
flow hedge). If the hedged item is disposed of, or the
forecasted transaction is no longer probable, the derivative
is recorded at fair value with any resulting gain or loss
included in the gain or loss from the disposition of the
hedged item or, in the case of a forecasted transaction that
is no longer probable, included in earnings immediately.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT POLICIES

Premises and Equipment Premises and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and depreciated
primarily on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of
the assets.

Capital leases, less accumulated amortization, are
included in premises and equipment. The lease obligations
are included in long-term debt. Capitalized leases are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term and
the amortization is included in depreciation expense.

Mortgage Servicing Rights Mortgage servicing rights
associated with loans originated and sold, where servicing is
retained, are capitalized and included in other intangible
assets in the consolidated balance sheet. The value of these
capitalized servicing rights is amortized in proportion to,
and over the period of, estimated net servicing revenue and
recorded in noninterest expense as amortization of
intangible assets. The carrying value of these rights is
periodically reviewed for impairment based on fair value.
For purposes of measuring impairment, the servicing rights
are stratified based on the underlying loan type and note
rate and compared to a valuation prepared based on a

discounted cash flow methodology, utilizing current
prepayment speeds and discount rates. Impairment is
recognized through a valuation allowance for each impaired
stratum and recorded as amortization of intangible assets.

Intangible Assets For all purchase acquisitions completed
prior to July 1, 2001, the price paid over the net fair value
of the acquired businesses (“goodwill”) is amortized over
periods ranging up to 25 years. For purchase acquisitions
completed subsequent to June 30, 2001, goodwill is not
amortized. Other intangible assets are amortized over their
estimated useful lives, which range from seven to fifteen
years, using straight-line and accelerated methods. The
recoverability of goodwill and other intangible assets is
evaluated if events or circumstances indicate a possible
inability to realize the carrying amount. The evaluation
includes assessing the estimated fair value of the intangible
asset based on market prices for similar assets, where
available, and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows associated with the intangible asset.

Income Taxes Deferred taxes are recorded to reflect the
tax consequences on future years of differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and the financial reporting
amounts at each year-end.

Statement of Cash Flows For purposes of reporting cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and money
market investments, defined as interest-bearing amounts due
from banks, federal funds sold and securities purchased
under agreements to resell.

Stock-based Compensation The Company grants stock
options for a fixed number of shares to employees and
directors with an exercise price equal to the fair value of
the shares at the date of grant. The Company accounts for
stock option grants in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees,” (“APB 25”) and accordingly
recognizes no compensation expense for the stock option
grants.

Per Share Calculations Earnings per share is calculated by
dividing net income (less preferred stock dividends) by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting income and outstanding shares, assuming
conversion of all potentially dilutive securities, using the
treasury stock method. All per share amounts have been
restated for stock splits.
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¥ Accounting Changes

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 133 (“SFAS 133”), “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended,
establishes accounting and reporting standards for all
derivative instruments and criteria for designation and
effectiveness of hedging activities. SFAS 133 requires that an
entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities
on the balance sheet and measure those instruments at fair
value. The changes in the fair value of the derivatives are
recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge
accounting criteria are met. If the derivative qualifies as a
hedge, the accounting treatment varies based on the type of
risk being hedged. On January 1, 2001, the Company
adopted SFAS 133. Transition adjustments related to
adoption resulted in an after-tax loss of approximately
$4.1 million recorded in net income and-an after-tax
increase of $5.2 million recorded in other comprehensive
income. The transition adjustments related to adoption
were not material to the Company’s financial statements,
and as such, were not separately reported in the
consolidated statement of income.

Accounting for Business Combinations and Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets In June 2001, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141 (“SFAS 141”), “Business
Combinations™ and Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 142 (“SFAS 142”), “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” SFAS 141 mandates the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001, and establishes specific criteria
for the recognition of intangible assets separately from
goodwill. SFAS 142 addresses the accounting for goodwill
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and intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition. The
Company is required to adopt SFAS 142 on January 1,
2002. The most significant changes made by SFAS 142 are
that goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets will no
longer be amortized and will be tested for impairment at
least annually, thereafter. Any impairment charges from the
initial impairment test at the date of adoption would be
recognized as a “cumulative effect of change in accounting
principles” in the income statement. The amortization
provisions of SFAS 142 apply to goodwill and intangible
assets acquired after June 30, 2001. With respect to
goodwill and intangible assets acquired prior to July 1,
2001, the amortization provisions of SFAS 142 are effective
upon adoption of SFAS 142.

The Company will apply the amortization provisions of
SFAS 142 during the first quarter of 2002. Management
anticipates that applying the provisions of SFAS 141 to
recent acquisitions and the provisions of SFAS 142 to
purchase acquisitions completed prior to July 1, 2001, will
increase after-tax income for the year ending December 31,
2002, by approximately $200 to $210 million, or $.10 per
diluted share. This considers the application of SFAS 142’s
definition of a business and the impact of reclassifying
certain assets from goodwill to intangibles and changes in
estimated useful lives of certain intangible assets. The
Company has not yet fully determined the impact on
earnings of impairments related to goodwill and indefinite
lived intangible assets under the new guidelines required by
SFAS 142. Any material impairment charge resulting from
these transitional accounting rules will be reflected as a
“cumulative effect of a change in accounting principles” in
the first quarter of 2002. Because banking regulations
exclude 100 percent of goodwill from the determination of
capital adequacy, the impact of any impairment on the
Company’s capital adequacy will not be significant.




[TIZE] Business Combinations

On February 27, 2001, Firstar and USBM merged in a
pooling-of-interests transaction and accordingly all financial
information has been restated to include the historical
information of both companies. Each share of Firstar stock
was exchanged for one share of the Company’s common
stock while each share of USBM stock was exchanged for
1.265 shares of the Company’s common stock. The new
Company retained the U.S. Bancorp name.

On September 20, 1999, Firstar and Mercantile
Bancorporation, Inc., (“Mercantile”) merged in a pooling-
of-interests transaction and accordingly all financial
information has been restated to include the historical
information of both companies. Each share of Mercantile
stock was exchanged for 2.091 shares of Firstar common

On July 24, 2001, the Company acquired NOVA
Corporation (“NOVA”), a merchant processor, in a stock
and cash transaction valued at approximately $2.1 billion.
The transaction, representing total assets acquired of
$2.9 billion and total liabilities assumed of $773 million,
was accounted for as a purchase. Included in total assets are
merchant contracts and other intangibles of $650 million
and the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
identifiable net assets (“goodwill”) of $1.6 billion.

In addition to these mergers, the Company has
completed several strategic acquisitions to enhance its
presence in certain growth markets and businesses. The
following table summarizes acquisitions by the Company
and its acquirees completed since January 1, 1999, treating
Firstar as the original acquiring company:

stock.
Goodwill
and Other Cash Paid/ Accounting
(Dollars and Shares in Millions) Date Assets Deposits Intangibles (Received) Shares Issued Method
Pacific Century Bank.................. September 2001 $ 570 $ 712 $ 138 $ (40) — Purchase
NOVA Corporation.................... July 2001 949 — 1,932 842 56.9 Purchase
US.Bancorp.........oovviiniiiaan.. February 2001 86,602 51,335 — — 952.4 Pooling
First Union branches.................. December 2000 450 1,779 347 (1,123) — Purchase
Scripps Financial Corporation.......... October 2000 650 618 113 — 9.4 Purchase
Lyon Financiat Services, Inc............ September 2000 1,289 — 124 307 — Purchase
Oliver-Allen Corporation............... April 2000 280 — 34 — 3.6 Purchase
Peninsula Bank....................... January 2000 49 452 7 — 5.1 Purchase
Western Bancorp ..................... November 1999 2,508 2,105 773 — 35.1 Purchase
Mercantile Bancorporation ............ September 1999 35,520 24,334 — — 331.8 Pooling
Voyager Fleet Systems, Inc. ........... September 1999 43 — 25 27 — Purchase
Bank of Commerce ................... July 1999 638 529 269 — 11.8 Purchase
Mellon Network Services’ Electronic
Funds Transfer Processing Unit ..... June 1999 — — 78 170 — Purchase
Libra Investments, Inc. ................ January 1999 33 — 4 — 1.3 Purchase

Separate results of operations as originally reported on a
condensed basis of Firstar and USBM, for the period prior
to the merger, were as follows:

Year Ended December 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2000 1999
Net interest income
Firstar ... $ 2,699 $ 2643
USBM ....... ... ... ... 3,471 3,261
Total ...................... $ 6,170 $ 5,904
Net income
Firstar ........... oo $ 1,284 $ 875
USBM ... 1,692 1,507
Total ............ ... ..., $ 2,876 $ 2,382
Total assets at year end
Firstar ........coviiii . $ 77,585 $ 72,788
USBM ........ ... 87,336 81,530
Total ...........c.o ool $164,921 $154,318

On January 18, 2002, the Company announced a
definitive agreement to acquire The Leader Mortgage
Company, LLC (“Leader”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
First Defiance Financial Corporation, in a cash transaction.
Leader specializes in acquiring servicing of loans originated
for state and local housing authorities. Leader had
$506 million in assets at December 31, 2001. In 2001, it
had $2.1 billion in mortgage production and an $8.6 billion
servicing portfolio at December 31, 2001. The transaction is
expected to close in the second quarter of 2002.
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X Merger and Restructuring-related
ltems

The Company recorded in pre-tax earnings merger and
restructuring-related items of $1,266.4 million,

$348.7 million and $540.3 million in 2001, 2000, and 1999,
respectively. In 2001, merger-related items were primarily
incurred in connection with the merger of Firstar and
USBM, the NOVA acquisition and the Company’s various

other acquisitions noted below and in Note 3 — Business
Combinations. In response to significant changes in the
securities markets during 2001, including increased '
volatility, declines in equity valuations and the increasingly
competitive environment for the industry, the Company
also incurred a charge to restructure its subsidiary, U.S.
Bancorp PiperJaffray, Inc. (“Piper Restructuring”). The
components of the merger and restructuring-related items
are shown below:

Piper
(Dollars in Millions} UsBM NOVA  Restructuring Mercantile Firstar(a) Other(b) Total
2001
Severance and employee-related. ................ $ 268.2 $23.8 $28.8 $ 13.2 $13 $ 33 $ 338.1
Systems conversions and integration............. 2081 1.6 — 7.3 7 18.0 235.7
Asset write-downs and lease terminations ......... 130.4 34.7 11.9 (.3) 4 5.6 182.7
Charitable contributions ......................... 76.0 — — — — — 76.0
Balance sheet restructurings .................... 457.8 —_ —_ —_ — — 457.6
Branchsalegain ............................... (62.2) —_ — — — — (62.2)
Branch consolidations........................... 20.0 — — —_ — — 20.0
Other merger-related charges ................... 69.1 24.2 10.0 25 8 1.5 108.1
Total 2001 ... $1,167.2 $83.8 $50.7 $ 227 $ 3.2 $ 284 $1,356.0
Provision for creditlosses ....................... $ 3822 — 5§ — $ — 3 — 3 — $ 3822
Noninterest income . ..................... ... ... (62.2) — —_ — — — (62.2)
Noninterest expense .................... ... ..., 847.2 1.6 50.7 227 3.2 21.0 946.4
Merger-related items ............ ... ... 1,167.2 1.6 50.7 ‘ 22.7 3.2 21.0 1,266.4
Balance sheet recognition ....................... — 82.2 — — — 7.4 89.6
Merger-related items — 2001 ................... $1,167.2 $83.8 $50.7 § 22.7 § 3.2 $ 284 $1,356.0
2000
Severance and employee-related................. $ 430 $16.3 $ 1 $ 594
Systems conversions ................ .. 115.2 19.0 59.3 193.5
Asset write-downs and lease terminations ......... 42.7 4.6 — 47.3
Charitable contributions ......................... — — 25 25
Other merger-related charges ................... 26.1 127 7.2 46.0
Total 2000 ... ... $227.0 $52.6 $ 69.1 $ 3487
1999
Severance and employee-related................. $131.0 $10.6 $ 8.0 $ 1496
Systems CONVErsioNS .........ooiveinineenn.ns 19.5 78.9 34.1 1325
Asset write-downs and lease terminations ......... .2 4.4 1.6 6.2
Charitable contributions ......................... 35.0 — — 35.0
Securities losses to restructure portfolio.......... 177.7 —_— — 177.7
Provision for credit losses ....................... 7.5 — — 7.5
Other merger-related charges ................... 46.1 2.0 (16.3) 31.8
Total 1999 ... ... . $417.0 $95.9 $ 274 $ 5403

fa} Represents the 1998 acquisition of the former Firstar Corporation by Star Banc. Star Banc was renamed Firstar Corporation.
{b) in 2001, *'Other” includes merger and restructuring-refated items pertaining to the First Union branch acquisition and the Pacific Century Bank acquisition.

The Company determines merger and restructuring-
related charges and related accruals based on its integration
strategy and formulated plans. These plans are established
as of the acquisition date and regularly evaluated during the
integration process.

Severance and employee-related charges include the
cost of severance, other benefits and outplacement costs
associated with the termination of employees primarily in
branch offices and centralized corporate support and data
processing functions. The severance amounts are
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determined based on the Company’s existing severance pay
programs and are paid out over a benefit period of up to
two years from the time of termination. The total number
of employees included in severance amounts were
approximately 2,820 for USBM, 2,400 for Mercantile, 2,000
for Firstar, 160 for NOVA, 300 for the Piper Restructuring
and 520 for all other acquisitions. Severance and employee-
related costs are included in the determination of goodwill
for groups of acquired employees identified at closing to be
severed. Severance and employee-related costs are recorded




as incurred for groups of employees not specifically
identified at the time of closing or acquired in business
combinations accounted for as “poolings”.

Systems conversion and integration costs are recorded
as incurred and are associated with the preparation and
mailing of numerous customer communications for the
acquisitions and conversion of customer accounts, printing
and distribution of training materials and policy and
procedure manuals, outside consulting fees, and other
expenses related to systems conversions and the integration
of acquired branches and operations.

Asset writedowns and lease terminations represent lease
termination costs and impairment of assets for redundant
office space, branches that will be vacated and equipment
disposed of as part of the integration plan. These costs are
recognized in the accounting period that contract
terminations occur or the asset becomes impaired and is
abandoned.

In connection with certain mergers, the Company has
made charitable contributions to reaffirm a commitment to
its market or as part of specific conditions necessary to
achieve regulatory approval. These contributions were
funded up front and represent costs that would not have
been incurred had the merger not occurred. Charitable
contributions are charged to merger and restructuring
expenses ot considered in determining the acquisition cost
at the applicable closing date.

Balance sheet restructurings primarily represent gains or
losses incurred by the Company related to the disposal of
certain businesses, products, or customer and business
relationships that no longer align with the long-term strategy

of the Company. It may also include charges to realign risk
management practices related to certain credit portfolios. In
connection with the merger of Firstar and USBM, balance
sheet restructuring charges of $457.6 million were comprised
of a $201.3 million provision associated with the Company’s
integration of certain small business products and
management’s decision to discontinue an unsecured small
business product of USBM; $90.0 million of charge-offs to
align risk management practices, align charge-off policies and
to expedite the Company’s transition out of a specific segment
of the healthcare industry; and $76.6 million of losses related
to the sales of two higher credit risk retail loan portfolios of
USBM. Also, the amount included $89.7 million related to the
Company’s decision to discontinue a high-yield investment
banking business, to restructure a co-branding credit card
relationship of USBM, and for the planned disposition of
certain equity investrments that no longer align with the long-
term strategy of the Company. The alignment of risk
management practices included a write-down of several large
commercial loans originally held separately by both Firstar and
USBM, primarily to allow the Company to exit or reduce
these credits to conform with the credit exposure policy of
the combined entity.

Other merger-related expenses of $108.1 million
primarily included $69.1 million and $24.2 million of
investment banking fees, legal fees and stock registration
fees associated with the merger of Firstar and USBM and
the acquisition of NOVA Corporation, respectively. Also, it
included $10.0 million of goodwill impairment related to
the Piper Restructuring and $4.8 million of other costs.

The following table presents a summary of activity with respect to the merger and restructuring-related accruals:

Piper
(Dollars in Millions) usBM NOVA Restructur?ng Mercantile Firstar Other(a) Total
Balance at December 31,1998 .. .......... ... $ — § — $ — $ — $ 125.2 $ 2273 $ 3525
Provision charged to operating expense. ... — — — 417.0 95.9 27.4 540.3
Additions related to purchase acquisitions . . — — — — — 70.2 70.2
Cashoutlays............................ — — — (182.8) (176.5) (148.5) (507.8)
Noncash write-downs and other ........... — —_ —_ (35.3) (44.6) (60.6) (140.5)
Securities losses to restructure portfolio ... — — — (177.7) — — (177.7)
Transfer of tax liability(b)................. — — — — — (33.8) (33.8)
Balance at December 31,1999 . .............. — — — 21.2 — 82.0 103.2
Provision charged to operating expense. ... — — — 227.0 52.6 69.1 348.7
Additions related to purchase acquisition . .. — — — — — 46.0 46.0
Cashoutlays.......... ... ..ol — — — (197.9) (52.8) (117.1) (367.6)
Noncash write-downs and other ........... — — — (50.3) — (30.2) (80.5)
Balance at December 31,2000 ............... — — — — — 49.8 49.8
Provision charged to operating expense. ... 1,167.2 1.6 50.7 22.7 3.2 21.0 1,266.4
Additions related to purchase acquisitions . . — 822 — — — 7.4 89.6
Cashoutlays.............ccoiiiin (532.5) (32.4) (22.3) (23.8) (3.2) (50.6) (664.8)
Noncash write-downs and other . .......... (510.4) (3.0) (10.3) 1.1 — (13.0) (535.6)
Balance at December 31, 2001 ........... .... $ 1243 $ 48.4 $ 18.1 $ — $ — $ 146 $ 2054

(a) “Other” includes the 1997 acquisition of the former U.S. Bancorp of Portland, Oregon by First Bank System, inc. ("FBS”). FBS was renamed U.S. Bancorp. "Cther” also includes the 1998
acquisition of Piper Jaffray, Inc., the 1999 acquisitions of Libra Investments, inc., Bank of Commerce, and Western Bancorp, and the 2000 acquisitions of Peninsula Bank, Oliver-Alien
Corporation, Lyon Financial Services, Inc., Scripps Financial Corporation and 41 branches acquired from First Union. Refer to Note 3 for further information.

(b) The iiability refates te certain severance-related items.
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The adequacy of the accrued liabilities is reviewed reflect a lower utilization of benefits by affected staff,
regularly taking into consideration actual and projected changes in initial assumptions as a result of subsequent
payments. Adjustments are made to increase or decrease mergers and alterations of business plans.
these accruals as needed. Reversals of expenses can

The following table presents a summary of activity with respect to the merger of Firstar and USBM:

Severance Lease Systems

and Cancellation Balance  Conversions

Employee- Investment  and Related Sheet and
(Dollars in Millions) related Banker Fees Writeoffs Restructurings Integration Other(a) Total
Balance at December 31,2000 .............. $ - 3 — 5 — $ - 5 — $§ — $ —
Provision charged to operating expense .. 268.2 66.2 487 457.6 208.1 118.4 1,167.2
Cashoutlays ............ ... ... ... (175.6) (65.7) (5.2) — (208.1) (77.9) (532.5)
Non-cash write-downs and other . ....... (4.3) 3 (10.4) (455.5) — (40.5) (510.4)
Balance at December 31,2001 .............. $ 883 $ 8 $ 33.1 $ 21 $ — § — $ 1243

(a) Other accruable merger and restructuring-related items included charitable contributions of $76.0 million, a branch sale gain of ($62.2) million, $20.0 million to consolidate and
rationalize the branch network, capitalized software impairments of $81.7 million, and other charges of $2.9 miltion.

The components of the merger and restructuring-related In connection with the merger of Firstar and USBM,
accruals for all acquisitions were as follows: management estimates the Company will incur pre-tax

December 31 merger-related charges of approximately $271.1 million in
(Dollars in Miliions ) 2001 2000 2002. These are currently estimated to include $14.0 million
Severance . . ... ..o $106.3 $13.8 in employee-related costs, $170.9 million for conversions of
Other employee-related costs ..... ... 47 6.8 systems and consolidation of operations, $57.8 million in
Lease termination and facility costs ... 64.3 84 occupancy and equipment charges (elimination of duplicate
Contracts and system write-offs .. . . .. 18.3 7.4

facilities and write-off of equipment) and $28.4 million in
Other. ... .o 11.8 13.4

Total ............... . $205.4 $49.8

other merger-related costs (including legal fees, balance

sheet restructuring charges and other costs).

) o With respect to the NOVA acquisition, the Company

The merger and restructuring-related accrual by significant . . s
o ; , expects to incur approximately $68.3 million of merger-
acquisition or business restructuring was as follows: . .
related charges through 2003. The Piper Restructuring was

substantially completed by December 31, 2001. In addition,

December 31

(Dollars in Milions) 2007 2000 the Company anticipates an additional $15.1 million of

USBM ... $124.3 $ — merger-related expenses in 2002 as a result of other

NOVA ... .. 48.4 — C

Piper Jaffray Companies, Inc. ........ 20.8 15.0 acquisitions.

Pacific Century Bank ................ 3.1 —

Lyon FinanciaIyServices, Inc. ......... 1.0 2.7 m Restrictions on Cash and Due from

Western Bancorp.................... — 5.1 Banks

Scripps Financial Corporation ...... .. — 4.6

Bank of Commerce . ... .. ... ... .. _ 41 Bank subsidiaries are required to maintain minimum average

Peninsula Bank ..................... — 3.0 reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank. The

Other acquisitions ................... 7.8 1563 amount of those reserve balances was approximately
Total .. $205.4 $49.8 $916 million at December 31, 2001.
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LT Investment Securities

The detail of the amortized cost, gross unrealized holding gains and losses, and fair value of held-to-maturity and available-
for-sale securities at December 31 was as follows:

2001 2000
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized  Unreaiized Unrealized  Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding Fair Amortized Holding Holding Fair
{Dollars in Millions) Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value
Held-to-maturity -
Asset-backed securities . ............. $ 28 $ — $ — § 28 $ 36 $ — $— §$ 36
Obligations of state and political
subdivisions .......... ... .o 271 9 (2) 278 216 5 — 221
Total held-to-maturity securities..... .. $ 299 $ 9 $ (2) $ 306 $ 252 $ 5 $—~ $§ 257
Available-for-sale
U.S. Treasuries and agencies......... $ 439 $ 10 $ — $§ 448 $ 1,600 $ 27 $(3) $ 1,624
Asset-backed securities.............. 24,028 114 (114) 24,028 11,800 128 (35) 11,893
Obligations of state and political
subdivisions ............... ... 877 16 (2) 891 2,370 41 (2) 2,409
Other ... ... ... .. ... .o 950 35 (44) 941 1,472 21 (29) 1,464
Total available-for-sale securities . . $26,294 $175 $(160) $26,309 $17,242 $217 $(69) $17,390

Securities carried at $18.1 billion at December 31, 2001, and $13.3 billion at December 31, 2000, were pledged to
secure public, private and trust deposits and for other purposes required by law. Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase were collateralized by securities and securities purchased under agreements to resell with an amortized cost of
$3.0 billion and $1.0 billion at December 31, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

The following table provides information as to the amount of gross gains and losses realized through the sales of available-
for-sale investment securities.

(Doliars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Gross realized GaiNs ... .. . vt e $333.1 $ 23.1 $ 311
Gross realized 10SSES (@) . ..ttt (4.0) (15.0) (195.6)
Net realized gains (J0SSES) .. ...t $329.1 $ 81 $(164.5)
Income tax (benefit) on realized gains (10SS€S) ... ... . i i i e $115.2 $ 28 $ (57.9)

(a) Included in the gross realized losses for 1999 is §177.7 million related to the Mercantile balance sheet restructuring. These losses were included in merger and restructuring-
related expense.

For amortized cost, fair value and yield by maturity date of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities outstanding
as of December 31, 2001, see Table 11 included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis which is incorporated by
reference into these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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[ETITXA Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses

The composition of the loan portfolio at December 31 was as follows:

(Doillars in Millions) 2001 2000
Commercial
COMMEICIAL . . . oottt e e e e $ 40,472 $ 47,041
Lease finanCing . ... ... o e 5,858 5776
Total COMMErCIAl .. .. ..o 46,330 52,817
Commercial real estate
Commercial MOMQAGES .. ..o ottt e e e e e 18,765 19,466
Construction and developmMENt. . .. . e 6,608 6,977
Total commercial real @State . ... .. . 25,373 26,443
Residential mortgages ... ... ... . . 5,746 7,753
Retail
Credit Card. ... 5,889 6,012
Retail l8aSINg ..o e 4,906 4153
Other retail
Home equity and second MOrtgage . . ... 14,318 13,600
ReVOIVING Credit . .. ..o e 2,673 2,750
INStallmENt . . 2,292 2,186
AUIOMODIIE . o e 5,660 5,609
UGN . . o e e 1,218 1,042
Total other retail .. ... .. 26,161 25,187
Total retail . 36,956 35,352
112U Lo - U2 - PP $114,405 $122,365
Loans are presented net of unearned interest which of the Company’s commercial portfolio by industry type
amounted to $1.6 billion and $1.7 billion at December 31, and geography as of December 31, 2001, and 2000, see
2001 and 2000, respectively. The Company had loans of Table 9 included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
$28.0 billion at December 31, 2001, and $7.8 billion at which is incorporated by reference into these Notes to
December 31, 2000, pledged at the Federal Home Loan Consolidated Financial Statements.
Bank. Loans of $7.2 billion at December 31, 2001, and For detail of the Company’s commercial real estate
$3.6 billion at December 31, 2000, were pledged at the portfolio by property type and geography as of
Federal Reserve Bank. December 31, 2001, and 2000, see Table 10 included in
The Company primarily lends to borrowers in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis which is
24 states where it has banking offices. Collateral for incorporated by reference into these Notes to Consolidated
commercial loans may include marketable securities, Financial Statements. Such loans are collateralized by the
accounts receivable, inventory and equipment. For detail related property.

The following table lists information related to nonperforming loans as of December 31:

(Dallars in Millions) 2001 2000
Loans on nonaccrual Status . . ... ... e $1,001.3 $765.3
Renegotiated 10aNS . ... e e — —
Total NONPErfOrmMING I0ANS . . ... et $1,001.3 $765.3
Interest income that would have been recognized at original contractual terms ............ ... ... .. ... ..., $ 109.2 $ 72.2
Amount recognized as iNterest INCOME .. ... . . 46.2 21.4
FOPQONE TBVENUE . . . oot ettt e e e e e e e $ 63.0 $ 50.8
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Activity in the allowance for credit losses was as follows:

(Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Balance at beginning of year ... $1,786.9 $1,710.3 $1,705.7
Add

Provision charged to operating expense(a) .. ............oviir it 2,528.8 828.0 646.0
Deduct

Loans charged off . . ... ... e 1,771.4 1,017.6 902.8

Less recoveries of loans charged off ... ... ... . 2249 192.2 230.2

Net loans charged off ... ... ... 1,546.5 825.4 672.6
Losses from loan sales/transfers. . ... ... e (329.3) — —
Acquisitions and other Changes .. ... ... . . 17.4 74.0 312
Balance at end Of Year ... ... .. $2,457.3 $i,78649 $1,710.3

(a} In 2001, $382.2 million of the provision for credit Josses was incurred in connection with the merger of Firstar and USBM.

A portion of the allowance for credit losses is allocated to loans deemed impaired. All impaired loans are included in non-

performing assets. A summary of these loans and their related allowance for loan losses is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Recorded Valuation Recorded Valuation Recorded - Valuation
{Dollars in Millions) Investment Allowance Investment Allowance Investment Allowance
Impaired Loans
Valuation allowance required . ........ $694 $125 $487 $57 $257 $8
No valuation allowance required. .. ... — — 127 —_ 132 —
Total impaired loans . ................... $694 $125 $614 $57 $389 $8
Average balance of impaired loans during
theyear ....... ... oo, $780 $526 $408
Interest income recognized on impaired
loans during the year ................. 25.0 7.8 3.3

Commitments to lend additional funds to customers whose loans were classified as nonaccrual or renegotiated at

December 31, 2001, totaled $82.5 million. During 2001 there were no loans that were restructured at market interest rates

and returned to a fully performing status.

Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities

Receivable Sales

When the Company sells receivables, it may retain interest-
only strips, servicing rights, a cash reserve account, and/or
other interests in the receivables. The gain or loss on sale
of the receivables depends in part on the previous carrying
amount of the financial assets involved in the transfer, and
is allocated between the assets sold and the retained
interests based on their relative fair values at the date of
transfer. Market prices are used to determine retained
interest fair values when readily available. However, quotes
are generally not available for retained interests, so the
Company generally estimates fair value based on the present
value of future expected cash flows using management’s
best estimates of the key assumptions— credit losses,
prepayment speeds, forward yield curves, and discount rates
commensurate with the risks involved. Retained interests
are valued at inception and updated quarterly using a
discounted cash flow methodology.

On November 16, 2001, the Company sold $737.8
million of unsecured small business receivables. The
transaction generated a loss on sale of $64.7 million. The
Company retained interest-only strips, a cash collateral
reserve, and subordinated securities. Key assumptions used
in measuring retained interests at the date of securitization
are consistent with those presented in the table below
captioned “Residual Economic Assumptions and Adverse
Changes.” These products are similar in nature to revolving
credit card receivables. Each month new advances on these
accounts are sold. The proceeds from these sales are netted
against the cash collected for the month. The net cash
collected is distributed accordingly to pay down the
outstanding securities. The Company receives a fee to
continue to service the receivables. Since the Company
receives adequate compensation relative to current market
servicing prices, no servicing asset or liability regarding this
securitization is recognized. '

During 2001 and 2000, the Company administered a
loan conduit which holds short-term participations in
commercial loans originated by the Company. These loans
totaled $5.9 billion at December 31, 2001 and included net
sales of originated loans to the loan conduit of
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approximately $3.7 billion during 2001. The Company
received fee revenue of $57.6 million and $18.0 million
from the loan conduit in 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Under a credit enhancement agreement with the conduit,
the Company would be required to make payments to the
conduit in specified amounts if the conduit experiences
payment defaults on its loans. No credit enhancements
were needed during 2001 or 2000. In addition, the
Company maintains a reserve to reflect its obligation to
provide credit enhancements to the conduit.

For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the
Company sold $147.5 million and $255.7 million of the
U.S. government guaranteed portions of loans originated
under Small Business Administration (SBA) programs,
recognizing a pre-tax gain on sale of $6.3 million and
$10.6 million, respectively. The SBA covers losses occurring
on these guaranteed portions. Although the Company
retains no credit recourse relating to these sales, it does
continue to own a portion of the non-guaranteed elements
of the loans. The Company continues to service the loans
and is required under the SBA programs to retain specified
yield amounts. A portion of the yield is recognized as
servicing fee income as it occurs and the remainder is
capitalized as a servicing asset, and included in the gain on
sale calculation.

Servicing Asset Position

2001 2000

{Dollars in Millions) SBA Loans SBA Loans
Servicing assets at beginning of

YEAr .. $6.9 $ 43

Servicing assets recognized

duringtheyear............... 28 4.0

Amortization ............ ... (2.2) (1.4)

Servicing assets at end of year ... $7.5 $ 6.9

ﬂ U.S. Bancorp

No valuation allowances were required during 2001 or
2000 on servicing assets. Servicing assets are reported in
aggregate but measured on a transaction specific basis.
Market values were determined using discounted cash flows,
utilizing the assumptions noted in the table below.

Key economic assumptions used in valuing servicing assets
at the date of sale resulting from sales completed during
2001 and 2000 were as follows:

2001 2000
(Dollars in Millions) SBA Loans(a) SBA Loans(a)
Fair value of assets recognized. . $9.1 $7.9
Prepayment speed() ........... 21 CPR 21 CPR
Weighted-average life (years) ... 3.7 3.9
Expected credit losses.......... NA NA
Discountrate .................. 12% 12%
Variable returns to transferees .. NA NA

(a) All were adjustable rate loans based on the Wall Street Journal prime rate.

(b) The Company used a prepayment vector based on foan seasoning for valuation. The
given speed was the effective prepayment speed that yields the same weighted-
average life calculated using the prepayment vector.

The Company also established a securitization trust
which held credit card receivables originated by the
Company. This trust was terminated in December 2000. At
termination, $509 million of credit card receivables were
transferred from the trust to the Company in exchange for
the seller’s certificates held by the Company. In 2000,
$665 million of proceeds from collections of credit card
receivables were reinvested in the trust. The Company
received $18.0 million in servicing fee revenue from the
trust in 2000 and recorded a $2.2 million gain upon the
termination of the trust.




Residual Economic Assumptions and Adverse Changes

The Company has retained interests on the following asset sales: $1.8 billion sale of indirect automobile loans on
September 24, 1999; $420 million sale of corporate and purchasing card receivables on February 27, 1997; $737.8 million
sale of unsecured small business receivables on November 16, 2001; and sales of SBA loans since 1988. At December 31,
2001, key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the current fair value of residual cash flows to immediate 10 percent

and 20 percent adverse changes in those assumptions were

as follows:

Indirect Corporate Unsecured

Automobile SBA Card Small Business

At December 31, 2001 ({Dollars in Millions) Loans Loans(a) Receivables(b) Receivables

Carrying amount/fair value of retained interests .......................... $23.1 $ 32 $4.3 $232.7

Weighted-average life (inyears) .......... .. i i i 0.7 3.7 0.1 0.8
Prepayment speed assumption (annual)(c)(d)}(e) .......... 1.5 ABS 21 CPR — 6.0%
Impact on fair value of 10% adversechange .......................... $(0.7) $(0.2) $— $ (31)
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change .......................... (1.5) (0.4) — (4.7)
Expected credit losses {(annual) ..... ... .................. ... .. 2.8% —% —% 13.5%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change .......................... $(0.7) $ — $— $ (8.7)
Impact on fair value of 20% adversechange .......................... (1.4) — — (16.8)
Residual cash flows discount rate (annuat) ................ ... 12.0% 12.0% —% 11.0%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change .......................... $(0.2) $(0.1) $— $ (2.6)
Impact on fair value of 20% adversechange ................. . ........ (0.4) (0.2) — (5.2)
Interest rates on variable and adjustable contracts ....... .. .. NA NA NA 10.5%
Impact on fair value of 10% adversechange .......................... NA NA NA $ (6.7)
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change .......................... NA NA NA (12.9)

(a) Credit losses are covered by the appropriate SBA foan program and are not included in retained interests. Principal reductions caused by defaults are included in the prepayment
assumption.

(b) Residual interest is effectively a single period receivable that is paid and renewed each month during the revolving period. Therefore, no assumptions are used in its estimate.

Losses are recognized in the period they occur.

The Company uses prepayment vectors based on loan seasoning for valuation. The given speed is the effective prepayment speed that yields the same weighted-average life

calculated using the prepayment vector.

(d) ABS = absolute prepayment rate and is the auto industry’s standard measure of prepayment speed. CPR = constant prepayment rate.

(e) Monthly repayment rate on small business lines of credit.

fc

Nt

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. As the figures indicate, changes in fair value based on a 10 percent variation in assumptions generally cannot be
extrapolated because the refationship of the change in the assumptions to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also, in this table the effect of a variation in a particular
assumption on the fair value of the retained interest is calculated without changing any other assumption; in reality, changes in one factor may result in changes in another (for
example, increases in market interest rates may result in lower prepayments and increased credit fosses), which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.

The table below summarizes certain cash flows received from and paid to conduit or structured entities for the loan sales
described above:

Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000
Proceeds from New SaleS (@) . ... . e $70,209.4 $37.911.6
Proceeds from existing securitizations(b) ... ... .. 6,969.9 8,042.7
Reinvestment in existing securitizations (b)) .. .. ... (6,547.8) (7,972.9)
Servicing and other fees reCeiVed . . ... . . e e 738 52.9
Other cash flows received on retained interests(C) ... ... .. 29.9 34.2

Purchases of delinquent or foreclosed assets. ... ... e — —

(a} Gross proceeds from commercial loan sales were $69.5 biltion for 2001. The net cash flows for these sales were $3.7 billion. For 2000, gross commercial loan sale proceeds were
$37.6 billion, with net cash flows of ($30.3) million.

(b) The corporate card and unsecured small business receivables securitizations are revolving transactions where proceeds are reinvested until their legal terminations. The indirect
automobile and SBA loan sales are amortizing transactions where the cash flow is used to pay off investors.

(c) This amount represents total cash flows received from retained interests by the transferor other than servicing fees. Other cash flows include, for example, all cash flows from
interest-only strips and cash above the minimum required level in cash colfateral accounts.
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Quantitative information relating to loan sales and managed assets was as follows:

At December 31

Year Ended December 31

Total Principal Amount
Principal Balance 90 Days or More Past Due Average Balance Net Credit Losses
Asset Type {Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
Commercial
Commercial ....................... $47.867 $ 49,982 $ 590 $ 525 $ 49,672 $ 48,403 $ 724 $259
Lease financing ................... 5,858 5,776 207 72 5,852 4,512 114 21
Total commercial ............... 53,725 55,758 797 597 55,524 52,915 838 280
Commercial real estate
Commercial mortgages ............ 18,765 19,466 136 118 19,004 19,158 40 5
Construction and development. ... .. 6,608 6,977 37 40 7,077 6,882 12 8
Total commercial real estate .. 25373 26,443 173 158 26,081 26,040 52 13
Residential mortgages . ..... ... 5,746 7,753 140 116 6,868 9,578 13 12
Retail
Creditcard........................ 5,889 6,012 128 111 5,645 5,490 271 238
Retail leasing .. ................... 4,906 4,153 12 8 4,553 3,139 30 13
Otherretail,....................... 26,593 26,100 224 165 25,613 25,729 360 319
Totalretail ..................... 37,388 36,265 364 285 35,811 34,358 661 570
Total managed loans ........ $122,232  $126,219 $1,474 $1,155 $124,284  $122 8% $1,564 $875
Less:
Loans sold or securitized .......... 7,827 3,854 6,107 4,574
Total loans held............. $114,405 $122,365 $118,177 $118,317
Sold or securitized assets
Commercial loans ................. $5,868 $§ 2,008 $ — $ — $ 4208 §$ 2,073 $ — $ —
Indirect automobile loans{a) ....... 432 913 4 3 655 1,213 11 16
Guaranteed SBA loans(b) ...... ... 582 518 2 — ©29 360 — —
Corporate card receivables(b) .. ... 214 420 1 1 403 420 3 3
Credit card receivables ............ — — — — — 508 — 30
Unsecured small business
receivables{b) .................. 731 — 4 — 122 — 3 —
Total securitized assets......... $7,827 $ 3,854 $ 11 $ 4 $ 6,107 $ 4574 $ 17 $ 49
(a) Reported in “other retail” loans.
(b) Reported in ‘‘commercial” loans.
[TITX] Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment at December 31 consisted of the following:
{Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000
NG . e $ 274 $ 276
Buildings and IMpProvVemMENTS .. . .. . i e e e e e 1,854 1,786
Furniture, fixtures and eqUIPMENt . ... . 2,012 1,888
Capitalized building and equipment 18aS8S . .. ... ... . 173 171
CONSIrUCHION N PrOGIESS ...ttt et e e e e 8 48
4,321 4,169
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .. ... ... 2,580 2,333
I - O O O A A $1,741 $1,836
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CTITET] Mortgage Servicing Rights

Changes in capitalized mortgage servicing rights are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000
Balance at beginning of year .. ... e e $ 229 $ 213
RIghts pUIChased. . ... . e 25 16
Rights capitalized. .. ... ... . 315 137
AN Zat 0N . e e e e (45) (35)
RIGNTS S0 Lo e (108) (101)
[ o= UL 4 1= 0 (61) (1)
Balance atend of year. .......... . ... DT $ 360 $ 229

The fair value of capitalized mortgage servicing rights was $360 million at December 31, 2001, and $245 million at

December 31, 2000. At December 31, 2001, the reduction in the current fair value of mortgage servicing rights to immediate
25 and 50 basis point adverse interest rate changes would be approximately $32 million and $63 million, respectively. The

Company has purchased principal-only securities that act as a partial economic hedge to this possible adverse interest rate

change. The Company serviced $22.0 billion and $17.0 billion of mortgage loans for other investors as of December 31,

2001 and 2000, respectively.

CTXTEE] Intangible Assets

The following is a summary of intangible assets as of December 31, which are included in the consolidated balance sheet:

(Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000
GOOAWIIl . e e e e $5,488 $4,312
Core deposit DENEfitS ... o e 530 374
Merchant procesSiNg COMraCTS . . ..o o 680 17
Mortgage servicing rights .. ... ... e 360 229
Other identified INtangibles. .. ... e 354 377
Total INtANGIDIE BSSOIS ..\ttt et $7,412 $5,309
CTITEE] Short-Term Borrowings
The following table is a summary of short-term borrowings for the last three years:
2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in Millions) Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
At year-end
Federal funds purchased ............................ $ 1,146 1.1% $ 2,849 5.8% $ 5,489 4.7%
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase ... ... 3,001 1.1 3,347 4.6 3,174 3.8
Commercial paper .............. i i 452 1.9 223 6.4 170 4.7
Treasury, tax and loannotes ........................ 4,038 1.3 776 52 619 5.0
Other short-term borrowings ............. ... ........ 6,033 2.5 4,638 6.1 1,106 5.6
Total ..o $14,670 1.8% $11,833 5.6% $10,558 4.6%
Average for the year
Federal funds purchased ............................ $ 4997 5.0% $ 5,690 6.2% $ 5,898 5.0%
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase ...... 2,657 2.9 3,028 4.8 3,128 4.0
Commercial paper ............ ... .o il 390 3.9 215 6.3 370 5.1
Treasury, tax and loannotes ....................... 1,321 35 912 6.1 577 45
Other short-term borrowings ............ ... ........ 3,615 4.0 2,741 7.7 1,734 6.9
Total ..o $12,980 4.1% $12,586 6.2% $11,707 5.0%
Maximum month-end balance
Federal funds purchased .................... ........ $ 7,829 $ 7,807 $ 7,080
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase ... ... 3,001 3,415 3,278
Commercial paper ...t 590 300 397
Treasury, tax and loannotes ........................ 6,618 3,578 1,435
Other short-term borrowings ........................ 7,149 4,920 4,945
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CTIEE] Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt (debt with original maturities of more than one year) at December 31 consisted of the following:

(Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000
U.S. Bancorp (Parent Company)
Fixed-rate subordinated notes
7.625% due 2002 . .. e e e $ 150 $ 150
8.125% dUE 2002 . o . e 150 150
7.00% due 2008 . . . e 150 150
B.625% dUE 2003 . . ... e 100 100
7.25% dUe 2003 ...t 32 32
8.00% dUB 2004 .. .. 73 125
7.625% due 2005 . . ... e 121 150
B.75% AUE 2005 .. .o e e e e 191 300
B.875% due 2007 . . .. 250 250
7.30% AUE 2007 ..t 200 200
7.50% due 2026 ... o 200 200
Senior contingent convertible debt 1.50% due 2021 ... .. ... .. 1,100 —
Medium-term NOteS ... . . e 3,215 4,634
Capitalized lease obligations, mortgage indebtedness and other ........ ... .. ... .. ... ... L. 142 122
SUBtOtal . o 6,074 6,563
Subsidiaries
Fixed-rate subordinated notes
6.00% dUe 2003 ... e 79 100
B.375% due 2004 .. . o 75 75
B.375% due 2004 . .. .. 150 150
7.55% due 2004 ... 100 100
B.35% dUB 2004 . ... 100 100
7.30% due 2005 .. ... 100 100
B.875% due 2006 ... ... .. e 125 125
B.625% due 2006 ... .. ... 100 100
B.50% dUE 2008 ... .. e 300 300
6.30% due 2008 . . ... e 300 300
5.70% due 2008 . . ... 400 400
7.125% due 2000 ... o 500 500
7.80% due 2010 .. e e e 300 300
B.375% due 201 L 1,500 —
Federal Home Loan Bank advanCes .. ... oo e 7,196 2,753
BaNK MO B . . e 7,550 9,300
Euro medium-term notes due 2004 . ... ... 400 400
Capitalized lease obligations, mortgage indebtedness and other ........ ... .. . i i il 367 210
oAl L $25,716 $21,876

In August 2001, the Company issued $1.1 billion of
senior contingent convertible debt due August 6, 2021. The
interest rate is 1.50% per annum. The debt would be
convertible into the Company’s stock only if the Company’s
stock price increases to the contractual strike price. The
convertible strike price decreases over the term of the
bond. The notes are callable in August 2003 and putable in
August 2002 and on specified dates thereafter.

In July 2001, the Company’s subsidiary U.S. Bank
National Association issued $1.5 billion of fixed-rate
subordinated notes due August 1, 2011. The interest rate is
6.375% per annum.

Medium-term notes (“MTNs”) outstanding at
December 31, 2001, mature from January 2002 through
December 2004. The MTNs bear fixed or floating interest
rates ranging from 2.01 percent to 7.50 percent. The

m U.S. Bancorp

weighted-average interest rate of MTNs at December 31,
2001, was 3.85 percent.

Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances
outstanding at December 31, 2001, mature from
February 2002 through October 2026. The advances bear
fixed or floating interest rates ranging from 0.50 percent to
8.25 percent. The Company has an arrangement with the
FHLB whereby based on collateral available (residential
and commercial mortgages), the Company could have
borrowed an additional $10.6 billion at December 31, 2001.
The weighted-average interest rate of FHLB advances at
December 31, 2001, was 3.36 percent.

Bank notes outstanding at December 31, 2001, mature
from January 2002 through November 2005. The Bank
notes bear fixed or floating interest rates ranging from
1.79 percent to 6.30 percent. The weighted-average interest




rate of Bank notes at December 31, 2001, was 2.69 percent.
Euro medium-term notes outstanding at December 31,
2001, bear floating rare interest at three-month LIBOR plus
.15 percent. The interest rate at December 31, 2001, was
2.58 percent.

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding at December 31,
2001, were:

Parent
(Dollars in Millions) Consolidated Company
2002 . ... $ 6,789 $1,465
2003 ... 3,970 1,545
2004 ... 5,529 916
2005 ... 3,533 336
2006 ... 242 3
Thereafter......... ... . ... .. 5,653 1,809
Total................ .o $25,716 $6,074

LR Company-obligated Mandatorily
Redeemable Preferred Securities of

Subsidiary Trusts Holding Solely the

Junior Subordinated Debentures of

the Parent Company

The Company has issued $2.9 billion of company-

obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of
subsidiary trusts holding solely the junior subordinated
debentures of the parent company (“Trust Preferred
Securities”) through nine separate issuances by nine wholly
owned subsidiary grantor trusts (“Trusts”). The Trust
Preferred Securities accrue and pay distributions periodically
at specified rates as provided in the indentures. The Trusts
used the net proceeds from the offerings to purchase a like

amount of junior subordinated deferrable interest
debentures (the “Debentures”) of the Company. The
Debentures are the sole assets of the Trusts and are
eliminated, along with the related income statement effects,
in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s obligations under the Debentures and
related documents, taken together, constitute a full and
unconditional guarantee by the Company of the obligations
of the Trusts. The guarantee covers the distributions and
payments on liquidation or redemption of the Trust
Preferred Securities, but only to the extent of funds held by
the Trusts.

The Trust Preferred Securities are mandatorily
redeemable upon the maturity of the Debentures, or upon
earlier redemption as provided in the indentures. The
Company has the right to redeem retail Debentures in
whole or in part on or after specific dates, at a redemption
price specified in the indentures plus any accrued but
unpaid interest to the redemption date. The Company has
the right to redeem institutional Debentures in whole, (but
not in part), on or after specific dates, at a redemption
price specified in the indentures plus any accrued but
unpaid interest to the redemption date. The Trust Preferred
Securities are redeemable in whole or in part in 2003, 2006
and 2007 in the amounts of $350 million, $2,250 million
and $300 million, respectively.

The Trust Preferred Securities qualify as tier I capital
of the Company for regulatory capital purposes. The
Company used the proceeds from the sales of the
Debentures for general corporate purposes.

The following table is a summary of the Trust Preferred Securities as of December 31, 2001:

Trust
Preferred
Issuance Securities Debentures Rate Rate at Maturity Redemption
Issuance Trust (Dollars in Millions) Date Amount Amount Type(a) 12/31/01 Date Date(b)
Retail
USB Capital V................. 12/2001 $300 $309 Fixed 7.25% 12/2031 12/07 /2006
USB Capital IV ................ 11/2001 500 515 Fixed 7.35% 11/2031 11/01/2006
USB Capital Il ................ 05/2001 700 722 Fixed 7.75% 05/2031 05/04/2006
USB Capital 1l .. ............... 03/1998 350 361 Fixed 7.20% 04/2028 04/01/2003
Institutional
Star Capital | .................. 06/1997 150 155 Variable 2.64% 06/2027 06/15/2007
Mercantile Capital Trust|....... 02/1997 150 155 Variable 3.08% 02/2027 02/01/2007
USB Capital | ................. 12/1996 300 309 Fixed 8.27% 12/2026 12/15/2006
Firstar Capital Trustt .......... 12/1996 150 155 Fixed 8.32% 12/2026 12/15/2006
FBS Capital 1. ................. 11/1996 300 309 Fixed 8.09% 11/2026 11/15/2006

(a) The variable rate Trust Preferred Securities re-price quarterly.
(b) Earliest date of redemption.
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LT3R Shareholders’ Equity

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had
authority to issue 4 billion and 2 billion shares of common
stock, respectively, and 10 million shares of preferred stock.
The Company had 1,951.7 million and 1,902.1 million
shares of common stock outstanding at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively. At December 31, 2001, the
Company had 279.1 million shares of common stock
reserved for future issuances. These shares are primarily
reserved for stock option plans, dividend reinvestment plans
and deferred compensation plans. In connection with the
merger of Firstar and USBM, the number of authorized
common shares for U.S. Bancorp was increased from
2 billion to 4 billion effective February 27, 2001.
Additionally, the par value of the Company’s common
stock was reduced from $1.23 per share to $.01 per share.

The Company has a Preferred Share Purchase Rights
Plan intended to preserve the long-term value of the
Company by discouraging a hostile takeover of the
Company. Under the plan, each share of common stock
carries a right to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of
preferred stock. The rights become exercisable in certain
limited circumstances involving a potential business
combination transactton or an acquisition of shares of the
Company and are exercisable at a price of $100 per right,
subject to adjustment. Following certain other events, each
right entitles its holder to purchase for $100 an amount of
common stock of the Company, or, in certain
circumstances, securities of the acquirer, having a then-
current market value of rwice the exercise price of the
right. The dilutive effect of the rights on the acquiring
company is intended to encourage it to negotiate with the
Company’s Board of Directors prior to attempting a
takeover. If the Board of Directors believes a proposed
acquisition is in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders, the Board may amend the plan or redeem the
rights for a nominal amount in order to permit the
acquisition to be completed without interference from the
plan. Until a right is exercised, the holder of a right has no
rights as a shareholder of the Company. The rights expire
on February 27, 2011.

The Company issued 57.2 million and 18.2 million
shares of common stock with an aggregate value of
$1.9 billion and $298 million in connection with purchase
acquisitions during 2001 and 2000, respectively.

U.S. Bancorp

On February 16, 2000, USBM’s Board of Directors
authorized the repurchase of up to $2.5 billion of its
common stock over a two-year period ending March 31,
2002. This USBM repurchase program replaced a program
that was scheduled to expire on March 31, 2000. On
April 11, 2000, Firstar’s Board of Directors approved a
common stock repurchase program of 100 million shares.
The stock repurchase programs of Firstar and USBM were
rescinded on October 4, 2000, and January 17, 2001,
respectively, in connection with the planned merger of the
formerly separate companies. On July 17, 2001, the
Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of
up to 36.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock
to replace shares issued in connection with the July 24,
2001 acquisition of NOVA Corporation. The stock
repurchase authorization will expire on July 23, 2003.
Under this program the Company has repurchased 19.7
million shares for $467.9 million in 2001. The Company
had forward contracts to purchase 26.7 million shares
within this authorization. These contracts were settled in
January of 2002. On December 18, 2001, the Board of
Directors approved an authorization to repurchase an
additional 100 million shares of outstanding common stock
over the following 24 months.

The following table summarizes the Company’s common
stock repurchased in each of the last three years:

(Dollars and Shares in Millions) Shares Value
2001 .. 19.7 $ 4679
2000 . . ... 58.6 1,182.2
1999 . . 446 1,187.9

USBM offered employees and directors an Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) that permitted all eligible
employees with at least one year of service and directors to
purchase common stock. In connection with the merger
with Firstar, the ESPP was terminated effective October 13,
2000.

USBM’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan providing for
automatic reinvestment of dividends and optional cash
purchases was suspended on November 9, 2000, following
the announcement of the definitive agreement to merge
with Firstar.




Shareholders’ equity is affected by transactions and valuations of asset and liability positions that require adjustments to

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The reconciliation of transactions affecting Accumulated Other Comprehensive

Income included in shareholders’ equity for the years ended December 31, is as follows:

(Doliars in Millions) Pre-tax Tax-effect Net-of-tax
2001
Unrealized gain on securities available~for-sale......... ... ... .. .. ... . o, $ 1945 $ (77.8) $ 116.9
Unrealized gain on derivatives . ... ... e e 106.0 (40.3) 65.7
Realized gain on derivatives ... ... 42.4 (16.1) 26.3
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized innetincome ........................... .. ..., (333.1) 126.6 (206.5)
Foreign currency translation adjustments .. ... . .. (4.0) 1.5 (25)
TOtal L $ 58 $ (59) $ (1)
2000
Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale.............. ... ... i i $ 436.0 $(157.8) $ 278.2
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in netincome .............. ... ... . ........ (41.6) 15.8 (25.8)
Foreign currency translation adjustments ......... ... . (.5) .2 (.3)
Lo £ 1 P $ 393.9 $(141.8) $ 2521
1999
Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale......... ... ... ... ... . .. i $(743.9) $ 268.2 $(475.7)
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized innetincome ... .............. ... ... ....... 163.9 (57.7) 106.2
TOtAD oo e e $(580.0) $ 2105 $(369.5)
TR Earnings Per Share
The components of earnings per share were:
(Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2001 2000 1999
Nt MO L $1,706.5 $2,875.6 $2,381.8
Weighted-average common shares outstanding . ............. ... ... i 1,927.9 1,906.0 1,807.8
Net effect of the assumed purchase of stock based on the treasury stock
method for options and Stock Plans. . . ... .. i 11.6 125 22.2
Dilutive common shares outstanding . .......... . e 1,939.5 1,918.5 1,930.0
Earnings per share
B . o $ .89 $ 1.51 $ 1.25
DB .o e $ .88 $ 150 $ 123

CTITEEd Employee Benefits

Retirement Plans Pension benefits are provided to
substantially all employees based on years of service and
employees’ compensation while employed with the
Company. Employees are fully vested after five years of
service. The Company’s funding policy is to contribute
amounts to its plans sufficient to meet the minimum
funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, plus such additional amounts as the
Company determines to be appropriate. The actuarial cost
method used to compute the pension liabilities and expense
is the projected unit credit method. Prior to their
acquisition dates, employees of certain acquired companies
were covered by separate, noncontributory pension plans
that provided benefits based on years of service and
compensation. Generally, the Company merges plans of
acquired companies into its existing penston plans when it
becomes practicable.

As a result of the Firstar and USBM merger, the
Company maintained two different qualified pension plans,
with three different pension benefit structures during 2001:
the former USBM’s cash balance pension benefit structure, a
final average pay benefit structure for the former Firstar
organization, and a cash balance pension benefit structure
related to the Mercantile acquisition. The two pension
plans were merged as of January 1, 2002, under a new final
average pay benefit structure; however, the benefit structure
of the new plan does not become effective for the
Mercantile acquisition until January 1, 2003. Under the new
plan’s benefit structure, a participant’s future retirement
benefits are based on a participant’s highest five year average
annual compensation during his or her last 10 years before
retirement or termination from the Company. Generally,
under the two previous cash balance pension benefit
structures the participants’ earned retirement benefits were
based on their average compensation over their career.
Retirement benefits under the former Firstar benefit
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structure were earned based on final average pay and years
of service, similar to the new plan. Plan assets primarily
consist of various equity mutual funds, listed stocks and
other miscellaneous assets.

The Company also maintains several unfunded, non-
qualified, supplemental executive retirement programs that
provide additional defined pension benefits for senior
managers and executive employees. Because all the non-
qualified plans are unfunded, the aggregate accumulated
benefit obligations exceed the assets. A supplemental executive
retirement plan of USBM was frozen for substantially all
participants as of September 30, 2001, but with service credit
running through December 31, 2001. The assumptions used in
computing the present value of the accumulated benefit
obligation, the projected benefit obligation and net pension
expense are substantially consistent with those assumptions
used for the funded qualified plans. The Company anticipates
recognizing curtailment gains of approximately $11.7 million
in early 2002 in connection with changes to non-qualified
pension plans.

Post-Retirement Medical Plans In addition to providing
pension benefits, the Company provides health care and
death benefits to certain retired employees through several
retiree medical programs. As a result of the merger of
USBM with Firstar, there were three major retiree medical
programs in place during 2001 with various terms and
subsidy schedules. Effective January 1, 2002, the Company
adopted one retiree medical program for all future retirees.
For certain eligible employees, the provisions of the USBM
retiree medical plan and the Mercantile retiree medical plan
will remain in place until December 31, 2002. Generally, all
employees may become eligible for retiree health care
benefits by meeting defined age and service requirements.
The Company may also subsidize the cost of coverage for
employees meeting certain age and service requirements.
The medical plan contains other cost-sharing features such
as deductibles and coinsurance. The estimated cost of these
retiree benefit payments is accrued during the employees’
active service. '

Information presented in the four tables below reflects a measurement date of September 30.
The following table sets forth the components of net periodic benefit cost for the retirement plans:

Pension Plans Post-Retirement Medical Pians

(Dollars in Millions} 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Components of net periodic benefit cost
SEerviCe COST ... $ 61.0 $ 654 $ 701 $ 21 $20 $ 38
Interest GOSt .. ... .. e 118.7 117.3 107.1 17.9 16.3 16.5
Expected return on plan assets ........................ (232.6) (201.6) (177.5)} (1.0) (.6) (.5)
Net amortization and deferral .......................... 10.7) (13.2) 1.3 2 2 2.0
Recognized actuarial loss ............................. (1.2) 7 1.9 (.1) (1.4) 2
Net periodic benefitcost............. ... ... (64.8) (31.4) 29 1941 16.5 220
Curtailment and settlement (gain) loss ................. — (17.0) (6.2) — 10.3 —
Net periodic benefit cost after curtailment and
settlement (gain) loss............... i $ (64.8) (48.4) $ (3.3) $19.1 $26.8 $22.0
The following table sets forth the weighted average plan assumptions and other data:
usem Firstar
{Dollars in Millions} 2001 2000 1998 2001 2000 1999
Pension plan actuarial computations
Discount rate in determining benefit obligations ................ 7.5% 7.8% 7.5% 7.5% 8.0% 6.6%
Expected long-term return on plan assets(b) .................. 11.0 9.5 9.5 12.2 12.2 11.4
Rate of increase in future compensation ....................... 3.5 5.6 5.6 3.5 4.0 4.1
Post-retirement medical plan actuarial computations
Discount rate in determining benefit obligations ................ 7.5% 7.8% 7.5% 7.5% 8.0% 6.8%
Expected long-term returnon planassets...................... 5.0 5.0 50 * * *
Health care cost trend rate(a)
Priortoage B85 .. ... . o 10.5% 7.7% 7.0% 10.5% 7.5% 7.7%
After age B5. . ... . e 13.0 7.7 55 13.0 7.5 7.7
Effect of one percent increase in health care cost trend rate
Service and interest CoOStS . ... ... i 12 $ 1.0 $ 1.3 $ 4 $ 4 $ 4
Accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation ................. 13.1 13.1 12.4 6.0 5.2 4.0
Effect of one percent decrease in health care cost trend rate
Service and interestcosts ............ ... $ (1.0) $ (.9) $ (1.0) | $ (.4) $ (4) $ (4)
Accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation ................. (13.8) (11.6) (10.9) (5.7) (4.8) (3.6)

*  The Firstar plan had no assets as of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,

(a) The pre-65 and post-65 rates are assumed to decrease gradually to 5.5% and 6.0% respectively by 2011 and remain at these levels thereafter.
(b) In connection with the merger of Firstar and USBM, the asset management practices and investment strategies of the plan were conformed. At December 31, 2001, the investment
asset allocation was weighted toward equities and diversified by industry and companies with varying market capitalization levels.
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The following table summarizes benefit obligation and plan asset activity for the retirement plans:

Pension Plans Post-Retirement Medical Plans

(Dollars in Millions ) 2001 2000 2001 2000
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of measurement period ................ $1,595.4 $1,580.3 $ 2441 $ 225.0
SeIVICE COST .. v\ttt e 61.0 65.4 2.1 2.0
Interest COSt .. ... 118.7 117.3 17.9 16.3
Plan participants’ contributions ........ ... ... . i — — 10.3 6.8
Plan amendments . ... . ... . . e 4.0 —_ (2.4) —
Actuarial l0SS ... .o 47.7 A 24.9 19.8
Benefit payments. . ... . (170.4) (111.7) (31.8) (25.8)
CUrtailments .. ... — (4.4) — —
Settlements . ... — (51.6) — —
Benefit obligation at end of measurement period...................... $1,656.4 $1,595.4 $ 265.1 $ 2441
Change in fair value of plan assets
Fair value at beginning of measurement period ....................... $2,283.2 $1,985.3 3 21 8 $ 134
Actual return on plan assets ... .. (531.8) 443.8 9
Employer contributions ... ... .. 30.1 16.3 33 3 26.5
Plan participants’ contributions ........ ... ... o — — 10.3 6.8
Acquisitions/divestitures . ......... . . — 1.1 — —
Settlements . .. ... ... — (51.8) — —
Benefit payments. . ... (170.4) (111.7) (31.8) (25.8)
Fair value at end of measurement period............ ... ... oL $1,611.1 $2,283.2 $ 354 $ 218
Funded status
Funded status at end of measurement period......................... $ (45.3) $ 687.8 229 7 $(222.3)
Unrecognized transition {asset) obligation ......... ... ... ... ... — (1.8) 9.0
Unrecognized prior service cost ... .. (74.8) (87.8) (7.8)
Unrecognized net (gain) 10SS ... ...t 473.2 (338 6) 16 G (7.6)
Fourth quarter contribution . ... ... ... .. . .. .. . 6.7 15.9
Net amount recognized ... ... ..o e $ 359.8 $ 2635 T $(208.8) $(212.8)
Components of statement of financial position
Prepaid benefit cost .. ... .. e $ 531.7 $ 433.1 $ — $ —
Accrued benefit liability ............ .. (171.8) (169.6) (208.8) (212.8)

Net amount recognized . ....... ... ... ... .o

- $ 359.8

$ 2635 L $(208.8) $(212.8)

The following table provides information for pension plans
with benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

(Doillars in Millions) 2001 2000
Benefit obligation ............. $227.5 $216.5
Accumulated benefit obligation 220.6 193.9

Fair value of plan assets ... ... — —

Employee Investment Plan The Company has defined
contribution retirement savings plans which allow qualified
employees, at their option, to make contributions up to
certain percentages of pre-tax base salary through salary
deductions under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Employee contributions are invested, at the
employees’ direction, among a variety of investment
alternatives. Employee contributions are 100 percent
matched by the Company, up to the first four percent of an
employee’s compensation. The Company’s matching
contribution vests immediately; however, a participant must
be employed on December 31st to receive that year’s
matching contribution. Although the matching contribution

is initially invested in the Company’s common stock,
effective in 2002 an employee will be allowed to reinvest
the matching contributions among various investment
alternatives. Total expense was $53.7 million, $53.6 million
and $57.3 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Stock Options and Compensation
Plans

As part of its employee and director compensation
programs, the Company may grant certain stock awards
under the provisions of the existing stock option and
compensation plans. The Company has stock options
outstanding under various plans at December 31, 2001,
including plans assumed in acquisitions. The plans provide
for grants of options to purchase shares of common stock
generally at the stock’s fair market value at the date of
grant. In addition, the plans provide for grants of shares of
common stock which are subject to restriction on transfer

and to forfeiture if certain vesting requirements are not met.
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With respect to stock option and stock compensation
plans, the Company has elected to follow APB 25 in
accounting for its employee stock incentive and purchase
plans. Under APB 25, because the exercise price of the
Company’s employee stock options equals the market price
of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no
compensation expense is recognized. On the date exercised,
if new shares are issued, the option proceeds equal to the
par value of the shares are credited to common stock and
additional proceeds are credited to capital surplus. If
treasury shares are issued, the option proceeds equal to the
average treasury share price are credited to treasury stock
and additional proceeds are credited to capital surplus.

Option grants are generally exercisable up to ten years

from the date of grant and vest over three to five years.
Restricted shares vest over three to seven years.
Compensation expense for restricted stock is based on the

market price of the Company stock at the time of the grant
and amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period. Compensation expense related to the restricted
stock was $71.9 million, $43.4 million and $69.5 million in
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Stock incentive plans of acquired companies are
generally terminated at the merger closing dates. Option
holders under such plans receive the Company’s common
stock, or options to buy the Company’s stock, based on the
conversion terms of the various merger agreements. The
historical option information presented below has been
restated to reflect the options originally granted under
acquired companies’ plans.

At December 31, 2001, there were 64.4 million shares
(subject to adjustment for forfeitures) available for grant
under various plans.

The following is a summary of stock options outstanding and exercised under various stock option plans of the Company:
2001 2000 1899
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Stock Options Price Stock Options Price Stock Options Price
Stock option plans
Number outstanding at beginning
ofyear ...... ...l 153,396,226 $22.80 153,163,030 $22.74 107,405,102 $17.97
Granted ...................... 65,144,310 21.25 22,633,170 19.64 75,922,950 27.08
Assumed/converted .......... 8,669,285 16.40 447,341 6.85 1,210,738 16.58
Exercised .................... (12,775,087) 13.44 (10,017,357) 11.02 (22,332,730) 13.03
Cancelled .................... (12,824,489) 23.29 (12,829,958) 19.91 (9,043,030) 25.63
Number outstanding at end of year . . 201,610,265 $22.58 153,396,226 $22.80 153,163,030 $22.74
Exercisable at end of year ........ 117,534,343 $22.36 68,870,745 $19.78 70,527,758 $18.00
Restricted share plans
Number outstanding at beginning
ofyear .......... ... 6,377,137 4,212,954 6,072,217
Granted ................. ..., 1,021,887 4,110,440 1,379,808
Assumed/converted .......... 298,988 — —
Cancelled/vested ............. (5.520,424) (1,946,257) (3,239,071)
Number outstanding at end of year .. 2,177,588 6,377,137 J 4,212,954
Weighted-average fair value of
shares granted................. $676 | $ 6.32 $ 7.20
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Additional information regarding options outstanding as of December 31, 2001, is as follows:
Options Outstanding Exercisable Options
Weighted-

Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Contractual Exercise Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Life {Years) Price Shares Price
$144 — 81000 . ... . 7,679,415 2.7 $ 599 7,648,800 $ 598
$10.01 —$15.00. .. ... 8,966,154 5.3 11.78 7,366,306 11.76
$15.01 —$20.00. . ... ..o 51,659,341 8.7 18.63 16,774,997 17.59
$20.01 —$25.00. .. ... 65,876,786 8.2 22.84 23,274,436 22.90
$25.01 —830.00. ... ..o 60,157,207 7.0 28.16 55,353,547 28.25
$30.01 —835.00. ... i e 6,386,174 6.4 32.51 6,230,069 32.51
$35.01 —837.20 . ... .. 885,188 6.5 35.78 885,188 35.78
201,610,265 7.6 $22.58 J 117,534,343 $22.36

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 123 (*“SFAS 123”), “Accounting and Disclosure of Stock-Based Compensation™ and has been determined as if
the Company accounted for its employee stock option plans under the fair value method of SFAS 123. The fair value of
options was estimated at the grant date using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Option valuation models require use of
highly subjective assumptions. Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from
those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of employee stock options.

The pro forma disclosures include options granted in 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 and are not likely to be representative
of the pro forma disclosures for future years. The estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the
options’ respective vesting periods.

Year Ended December 31

(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data} 2001 (a) 2000 1999
PrO fONME M N COMIE L. et e e $1,4789 $2752.1  $2,2405
Pro forma earnings Per Share . ... ... . it
Earnings per Share. .. ... . 3 g7 % 144 0§ 117
Difuted earnings per share. ... ... 76 1.43 1.16

(a) Pro forma earnings per share for 2001 was impacted by changes in controf provisions that accelerated the vesting of stock options granted to USBM employees.

U.S. Bancorp Firstar uUsSBM
Weighted-average assumptions in option valuation 2001 2000 1999 2000 1999
Risk-free interest rates ... ... . . 4.6% 5.4% 5.6% 6.1% 5.4%
DIVIdend YiBlaS . ... . e e 3.0% 2.5% 2.0% 3.0% 3.5%
Stock volatility factor . ... . 42 .37 41 37 27
Expected life of options (inyears) ... .. . 45 2555 2555 4.7 6.1
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LCTIZEE] income Taxes

The components of income tax expense were:

{Dollars in Millions ) 2001 2000 1999

Federal

CUITRNT . Lt e e $ 979.9 $ 996.1 $1,036.0

[ L] 1= 0 Y PP (164.5) 3245 2195
Faderal INCOME 18X .. ...t e e e e e e 815.4 1,320.6 1,255.5

State

[ 10) 52> 0 U U S PO A 131.8 159.0 103.3

[T =14 =Y (19.5) 326 33.4
STAte INCOME TAX . .. oot et e e e e e e e 112.3 191.6 136.7
Total INCOME taX PrOVISION .. ..o\ttt e $ 9277 $1,512.2 $1,392.2

The reconciliation between income tax expense and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate
was as follows:

(Doliars in Mitlions) 2001 2000 1999
Tax at Statutory rate {35%) ... .ot $ 9220 $1,535.8 $1,320.9
State income tax, at statutory rates, net of federal tax berefit ..................... . ... 73.0 124.5 88.9
Tax effect of:
Tax-exempt interest, MEt . ... ... (38.9) (56.0) (60.3)
Amortization of nondeductible goodwill . ... ... 88.1 91.6 731
TaAX CrBOMS . o oot e (69.4) (62.7) (41.7)
Nondeductible merger Charges . ... ..o it 52.5 4.9 56.4
Sale of preferred minority interest. . ... ... — (50.0) —
Other emMIS L .. e (99.6) (75.9) (45.1)
AppPHCable INCOME tAXES . . . ..ot e $ 927.7 $1,512.2 $1,392.2

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflect the tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for the same items for income tax reporting

purposes.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 were as follows:

(Dollars in Millions ) ’ 2001 2000

Deferred tax assets

AllowanCe for Credit 0SSBS ... e $ 1,043.9 $ 637.0
Pension and post-retirement benefits . ........ ... 59.5 53.5
Real estate and other asset basis differences ... ... . 32.6 31.9
State and federal operating loss carryforwards . ... ... 24.4 25.0
Federal AMT credits and capital J0SSeS .. ... i 22.0 22.0
Accrued severance, pension and retirement benefits . ... e 22 30.6
Charitable CoNtriDUNIONS . .. .. e — 9
Other deferred tax assels, Mt .. . .. o e 234.0 196.0
Gross deferred 1aX aS5etS .. ... e 1,418.6 996.9
Deferred tax liabilities
L BaSINg OV IS . . . (1,642.5) (1,218.1)
Accelerated AepPrECiatioON . . ... . e e e (117.7) ' (92.7)
Securities available-f0r-Sale .. . ... i e e e (59.7) (52.2)
Deferred T80 . .. e (49.2) 35.0
Other investment basis differences ... ... . e (32.5) (41.1)
Other deferred tax liabilities, Net. . .. ... . (73.6) (124.0)
Gross deferred tax liabilities . ... .. o (1,975.2) (1,493.1)
Valuation alloWanCe ... ... .. ... i e (16.6) (16.6)
Net deferred tax liability . ... . ... .. . ... . $ (573.2) $ (512.8)
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At December 31, 2001, for income tax purposes, the
Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of
$1.2 million available, which expire in years 2002 through
2009. A valuation allowance has been established to offset
deferred tax assets related to state net operating loss
carryforwards totaling approximately $437 million, which
expire at various times within the next 15 years.

Certain events covered by Internal Revenue Code
section 593 (e), which was not repealed, will trigger a
recapture of base year reserves of acquired thrift
institutions. The base year reserves of acquired thrift
institutions would be recaptured if an entity ceases to
qualify as a bank for federal income tax purposes. The base
year reserves of thrift institutions also remain subject to
income tax penalty provisions that, in general, require
recapture upon certain stock redemptions of, and excess
distributions to, stockholders. At December 31, 2001,
retained earnings included approximately $101.8 million of
base year reserves for which no deferred federal income tax
liability has been recognized.

[TXT¥T) Derivative and Other Off-Balance
Sheet Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company uses various
derivative and other off-balance sheet instruments to
manage its interest rate risk and market risks and
accommodate the business requirements of its customers.
These instruments carry varying degrees of credit, interest
rate, and market or liquidity risks.

DERIVATIVES

The Company requires the recognition of derivative
instruments as either assets or liabilities and the
measurement of those instruments at fair value. Subsequent
changes in the derivatives’ fair values are recognized
currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting
criteria are met.

Fair Value Hedges The Company’s interest rate swaps
designated as fair value hedges of underlying fixed-rate debt
and deposit obligations have a fair value of $276.5 million
and fair value hedges of Trust Preferred Securities have a
fair value of $(43.5) million at December 31, 2001. Each
period the changes in fair value of both the hedge
instruments and the underlying debt obligations are
recorded as gains or losses in trading account profits and
commissions. All fair value hedges are intended to reduce
the interest rate risk associated with the underlying hedged
item. The fair value hedge transactions were considered
highly effective for the year ended December 31, 2001, and
the change in fair value of the swaps attributed to hedge
ineffectiveness was not material.

The Company enters into forward commitments to sell
groups of residential mortgage loans that it originates or
purchases as part of its mortgage banking activities. The
Company commits to sell the loans at specified prices in a
future period, typically within 90 days. The Company is
exposed to interest rate risk during the period between
issuing a loan commitment and the sale of the loan into the
secondary market. Specific forward commitments are
designated as a hedge against changes in the fair value of
fixed-rate mortgage loans held for sale attributed to changes
in interest rates. The fair value of these forward
commitments was $52.5 million at December 31, 2001. The
change in fair value of the forward commitments attributed
to hedge ineffectiveness recorded in noninterest income was
$17.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Cash Flow Hedges The Company has interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow hedges linked to the cash flows of .
variable rate LIBOR loans and floating rate debt. The swaps
have a fair value of $106 million at December 31, 2001.
The gain will be reclassified from other comprehensive
income into earnings during the same period the forecasted
transactions occur. The estimated amount of the gain to be
reclassified into earnings within the next 12 months is

$64.4 million, which includes cash flow hedges terminated
early where the forecasted transaction is still probable. The
Company has determined that the occurtence of the hedged
forecasted transactions remains probable. The change in fair
value of the swaps attributed to hedge ineffectiveness was
net material for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Other Derivative Activity The Company acts as an
intermediary for interest rate swaps, caps, floors and foreign
exchange contracts on behalf of its customers. The
Company minimizes its market and liquidity risks by taking
offsetting positions. The Company manages its credit risk,
or potential risk of loss from default by counterparties,
through credit limit approval and monitoring procedures.
Market value changes on intermediated swaps and other
derivatives are recognized in income in the period of
change. Gains or losses on intermediated transactions were
not significant for the year ended December 31, 2001.

In addition, the Company enters into interest rate
swaps and other derivative contracts to protect against
interest rate risk and credit risk that do not meet the
criteria to receive hedge accounting treatment. These
derivatives are recorded at fair value on the balance sheet as
trading account assets or liabilities and any changes in fair
value are recorded in trading profits/losses and
commissions,

The Company also enters into forward commitments to
sell groups of residential mortgage loans to protect against
changes in the fair value of fixed-rate mortgage loan
commitments not yet funded. These forward commitment
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transactions and unfunded loan commitments are recorded
on the balance sheet at fair value and changes in fair value
are recorded in income. The fair value of the forward
commitments and the loan commitments was $19.2 million
and $(20.3) million, respectively, at December 31, 2001.

Futures and forward contracts are agreements for the
delayed delivery of securities or cash settlement money
market instruments. The Company enters into futures
contracts to reduce markert risk on its fixed income
inventory positions. The Company manages its credit risk
on forward contracts, which arises from the potential
nonperformance by counterparties, through credit approval
and limit procedures.

OTHER OFF-BALANCE SHEET INSTRUMENTS

Commitments to Extend Credit Commitments to extend
credit are legally binding and generally have fixed expiration
dates or other termination clauses. The contractual amount
represents the Company’s exposure to credit loss in the
event of default by the borrower. The Company manages
this credit risk by using the same credit policies it applies to
loans. Collateral is obtained to secure commitments based
on management’s credit assessment of the borrower. The
collateral may include marketable securities, receivables,
inventory, equipment and real estate. Since the Company

expects many of the commitments to expire without being
drawn, total commitment amounts do not necessarily
represent the Company’s future liquidity requirements. In
addition, the commitments include consumer credit lines
that are cancelable upon notification to the consumer.

Letters of Credit Standby letters of credit are conditional
commitments the Company issues to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. The guarantees
frequently support public and private borrowing
arrangements, including commercial paper issuances, bond
financings and other similar transactions. The Company
issues commercial letters of credit on behalf of customers
to ensure payment or collection in connection with trade
transactions. In the event of a customer’s nonperformance,
the Company’s credit loss exposure is the same as in any
extension of credit, up to the letter’s contractual amount.
Management assesses the borrower’s credit to determine the
necessary collateral, which may include marketable
securities, real estate, accounts receivable and inventory.
Since the conditions requiring the Company to fund letters
of credit may not occur, the Company expects its liquidity
requirements to be less than the total outstanding
commitments.

Notional amounts of commitments to extend credit and letters of credit were as follows:

Expiring
Less Than Expiring

December 31, 2001 (Dollars in Millions) One Year After One Year Total
Commitments to extend credit

COMMEBICIAL . .. o e e $14,969 $32,687 $47 656

Corporate and purchasing Cards . ... ...ttt e 20,083 2,688 22,771

ConsSUMEr Credit CaIAS . . .. ..ottt e e 19,059 —_ 19,059

OtNEr CONSUMIBT . . e e e 6,254 5,836 12,090
Letters of credit

StANADY o e 3,691 4,054 7,745

COMIMEICIA) . . e e 406 22 428

Commitments from Securities Lending The Company
participates in securities lending activities by acting as the
customer’s agent involving the loan or sale of securities.
The Company indemnifies customers for the difference
between the marker value of the securities lent and the
market value of the collateral received. Cash collateralizes
these transactions.

For further information on derivatives and other off-balance
sheet instruments, see Table 17 included in Management’s
Discussion and Analysis which is incorporated by reference
into these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

[TEEX] Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Due to the nature of its business and its customers’ needs,
the Company offers a large number of financial instruments,
most of which are not actively traded. When market quotes
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are unavailable, valuation techniques including discounted
cash flow calculations and pricing models or services are
used. The Company also uses various aggregation methods
and assumptions, such as the discount rate and cash flow
nming and amounts. As a resuls, the fair value estimates can
neither be substantiated by independent market
comparisons, nor realized by the immediate sale or
settlement of the financial instrument. Also, the estimates
reflect a point in time and could change significantly based
on changes in economic factors, such as interest rates.
Furthermore, the disclosure of certain financial and
nonfinancial assets and liabilities are not required. Finally,
the fair value disclosure is not intended to estimate a
market value of the Company as a whole. A summary of
the Company’s valuation techniques and assumptions
follows.




Cash and Cash Equivalents The carrying value of cash,
amounts due from banks, federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements was assumed to
approximate fair value.

Securities Generally, trading account securities and
investment securities were valued using available market
quotes. In some instances, for securities that are not widely
traded, market quotes for comparable securities were used.

Loans The loan portfolio consists of both floating and
fixed-rate loans, the fair value of which was estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses and other valuation
techniques. To calculate discounted cash flows, the loans
were aggregated into pools of similar types and expected
repayment terms. The expected cash flows of loans
considered historical prepayment experiences and estimated
credit losses for nonperforming loans and were discounted
using current rates offered to borrowers of similar credit
characteristics.

Deposit Liabilities The fair value of demand deposits,
savings accounts and certain money market deposits is equal
to the amount payable on demand at year-end. The fair
value of fixed-rate certificates of deposit was estimated by
discounting the contractural cash flow using the discount
rates implied by the high-grade corporate bond yield curve.

Short-term Borrowings Federal funds purchased, securities
sold under agreements to repurchase and other short-term
funds borrowed are at floating rates or have short-term

maturities. Their carrying value is assumed to approximate
their fair value.

Long-term Debt and Company-obligated Mandatorily
Redeemable Preferred Securities of Subsidiary Trusts
Holding Solely the Junior Subordinated Debentures of
the Parent Company Estimated fair value for medium-
term notes, Euro medium-term notes, bank notes, Federal
Home Loan Bank advances, capital lease obligations and
mortgage note obligations was determined using a
discounted cash flow analysis based on current market rates
of similar maturity debt securities to discounted cash flows.
Other long-term debt instruments and company-obligated
mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary
trusts holding solely the junior subordinated debentures of
the parent company were valued using available market
quotes.

Interest Rate Swaps and Options The interest rate swap
cash flows were estimated using a third party pricing model
and discounted based on appropriate LIBOR, Eurodollar
futures and swap yield curves.

Loan Commitments, Letters of Credit and Guarantees
The Company’s commitments have floating rates and do
not expose the Company to interest rate risk, with the
exception of mortgage commitments. No premium or
discount was ascribed to the loan commitments because
virtually all funding would be at current market rates.
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The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31 are shown in the table below.

2001 2000
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(Dollars in Millions) Amount Value Amount Value
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ........... ... ... . i, $ 9,745 $ 9,745 $ 9,132 $ 9,132
Trading account SECUNtIes. . ... ... 982 982 753 753
Investment securities . ... .. ... . . . 26,608 26,615 17,642 17,647
Loans held for Sale . ... 2,820 2,820 764 764
[ =1 o PN 111,948 112,236 120,578 121,139
Total financial @ssets .......... ... . . . i 152,108 $152,398 148,869 $149,435
Nonfinancial @ssets.......... ... oo 19,287 16,052
Totalassets ....................... B $171,390 $164,921
Financial Liabilities !
PP OSIES o ittt $105,219 $105,561 $109,535 $109,593
Short-term bormrowings ... ... . . e 14,670 14,670 11,833 11,833
Long-termdebt. ... .. .. 25,716 25,801 21,876 22,006
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of
subsidiary trusts holding solely the junior subordinated debentures of
the parent CoOmMPaNY ... ... . ... 2,826 2,915 1,400 1,351
Total financial liabilities ............. ... . 148,431 $148,947 144,644 $144,783
Nonfinancial liabilities . ........... .. .. .. ... . .. 6,498 5,109
Shareholders’ equity......... ... ... .. 16,461 15,168
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity....................... $171,390 $164,921
Derivative Positions
Asset and liability management positions
Interest rate SWaPS . ... . $ 339 $ 339 3 — $ 107
Forward commitments to sell residential mortgages ............... 72 72 (14) (14)
Customer intermediated positions
Interestrate contracts ........... . . i i 10 10 6 6
Foreign exchange contracts . ........... ... .. . il 2 2 4 4

CIT¥EY Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Rental expense for operating leases amounted to $165.2 million in 2001, $219.3 million in 2000 and $193.8 million in 1999.
Future minimum payments, net of sublease rentals, under capitalized leases and noncancelable operating leases with initial or
remaining terms of one year or more, consisted of the following at December 31, 2001:

Capitalized Operating
(Dollars in Millions} Leases Leases
20002 e e e e $12.6 $ 1915
20003 e 9.0 164.4
2004 e e e e 8.1 137.4
200G . e 6.9 113.6
2008 . e 6.3 95.3
1T T 51.2 508.4
Total MINIMUM JEaSE PaYMENTS . . ... o et e 941 $1,201.6
Less amount representing INterest . ... ... 38.4
Present value of net minimum lease payments. ... ... .. . e e $55.7

Various legal proceedings are currently pending against the Company. Due to their complex nature, it may be years
before some matters are resolved. In the opinion of management, the aggregate liability, if any, will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, liquidity or results of operations.
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CTITEX] U.S. Bancorp (Parent Company)

Condensed Balance Sheet

December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000
Assets
Deposits with subsidiary banks, principally interest-bearing......... ... . $ 3,184 $ 1,714
Available-for-Sale SBCUMIES . . ...t e e 189 325
Investments in
Bank affilates ... 17,907 15,019
Nonbank affiliates .. ... ..o e 1,291 1,059
Advances to '
Bank affiliates .. ... ... 1,214 1,971
Nonbank affiliates . ... . e 928 1,958
Other @SS . ..o e 2,258 2,179
TOtal BSOS ..ottt e $26,971 $24,225
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Short-term fUNAS DOIrOWEd . . ... e e $ 452 $ 224
Advances from SUDSIdIANiEs . . ... e 69 97
LONg-term debt . . oo e e 6,074 6,563
Junior subordinated debentures issued to subsidiary trusts .......... ... e 2,990 1,443
Other Dl . . . . o e 925 730
Shareholders' equity ... ... .o 16,461 15,168
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equUIty . ... ..ot e $26,971 $24,225
Condensed Statement of Income
Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 19989
Income
Dividends from subsidiaries (including $1,300.1, $3,010.5 and $1,661.0 from bank
SUDSIAIANIES ) ..o $1,310.2 $3,027.8 $1,704.3
Interest from suUbSIdIaries ... ..o e 272.8 234.8 177.2
Service and management fees from subsidiaries . ......... .. ... e 221.8 246.0 2291
O eI IMCOM . .. e e e 21.0 217.0 202.0
TOtal NGO . .t 1,825.8 3,725.6 2,312.6
Expenses
Interest on short-term funds borrowed ... .. . e 18.5 19.3 26.8
Interest on long-term debt ... ... 318.5 4417 296.4
Interest on junior subordinated debentures issued to subsidiary trusts ................ ... .. 141.7 111.3 110.3
Merger and restructuring-related charges ........... . ... 49.5 21.3 103.8
O Br BB .ttt e 3225 225.2 307.7
TOtal BXPBNSES ... 850.7 818.8 845.0
Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries .............. 975.1 2,906.8 1,467.6
Income tax credit. ... ... e (102.4) (34.0) (36.9)
INncome Of PArent COMPANY ... .. .o e e 1,077.5 2,940.8 1,504.5
Equity (deficiency) in undistributed income of subsidiaries ............ ... ...l 629.0 (65.2) 877.3
Nt INCOME . . e e e $1,706.5 $2,875.6 $2,381.8
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 {Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
Operating Activities
Nt OO . . e e e $1,706.5 $2,875.6 $2,381.8
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
(Egquity) deficiency in undistributed income of subsidiaries ...................... ... .. .. (629.0) 65.2 (877.3)
(Gain) loss on sale of securities, net ......... ... . (8.2) 4.1 (7.0)
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment .......... ... ... 8.7 51.7 76.2
ONEr, Nt L e 71.2 (391.1) (3.2)
Net cash provided by operating activities .............. ... ... 1,149.2 2,605.5 1,570.5
Investing Activities
Securities
Sales and mMaturities. . . ... 254.9 92.2 128.9
PUICR S S . . ot it e e (73.5) (59.4) (334.3)
Investments in suUbSIdIiaries. ... ... (1,941.0) (4.6) ‘ (26.0)
Equity distributions from subsidiaries ....... ... . . 600.0 — 145.0
Net decrease (increase) in advances to affiliates ...... ... . ... ... . . o L. 1,759.6 (829.0) 58.1
OFher, MBt . 34.7 (113.7) (421.3)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ........................ ... . ... 634.7 (914.5) (449.6)
Financing Activities
Net (decrease) increase in short-term advances from subsidiaries.......................... (10.6) (15.8) 62.6
Net increase (decrease )in short-term funds borrowed ........ ... ... . ... ... 228.9 53.3 (11.5)
Net (decrease) increase inlong-termdebt ... ... ... .. . (512.8) 1,183.7 824.8
Proceeds from issuance of junior subordinated debentures to subsidiary trusts .............. 1,546.4 — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ... ... .. 136.4 210.0 277.6
Repurchase of Common StOCK . ... ... (467.9) (1,182.2) (1,187.9)
Cash dividends paid ... ... e (1,235.1) (1,271.3) (1,029.7)
Net cash used in financing activities . ........... ... ... i (314.7) (1,022.1) (1,064.1)
Change in cash and cash equivalents ... ... .. ... . . i 1,469.2 668.9 56.8
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ............ . ... . i 1,714.4 1,045.5 988.7
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ...... ... ... .. ... .. $3,183.6 $1,714.4 $1,045.5

Transfer of funds (dividends, loans or advances) from
bank subsidiaries to the Company is restricted. Federal law
prohibits loans unless they are secured and generally limits
any loan to the Company or individual affiliate to
10 percent of the bank’s equity. In aggregate, loans to the
Company and all afhliates cannot exceed 20 percent of the
bank’s equity.

Dividend payments to the Company by its subsidiary
banks are subject to regulatory review and statutory
limitations and, in some instances, regulatory approval. The
approval of the Comptroller of the Currency is required if
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total dividends by a national bank in any calendar year
exceed the bank’s net income for that year combined with
its retained net income for the preceding two calendar years
or if the bank’s retained earnings are less than zero.
Furthermore, dividends are restricted by the Comptroller of
the Currency’s minimum capital constraints for all national
banks. Within these guidelines, all bank subsidiaries have
the ability to pay dividends without prior regulatory
approval. The amount of dividends available to the parent
company from the bank subsidiaries at December 31, 2001,
was $1,183 million.




CTIE¥Y] Supplemental Disclosures to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Listed below are supplemental disclosures to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows:
Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999
INCOME tAXES PRI . . . .ottt $ 658.1 $ 1,046.5 $ 9011
RSt DI . ..ottt e 5,092.2 5,686.3 4,697.6
Net noncash transfers to foreclosed property........... ... i i i i 59.9 94.3 102.9
Acquisitions and divestitures
ASSBES ACQUITEd. .. . e $1,150.8 $ 3,314.6 $ 42293
Liabilies AssUMEBd .. ..o (509.0) (3,755.9) (2,610.0)
1= $ 6418 $ (441.3) $ 1,619.3

Money Market Investments are included with cash and due from banks as part of cash and cash equivalents. Money
market investments were comprised of the following at December 31:

(Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000
INterest-bearing dePOSItS ... .. ..o\ i e $104 $ 82
Federal fUNAs SOl ... oo e 123 203
Securities purchased under agreements to resell . ... ... 398 372

Total money market INVESIMENTS . . ... . e $625 $657

Regulatory Capital The measures used to assess capital include the capital ratios established by bank regulatory agencies,
including the specific ratios for the “well capitalized” designation. For a description of the regulatory capital requirements
and the actual ratios as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, for the Company and its bank subsidiaries, see Table 19 included

in Management’s Discussion and Analysis which is incorporated by reference into these Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet — Five-Year Summary

% Change
December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1987  2000-2001
Assets
Cash and due from banks ... ... .. $ 9120 $ 8475 ¢ 7324 § 8882 § 7972 7.6%
Money market investments ......... ... 625 657 1,934 1,039 1,411 (4.9)
Trading account securities. . ....... ... i 982 753 617 666 268 304
Held-to-maturity securities. . ............co i 299 252 194 233 2,942 18.7
Available-for-sale securities ......... ...t 26,309 17,390 17,255 20,732 17,500 51.3
Loans heldforsale ....... ... . i i 2,820 764 670 1,794 743 *
Loans
Commercial . ...t 46,330 52,817 45,856 41,068 36,329 (12.3)
Commercial real estate ............ ... ... i, 25373 26,443 25,142 21,808 19,798 (4.0)
Residential mortgages .............. i 5,746 7,753 11,395 13,980 15,892 (25.9)
Retail. .. .o e 36,956 35,352 30,836 30,102 27,010 45
Total IoANS .. o 114,405 122,365 113,229 106,958 99,029 (6.5)
Less allowance for creditlosses ....................... 2,457 1,787 1,710 1,706 1,666 375
Netloans. ... ... 111,948 120,578 111,519 105,252 97,363 (7.2)
Other @sSets .. ...t 19,287 16,052 14,805 12,116 9,288 20.2
Total @SSeS .. ..o $171,380 $164,921 $154,318 $150,714 $137,488 3.9%
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing. .......... i i $ 31,212 $ 26,633 $ 26,350 $ 27,479 § 24,062 17.2%
Interest-bearing ........ ... .. 74,007 82,902 77,067 76,867 74,261 (10.7)
Total depoSitS. .. ..ot 105,219 109,535 103,417 104,346 98,323 (3.9)
Short-term borrowings . ... ... 14,670 11,833 10,558 10,011 10,385 24.0
Long-term debt. . ... . 25,716 21,876 21,027 18,679 13,181 17.6
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities ... 2,826 1,400 1,400 1,400 1,050 *
Other liabilities .. ......... .o e 6,498 5,109 3,969 3,704 3,147 27.2
Total liabilities. ... o 154,929 149,753 140,371 138,140 126,086 35
Shareholders’ equity ........... o 16,461 15,168 13,947 12,574 11,402 8.5
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .................... $171,390 $164,921 $154,318 $150,714 $137,488 3.9%

*Not meaningful
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Consolidated Statement of Income — Five-Year Summary

% Change
Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997  2000-2001
Interest Income
L0ANS . $ 94554 $10,562.5 § 9,1227 § 88183 $8,419.0 (10.5)%
Loansheldforsale........ ... ... .. i 146.9 102.1 103.9 91.9 40.0 43.9
Investment securities
Taxable . ... . 1,206.1 1,008.3 1,047.1 1,178.5 1,060.7 19.6
Non-taxable ....... .. ..o i 89.5 140.6 150.1 158.2 158.0 (36.3)
Money market investments ... . e 26.6 53.9 44.9 63.0 63.6 (50.8)
Trading securities . ... 57.5 53.7 45.0 25.6 16.8 71
Other interestincome .................... E 101.6 151.4 113.0 88.2 42.6 (32.9)
Total interestincome......... ... 11,083.6 12,0725 10,626.7 10,4247 9,800.7 (8.2)
Interest Expense
DEPOSItS L 2,828.1 3.618.8 2,970.0 3,234.7 3,084.2 (21.8)
Short-term borrowings. .. ... 534.1 781.7 582.4 594.7 643.3 (31.7)
Long-term debt .. ... . . 1,162.7 1,510.4 1,126.9 926.5 586.0 (23.0)
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities . .. 149.9 112.0 111.0 103.8 76.3 33.8
Total interest expense .......... ...t 4,674.8 6,022.9 4,790.3 4,859.7 4,389.8 (22.4)
Net interest income ... ... . i 6,408.8 6,049.6 5,836.4 5,565.0 5,410.9 5.9
Provision for creditlosses .......... ... .. oo 2,528.8 828.0 646.0 491.3 639.9 b
Net interest income after provision for credit losses............... 3,880.0 5,221.86 5,190.4 5,073.7 4771.0 (25.7)
Noninterest income
Creditcard feerevenue............ ... .. .. i 774.3 761.8 648.2 748.0 611.8 1.6
Merchant and ATM processingrevenue.......................... 428.8 230.3 189.8 * * 86.2
Trust and investment managementfees.......................... 8394.4 926.2 887.1 788.3 686.1 (3.4)
Deposit service charges ........... ... ... .. i 660.6 551.1 497.2 470.3 450.6 19.9
Cash managementfees......... .. ... i, 347.3 292.4 280.6 242.0 214.2 18.8
Mortgage banking revenue............ ... o oo 234.0 189.9 190.4 2446 137.9 23.2
Trading account profits and commissions ........................ 221.6 258.4 222.4 130.3 44,8 (14.2)
Investment products fees and commissions ...................... 460.1 466.6 450.8 306.9 1104 (1.4)
Investment banking revenue ... . ... L 258.2 360.3 246.6 100.4 — (28.3)
Commercial product revenue ... ..........oviiiien i 385.9 304.4 2157 121.9 97.9 26.8
Securities gains, Net. . ... ... 3291 8.1 13.2 291 7.3 -
Merger and restructuring-related gains. . ................. ... ..., 62.2 — — 481 — =t
Other 302.9 533.7 403.1 420.1 357.6 (43.2)
Total noninterest income . ............... ..ol 5,359.4 4,883.2 4,244.9 3,650.0 2,718.6 9.8
Noninterest Expense
Salaries ... e 2,347 1 2,427 1 2,355.3 2,196.7 1,892.0 (3.3)
Employee benefits ... ... 366.2 399.8 410.1 424.9 424.0 (8.4)
NEt OCCUPANCY . . . ..ottt et 417.9 396.9 371.8 356.9 335.0 53
Furniture and equipment........ ... ... il 305.5 308.2 307.9 3141 312.3 (.9)
CommuNICatioN .. ... . 181.4 138.8 123.4 114.2 * 30.7
POSIAgE . . 179.8 1745 170.7 1554 106.6 3.0
GoodWIll. ..o 2511 235.0 175.8 176.0 114.1 6.9
Other intangible assets ............... ... .. i 278.4 157.3 154.0 125.8 93.3 77.0
Merger and restructuring-related charges ........................ 946.4 348.7 532.8 593.8 633.0 **
O her 1,331.4 1,130.7 1,059.5 965.6 1,029.4 17.8
Total noninterest eXpense ..., 6,605.2 5717.0 5,661.3 5,423.4 49397 155
Income before income taxes .......... ... .. i 2,634.2 4,387.8 3,774.0 3,300.3 2,549.9 (40.0)
Applicable income taxes ............. .. i 927.7 1,512.2 1,392.2 1,167.4 950.6 (38.7)
NEtINCOME ... o e e e e $ 17065 $ 28756 § 2,381.8 § 2,1329 $1,599.3 (40.7)
Net income applicable to common equity . .............. ... ..... $ 17065 $ 28756 §$ 23818 $ 2,1328 $1,588.2 (40.7)%

*Information not available
**Not meaningful
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Consolidated Daily Average Balance Sheet and Related

Year Ended December 31 2001 2000
Yields Yields |
(Dollars in Millions) Balance Interest  and Rates Balance Interest  and Rates
Assets
Money market investments ........... ... Ll $ 712§ 26.6 3.74% $ 931 § 53.9 5.79%
Trading account securities. ................. ol 771 59.3 7.69 779 576 7.39
Taxable securities ..............o i 20,129 1,206.1 5.89 14,567 1,008.3 6.92
Non-taxable securities ............ ... ... ol 1,787 128.9 7.21 2,744 203.1 7.40
Loans heldforsale ............... ... ... .. i 1,911 146.9 7.69 1,303 102.1 7.84
Loans
Commercgial . . ..o 50,072 3,642.5 7.31 50,062 4,257.2 8.50
Commercial real estate ..................... ... .... 26,081 2011.2 7.71 26,040 2,305.5 8.85
Residential mortgages ................... oo 6,868 513.7 7.48 9,578 723.4 7.55
Retail ... 35,156 3,302.7 9.39 32,637 3,295.4 10.10
Totalloans ....... ... 118,177 8,470.1 8.01 118,317 10,581.5 8.94
Other earning assets............ ... 1,678 101.6 6.05 1,965 151.4 7.70
Allowance for creditlosses . ................... ... 1,979 1,781
Total earning assets(a) ................ ... ... 145,165 11,139.5 7.67 140,606 12,157.9 8.65
Other assets ... ... e 22,758 19,656
Totalassets ............coo i $165,944 $158,481
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Noninterest-bearing deposits ...................... .. ... $ 25,109 $ 23,820
Interest-bearing deposits
Interestchecking ......... . ... . L o 13,962 203.6 1.46 13,035 270.4 2.07
Money market accounts. ........... ... o e 24,932 711.0 2.85 22,774 1,000.0 4.39
Savings 8CCOUNTS . . ...ttt e 4,571 425 .93 5,027 74.0 1.47
Time certificates of deposit less than $100,000 .......... 23,328 1,241.4 5.32 25,861 1,458.3 5.64
Time deposits greater than $100,000.................. .. 13,054 629.6 4.82 12,909 816.1 6.32
Total interest-bearing deposits ... ................ 79,847 2,828.1 3.54 79,606 3.618.8 4.55
Short-term borrowings ... i 12,980 5341 4.11 12,586 781.7 6.21
Long-termdebt. ... ... .. ... 24,608 1,162.7 4.72 22,410 1,510.4 6.74
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred
SECUMEIES . ..ottt 1,955 149.9 7.66 1,400 112.0 8.00
Total interest-bearing liabilities ................... 119,390 4,674.8 3.92 116,002 6,022.9 5.19
Other liabilities ......... ... e 5,244 4,294
Shareholders’ equity ......... ... ... i 16,201 14,365
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity........... $165,944 $158,481
Net interestincome ........... . . i $ 6,464.7 $ 6,135.0
Gross interest margin ............. . oo 3.75% 3.46%
Gross interest margin without taxable-equivalent
INCIEMENTS . .. e 3.71% 3.40%
Percent of Earning Assets
Interest income ........... . ¢ 7.67% 8.65%
Interest expense....... ... . . 3.22 4.29
Netinterest margin . ........ .. ... 4.45 4.36
Net interest margin without taxable-equivalent increments. . .. 4.41% 4.30% i

{nterest and rates are presented on a fully taxable-equivalent basis under a tax rate of 35 percent.
Interest income and rates on loans include loan fees. Nonaccrual loans are included in average loan balances.
(a) Before deducting the allowance for credit losses and excluding the unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities.
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Yields and Rates

1999 1998 2000-2001
Yields Yields % Change
B Balance Interest and Rates Balance Interest and Rates Average Balance
$ 1,082 $ 449 4.15% $ 1170 $ 63.0 5.38% (23.5)%
630 _ 47.8 7.59 428 276 6.45 (1.0)
16,301 1,047.1 6.42 17,977 1,179.5 6.56 38.2
2,970 220.6 7.43 3,137 238.2 7.59 (34.9)
1,450 103.9 7.7 1,264 91.9 7.27 46.7
43,328 3,288.3 7.58 38,983 3,110.4 7.98 —
23,078 1,940.3 8.41 20,458 1,7841 8.72 2
12,680 953.7 7.52 15,160 1,170.5 7.72 (28.3)
30,554 2,963.4 9.70 27,850 2,782.5 9.99 7.7
109,638 9,145.7 8.34 102,451 8,847.5 8.64 (.1)
1,686 113.0 6.70 1,311 88.2 6.73 (14.8)
1,709 1,688 111
133,757 10,723.0 8.02 127,738 10,535.9 8.25 3.2
18,119 16,837 15.8
$150,167 $142,887 4.7
$ 23,556 $ 23,011 5.4
12,898 231.0 1.78 12,263 230.9 1.88 7.1
22,534 842.2 3.74 20,337 825.1 4.06 9.5
5,961 111.9 1.88 8,504 146.7 2.26 (9.1)
26,296 1,322.6 5.03 29,583 1,622.7 5.49 (9.8)
8,675 462.3 533 7,242 409.3 5.65 1.1
76,364 2,970.0 3.89 75,929 3,234.7 4.26 3
11,707 582.4 4.97 11,102 5947 5.36 3.1
20,248 1,126.9 5.57 15,732 926.5 5.89 9.8
1,400 111.0 7.93 1,314 103.8 7.90 39.6
109,719 4,790.3 4.37 104,077 4,859.7 4.67 29
3,671 3,416 221
13,221 12,383 12.8
$150,167 $142,887 4.7%
$ 59827 $ 5676.2
3.65% 3.58%
3.57% 3.48%
8.02% 8.25%
3.58 3.81
4.44 4.44
4.36% 4.36%
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Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data

2001 2000
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest Income
LOaNS ... e $2,660.9 $2,437.9 $22856 $2,071.0 $24721 $2,591.8 $2,710.7 $2,787.9
Loans heldforsale .......................... 16.6 25.9 53.9 50.5 12.0 35.2 327 22.2
Investment securities
Taxable .......... ... .. 253.3 287.8 321.2 343.8 251.0 255.6 250.4 251.3
Non-taxable.............................. 31.2 27.8 15.9 14.6 38.9 33.5 34.8 33.4
Money market investments ................... - 8.9 7.4 6.3 4.0 13.6 15.0 14.5 10.8
Trading securities . ......... ... e 15.9 141 11.2 16.3 14.3 12.6 12.8 14.0
Other interestincome ........................ 32.0 26.1 243 19.2 37.3 37.0 37.7 39.4
Total interest income .................. 3,018.8 2,827.0 2,718.4 2,519.4 2,839.2 2,980.7 3,093.6 3,159.0
Interest Expense
Deposits .. ... 883.7 783.0 670.0 491.4 813.2 875.9 954.0 975.7
Short-term borrowings ....................... 186.2 124.4 122.9 100.6 171.1 198.7 191.2 220.7
Long-termdebt................ ... ... ... 365.7 315.0 276.7 205.3 336.9 371.3 403.9 398.3
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable
preferred securities . ................... ... 27.6 354 39.7 47.2 28.4 29.3 31.5 22.8
Total interest expense ................. 1,463.2 1,257.8 1,109.3 8445 1,349.6 1,475.2 1,680.6 1,617.5
Net interestincome .......................... 1,555.6 1,569.2 1,609.1 1,674.9 1,489.6 1,505.5 1,513.0 1,541.5
Provision for credit losses.................... 532.4 441.3 1,289.3 265.8 183.2 201.3 214.0 229.5
Net interest income after provision for credit
10SSES .ot 1,023.2 1,127.9 319.8 1,409.1 1,306.4 1,304.2 1,299.0 1,312.0
Noninterest Income
Credit card feerevenue ...................... 191.7 198.2 192.2 192.2 161.4 187.4 202.2 210.8
Merchant and ATM processing revenue ....... 58.0 62.4 138.5 169.9 57.5 59.9 59.0 53.9
Trust and investment management fees . .... .. 225.0 228.0 226.2 215.2 230.9 230.4 231.1 233.8
Deposit service charges...................... 146.5 176.7 168.7 168.7 123.4 138.0 144.3 145.4
Cash managementfees ...................... 76.8 84.9 89.7 95.9 71.8 74.1 74.7 71.8
Mortgage banking revenue ................... 48.2 57.0 60.3 68.5 427 481 447 54.4
Trading account profits and commissions. .. ... 71.9 55.8 43.6 50.3 85.3 59.8 50.9 62.4
Investment products fees and commissions. . .. 125.7 114.2 108.0 112.2 140.8 109.1 107.8 108.9
Investment banking revenue .................. 60.2 71.1 56.9 70.0 94.0 72.9 100.6 92.8
Commercial product revenue ................. 76.1 93.8 96.2 119.8 61.6 71.6 86.0 852
Securities gains (losses), net ................ 216.0 313 59.8 22.0 (.3) 3 1.1 7.0
Merger and restructuring-related gains ........ — 62.2 — — — — — —
Other . ..o 104.8 91.0 68.2 38.9 1123 151.7 131.2 138.5
Total noninterest income............... 1,400.9 1,326.6 1,308.3 1,323.6 1,181.4 1,203.3 1,233.6 1,264.9
Noninterest Expense
Salaries. ... 590.5 570.5 580.3 605.8 629.6 601.4 602.4 593.7
Employee benefits . .............. ... ... o 108.1 90.7 85.4 82.0 111.9 100.3 89.4 98.2
Netoccupancy ...l 1101 101.4 102.5 103.9 97.2 95.7 99.8 104.2
Furniture and equipment . .................... 76.9 74.9 74.9 78.8 76.7 757 79.6 76.2
Communication........... ..o 38.7 50.3 49.4 43.0 33.6 33.8 35.7 35.7
Postage ..........c i 46.9 43.8 44.7 44 .4 44.6 42.6 43.1 442
Goodwill .. ... 67.8 58.6 62.3 62.4 56.5 57.8 58.5 62.2
Other intangible assets....................... 46.6 54.0 84.8 93.0 39.3 39.0 39.2 39.8
Merger and restructuring-related charges...... 404.2 252.8 148.8 140.6 65.0 81.9 117.7 84.1
Other ... 308.7 297.7 3344 390.6 268.2 2829 286.0 293.6
Total noninterest expense ............. 1,798.5 1,594.7 1,567.5 1,644.5 1,422.6 1,411.1 1,451.4 1,431.9
Income before income taxes.................. 625.6 859.8 60.6 1,088.2 1,065.2 1,096.4 1,081.2 1,145.0
Applicable income taxes ..................... 215.5 297.5 21.9 392.8 378.4 386.6 370.9 376.3
Netincome .......... ... ... ool $ 4101 § 5623 $ 387 § 6954 $ 6868 $ 7098 § 7103 $ 7687
Earnings pershare .......................... $ 22 % 30 % 02 3 .36 $ 36 % 37 % 37 8 41
Diluted earnings per share ................... $ 21 8 29 8 02 % .36 $ 36 8 37 8 37 08 .40
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Supplemental Financial Data

Earnings Per Share Summary

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Earnings per share ..........oooviiiie i $89 $1.51 $1.25 $1.12 $.86
Diluted earnings pershare .................coiviiin... .88 1.50 1.23 1.10 - .85
Ratios
Return on average assets........................ ..o 1.08% 1.81% 1.59% 1.49% 1.24%
Return on average equity . ........................o Ll 105 20.0 18.0 17.2 14.7
Average total equity to average assets.................... 9.8 9.1 8.8 8.7 84
Dividends per share to net income per share .............. 84.3 43.0 36.8 29.5 31.4
Other Statistics (Shares in Millions)
Common shares outstanding —yearend(a) .............. 1,951.7 1,902.1 1,928.5 1,9\03‘5 1,864.0
Average common shares outstanding and comman stock
equivalents
Earningspershare............ . ..o i, 1,927.9 1,906.0 1,907.8 1,898.8 1,841.0
Diluted earnings pershare......................... 1,939.5 1,8185 1,830.0 1,930.5 1,872.2
Number of shareholders —year end(b) .................. 76,395 46,052 45,966 17,523 12,010
Common dividends declared (millions) ................... $1,446.5 $1,267.0 $1,090.8 $977.6 $801.9
(a) Defined as total common shares less common stock held in treasury.
(b) Based on number of common stock sharehoiders of record.
Stock Price Range and Dividends
2001 2000
Sales Price Dividends Sales Price Dividends
High Low Declared High Low Declared
Firstquarter ............... .. ... ... ... $26.06 $18.49 $.1875 $24.88 $16.38 $.1625
Second quarter ........................... 23.60 20.71 1875 28.00 20.88 1625
Third quarter ................ . .. 25.24 18.25 1875 25.00 19.25 1625
Fourth quarter .................... ... ... 2295 16.50 1875 24.31 15.38 1625
Closing price — December 31 20.93 23.25 :

The common stock of U.S. Bancorp is traded on the New York Stock Exchange, under the ticker symbol "USB.”
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Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

Annual Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d} of the
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Incorporated in the State of Delaware
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with Firstar Corporation, the par value of U.S. Bancorp
common stock was $1.25.

Securities registered pursuant to section 12(g) of the
Act: None.

As of January 31, 2002, U.S. Bancorp had
1,918,425,072 shares of common stock outstanding. The
aggregate market value of common stock held by non-
affiliates as of January 31, 2002, was approximately
$39.0 billion.

U.S. Bancorp (1) has filed all reports required to be
filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of
Regulation $-K is contained in the registrant’s definitive
proxy statement incorporated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K and any amendment to this Form 10-K.

This Annual Report and Form 10-K incorporates into a
single document the requirements of the accounting
profession and the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Only those sections of the Annual Report referenced in the
following cross-reference index and the information under
the caption “Forward-Looking Statements” are incorporated
in the Form 10-K.
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General U.S. Bancorp is a multi-state financial services
holding company headquartered in Minneapolis, Minnesota
and was created by the acquisition by Firstar Corporation
of the former U.S. Bancorp of Minneapolis, Minnesota.
The merger was completed on February 27, 2001, and the
combined company retained the U.S. Bancorp name.

U.S. Bancorp was incorporated in Delaware in 1929 and
operates as a financial holding company and a bank holding
company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956.
U.S. Bancorp provides a full range of financial services,
including lending and depository services, cash management,
foreign exchange and trust and investment management
services. [t also engages in credit card services, merchant
and automated teller machine (“ATM”) processing,
mortgage banking, insurance, brokerage, leasing and
investment banking.

U.S. Bancorp’s banking subsidiaries are engaged in the
general banking business, principally in domestic markets.
The subsidiaries range in size from $312 million to
$108 billion in deposits and provide a wide range of
products and services to individuals, businesses, institutional
organizations, governmental entities and other financial
institutions. Commercial and consumer lending services are
principally offered to customers within the Company’s
domestic markets, to domestic customers with foreign
operations and within certain niche national venues.
Lending services include traditional credit products as well
as credit card services, financing and import/export trade,
asset-backed lending, agricultural finance and other
products. Leasing products are offered through non-bank
subsidiaries. Depository services include checking accounts,
savings accounts and time certificate contracts. Ancillary
services such as foreign exchange, treasury management and
receivable lock-box collection are provided to corporate
customers. U.S. Bancorp’s bank and trust subsidiaries
provide a full range of fiduciary services for individuals,
estates, foundations, business corporations and charitable
organizations.

Banking and investment services are provided through a
network of 2,147 banking offices principally operating in
24 states in the Midwest and West. The Company operates
a nétwork of 4,904 branded ATMs and provides 24-hour,
seven days-a-week telephone customer service. Mortgage
banking services are provided through banking offices and
loan production offices throughout the Company’s markets.

The Company is one of the largest providers of Visa®
corporate and purchasing card services and corporate trust
services in the United States. Its wholly owned subsidiary
Nova Information Systems, Inc. provides merchant
processing services directly to merchants and through a
network of banking affiliations.

U.S. Bancorp’s other non-banking subsidiaries offer a
variety of products and services to the Company’s

customers. Its wholly owned subsidiary U.S. Bancorp Piper
Jaffray Inc. engages in equity and fixed income trading
activities and offers investment banking and underwriting
services to corporate and public sector customers. This non-
bank subsidiary also provides brokerage products, including

securities, mutual funds and annuities, and insurance products to

consumers and regionally based businesses through a
network of 123 brokerage offices.

On a full-time equivalent basis, employment during
2001 averaged a total of 50,461 employees.

Competition The commercial banking business is highly
competitive. Subsidiary banks compete with other
commercial banks and with other financial institutions,
including savings and loan associations, mutual savings
banks, finance companies, mortgage banking companies,
credit unions and investment companies. In recent years,
competition has increased from institutions not subject to
the same regulatory restrictions as domestic banks and bank
holding companies.

Government Policies The operations of the Company’s
various operating units are affected by state and federal
legislative changes and by policies of various regulatory
authorities, including those of the numerous states in which
they operate, the United States and foreign governments.
These policies include, for example, statutory maximum
legal lending rates, domestic monetary policies of the Board
of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, United States
fiscal policy, international currency regulations and
monetary policies, and capital adequacy and liquidity
constraints imposed by bank regulatory agencies.

Supervision and Regulation U.S. Bancorp is a registered
bank holding company and financial holding company
under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 {the “Act”)
and is subject to the supervision of, and regulation by, the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the
“Board”).

Under the Act, a financial holding company may engage
in banking, managing or controlling banks, furnishing or
performing services for banks it controls, and conducting
other financial activities. U.S. Bancorp must obtain the prior
approval of the Board before acquiring more than 5 percent
of the outstanding shares of another bank or bank holding
company, and must provide notice to, and in some
situations obtain the prior approval of, the Board in
connection with engaging in, or acquiring more than
5 percent of the outstanding shares of a company engaged
in, a new financial activity.

Under the Act, as amended by the Riegle-Neal
Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994
(the “Interstate Act”), U.S. Bancorp may acquire banks
throughout the United States, subject only to state or
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federal deposit caps and state minimum age requirements.
The Interstate Act authorizes interstate branching by
acquisition and consolidations in those states that have not
opted out of interstate branching.

National banks are subject to the supervision of, and
are examined by, the Comptroller of the Currency. All
subsidiary banks of the Company are members of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) and are
subject to examination by the FDIC. In practice, the
primary federal regulator makes regular examinations of
each subsidiary bank subject to its regulatory review or
participates in joint examinations with other federal
regulators. Areas subject to regulation by federal authorities
include the allowance for credit losses, investments, loans,
mergers, issuance of securities, payment of dividends,
establishment of branches and other aspects of operations.

Properties U.S. Bancorp and its significant subsidiaries
occupy their headquarter offices under long-term leases and
are located in Minneapolis, Minnesota and Cincinnati,
Ohio. The Company also leases seven principal freestanding
operations centers in St. Paul, Portland, Nashville and
Denver, and owns five principal freestanding operations
centers in Cincinnati, Kansas City, St. Louis, Fargo and
Milwaukee. At December 31, 2001, U.S. Bancorp’s
subsidiaries owned and operated a total of 1,383 facilities
and leased an additional 1,388 facilities, all of which are
well maintained. The Company believes its current facilities
are adequate to meet its needs. Additional information with
respect to premises and equipment is presented in Notes 9
and 22 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

EXHIBITS

Financial Statements Filed Page

U.S. Bancorp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements.................. 49
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ............ 53
Report of Independent Accountants .................... 48

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
required by Regulation S-X are omitted since the required
information is included in the footnotes or is not
applicable.

During the three months ended December 31, 2001,
the Company filed the following Current Reports on
Form 8-K:

Form 8-K filed October 17, 2001, relating to third
quarter 2001 and anticipated full year 2001 earnings;

Form 8-K filed October 31, 2001, announcing
commencement of an underwritten offering of trust
preferred securities;

Form 8-K filed December 6, 2001, announcing
commencement of an underwritten offering of trust
preferred securities.

n U.S. Bancorp

The following Exhibit Index lists the Exhibits to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

3,1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as
amended. Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31, 2000.
3.2 Restated bylaws, as amended.

4.1 [Pursuant to Item 601(b) (4} (iii} (A) of
Regulation S-K, copies of instruments defining
the rights of holders of long-term debt are not
filed. U.S. Bancorp agrees to furnish a copy
thereof to the Securities and Exchange
Commisston upon request. ]

Warrant Agreement, dated as of October 2,
1995, between U.S. Bancorp and First Chicago
Trust Company of New York, as Warrant
Agent and Form of Warrant. Filed as

Exhibits 4.18 and 4.19 to Registration

Statement on Form S-3, File No. 33-61667.
)10.1  U.S. Bancorp 2001 Stock Incentive Plan.
2110.2

Mg0.3

U.S. Bancorp Executive Incentive Plan.

U.S. Bancorp Executive Deferral Plan, as
amended. Filed as Exhibit 10.7 to Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1999.

2110.4 Summary of Nonqualified Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan, as amended, of the

former U.S. Bancorp.

10,5 1991 Performance and Equity Incentive Plan of
the former U.S. Bancorp. Filed as Exhibit 10.13
to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

1997.

Description of Retirement Benefits of Joshua
Green II1. Filed as Exhibit 10.14 to Form 10-K
for the vear ended December 31, 1997.

Form of Director Indemnification Agreement

M210.6

(1)(2)10'7
entered into with former directors of the
former U.S. Bancorp. Filed as Exhibit 10.15 to
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1997.

U.S. Bancorp Independent Director Retirement
and Death Benefit Plan, as amended. Filed as
Exhibit 10.17 to Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999.

U.S. Bancorp Deferred Compensation Plan for
Directors, as amended. Filed as Exhibit 10.18

to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1999.

SESUE:
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211010 Summary of U.S. Bancorp Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan.

(2)10.11 U.S. Bancorp Deferred Compensation Plan.

210.12 Form of Change in Control Agreement,
effective November 16, 2001, between
U.S. Bancorp and certain executive officers of
U.S. Bancorp.

110.13 Employment Agreement with Jerry A.
Grundhofer.

2)10.14 Employment Agreement with John F.
Grundhofer.

12 Statement re: Computation of Ratio of Earnings
to Fixed Charges.

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Exhibit has previously been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and
is incorporated herein as an exhibit by reference.

(2) Management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed
as an exhibit pursuant to ltem 14(c) of Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on February 28, 2002, on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

U.S. Bancorp
By: Jerry A. Grundhofer
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, this report has been signed below on February 28,
2002, by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities indicated.

Jerry A. Grundhofer

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

(principal executive officer)

David M. Moffett

Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer

{principal financial officer)

Terrance R. Dolan

Executive Vice President and Controller

(principal accounting officer)

John F. Grundhofer

Chairman

Linda L. Ahlers

Director

Victoria Buyniski Gluckman
Director

Arthur D. Collins, Jr.
Director

Peter H. Coors
Director

John C. Dannemiller
Director

Joshua Green Il
Director

J.P. Hayden, Jr.
Director

Roger L. Howe
Director

Thomas H. Jacobsen
Director

Delbert W. Johnson
Director

Joel W. Johnson
Director

Jerry W. Levin
Director

Sheldon B. Lubar
Director

Frank Lyon, Jr.
Director

Daniel F. McKeithan, Jr.
Director

David B. O’'Maley
Director

O’dell M. Owens, M.D., M.P.H.
Director

Thomas E. Petry
Director

Richard G. Reiten
Director

S. Walter Richey
Director

Warren R. Staley
Director

Patrick T. Stokes
Director

John J. Stollenwerk
Director
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Jerry A. Grundhofer

Mr. Grundhofer, 57, has served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of
U.S. Bancorp and Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer of U.S. Bank
National Association since the merger of
Firstar Corporation and U.S. Bancorp in
February 2001. Prior to the merger,

Mr. Grundhofer was President and Chief
Executive Officer of Firstar Corporation,
having served as Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer of Star Banc
Corporation from 1993 until its merger

with Firstar Corporation in 1998.

Jennie P. Carlson

Ms. Carlson, 41, has served as Executive
Vice President, Human Resources since
January 2002. Until that time, she served
as Executive Vice President, Deputy
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
of U.S. Bancorp since the merger of
Firstar Corporation and U.S. Bancorp in
February 2001. From 1995 until the
merger, she was General Counsel and
Secretary of Firstar Corporation and Star
Banc Corporation, a predecessor
company, as well as Senior Vice President
from 1994 to 1999 and Executive Vice
President from 1999 to 2001.

U.S. Bancorp

Andrew Cecere

Mr. Cecere, 41, has served as Vice
Chairman of U.S. Bancorp since the
merger of Firstar Corporation and U.S.
Bancorp in February 2001. He assumed
responsibility for Private Client and Trust
Services in February 2001 and U.S.
Bancorp Asset Management in
November 2001. Previously, he had
served as Chief Financial Officer of U.S.
Bancorp from May 2000 through
February 2001. Additionally, he served as
Vice Chairman of U.S. Bank with
responsibility for Commercial Services
from 1999 to 2001, having been a Senior

Vice President of Finance since 1992.

William L. Chenevich

Mr. Chenevich, 358, has served as Vice
Chairman of U.S, Bancorp since the
merger of Firstar Corporation and U.S.
Bancorp in February 2001, when he
assumed responsibility for Technology
and Operations Services. Previously, he
had served as Vice Chairman of
Technology and Operations Services of
Firstar Corporation from 1999 to 2001.
Prior to joining Firstar he was Group
Executive Vice President at Visa
International from 1994 to 1999.

Richard K. Davis

Mr. Davis, 44, has served as Vice
Chairman of U.S. Bancorp since the
merger of Firstar Corporation and U.S.
Bancorp in February 2001, when he
assumed responsibility for Consumer
Banking and Payment Services. Previously,
he had been Vice Chairman of Consumer
Banking of Firstar Corporation from 1998
until 2001 and Executive Vice President,
Consumer Banking of Star Banc
Corporation from 1993 until its merger

with Firstar Corporation in 1998.

Andrew S. Duff

Mr. Duff, 44, has served as Vice
Chairman of U.S. Bancorp, responsible for
Private Advisory Services, Equity Capital
Matkets and Fixed Income Capital
Markets, since November 2001, and until
that time as Vice Chairman responsible
for Wealth Management and Capital
Markets since 1999. He has served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of
U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray since

Januéry 2000. Prior to that time, he had
served as President of Piper Jaffray Inc.,
the broker-dealer subsidiary of Piper
Jaffray Companies, since January 1996.




Edward Grzedzinski

Mr. Grzedzinski, 46, has served as Vice
Chairman of U.S. Bancorp since July
2001. He is President and Chief Executive
Officer of NOVA Information Systems,
which he co-founded in 1991 and which
became a wholly owned subsidiary of
U.S. Bancorp in connection with the
acquisition of NOVA Corporation in July
2001. Mr. Grzedzinski served as Chairman
of NOVA Corporation from 1995 until
July 2001.

Joseph E. Hasten

Mr. Hasten, 50, has served as Vice
Chairman of U.S. Bancorp since the
merger of Firstar Corporation and U.S.
Bancorp in February 2001, when he
assumed responsibility for Corporate
Banking. Previously, he had been Vice
Chairman of Wholesale Banking of Firstar
Corporation, after joining Mercantile
Bancorporation, a predecessor company,
as President of its St. Louis bank and of

Corporate Banking in 1995.

J. Robert Hoffmann

Mr. Hoffman, 56, has served as Executive
Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of
U.S. Bancorp since 1990.

Lee R. Mitau

Mr. Mitau, 53, has served as Executive
Vice President and General Counsel of
U.S. Bancorp since 1995. Mr. Mitau also
serves as Corporate Secretary. Prior to
1995 he was a partner at the law firm of
Dorsey & Whitney LLP.

David M. Moffett
Mr. Moffett, 50, has served as Vice
Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of

U.S. Bancorp since the merger of Firstar

- Corporation and U.S. Bancorp in February

2001. Prior to the merger, he was Vice
Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of
Firstar Corporation, and had served as
Chief Financial Officer of Star Banc
Corporation from 1993 until its merger

with Firstar Corporation in 1998.

Daniel M. Quinn

Mr. Quinn, 45, Vice Chairman of U.S.
Bancorp, assumed responsibility for
Commercial Banking in April 1999 and
for Regional Commercial Real Estate in
August 1999. Previously, he had been
President of U.S. Bank in Colorado
(formerly Colorado National Bank) since
1996.

Stephen E. Smith

Mr. Smith, 54, has served as Executive
Vice President and Director of Human
Resources of U.S. Bancorp since the
merger of Firstar Corporation and U.S.
Bancorp in February 2001. Prior to the
merger, he was Executive Vice President
and Corporate Director of Human
Resources of Firstar Corporation and Star
Banc Corporation, a predecessor
company, since 1995, having served as
Director of Human Resources of Star

Banc Corporation since 1993.
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Corporate Information

Executive Offices

U.S. Bancorp

225 South Sixth Street
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402

After June 2002
800 Nicollet Mall
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402

Common Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

U.S. Bank National Association, a subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp,
acts as our transfer agent and registrar, dividend paying agent
and dividend reinvestment plan agent, and maintains all
shareholder records for the corporation. Inquiries related to
shareholder records, stock transfers, changes of ownership,
changes of address and dividend payment should be sent to
the transfer agent at the following address:

U.S. Bank National Association

1555 North River Center Drive, Suite 301
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53212

Phone: 800-637-7549

Fax:  414-905-5049

Internet: www.investorservice.usbank.com

Independent Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP serves as the independent
accountants of U.S. Bancorp.

Common Stock Listing and Trading
U.S. Bancorp common stock is listed and traded on the
New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol USB.

Dividends and Dividend Reinvestment Plan

U.S. Bancorp currently pays quarterly dividends on our com-
mon stock on or about the 15th day of January, April, July and
October, subject to prior approval by our Board of Directors.
U.S. Bancorp shareholders can choose to participate in a plan
that provides automatic reinvestment of dividends and/or
optional cash purchase of additional shares of U.S. Bancorp
common stock. For more information, please contact:

U.S. Bank National Association

Dividend Reinvestment Department

1555 North River Center Drive, Suite 301
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53212

Phone: 800-637-7549

Investment Community Contacts
Howell D. McCullough

Senior Vice President, Investor Relations
howell.mccullough@usbank.com
Phone: 612-973-2261

Judith T. Murphy

Vice President, Investor Relations
judith.murphy @usbank.com
Phone: 612-973-2264

Financial Information
U.S. Bancorp news and financial results are available through
our Web site and by mail.

Web site. For information about U.S. Bancorp, including news
and financial results and online annual reports, access our home
page on the Internet at www.usbank.com.

Mail. At your request, we will mail to you our quarterly earnings
news releases, quarterly financial data reported on Form 10-Q
and additional copies of our annual reports. To be added to the
U.S. Bancorp mailing list for quarterly earnings news releases or
to request other information, please contact:

U.S. Bancorp Investor Relations
225 South Sixth Street
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402
Phone: 612-973-2263
corporaterelations @usbank.com

Media Requests

Steve Dale

Senior Vice President, Media Relations
Phone: 612-973-0898

Other Business Information

For product and service information, branch office and
ATM locations, information about lines of business,
account access, employment opportunities and more, visit
www.usbank.com or www.firstar.com.

Diversity _

U.S. Bancorp and our subsidiaries are committed to developing
and maintaining a workplace that reflects the diversity of the
communities we serve. We support a work environment where
individual differences are valued and respected and where each
individual who shares the fundamental values of the company has
an opportunity to contribute and grow based on individual merit.

Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action

U.S. Bancorp and our subsidiaries are committed to providing
Equal Employment Opportunity to all employees and applicants
for employment. In keeping with this commitment, employment
decisions are made based upon performance, skill and abilities,
rather than race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry,

sex, age, disability, veteran status, sexual orientation or any
other factors protected by law. The corporation complies with
municipal, state and federal fair employment laws, including
regulations applying to federal contractors.

U.S. Bancorp, including each of our subsidiaries, is an
Equal Opportunity Employer and a Drug-Free Workplace.

U.S. Bank and Firstar Bank
fnegs  Members FDIC

@ This report is printed on recycled paper containing
a minimum 10 percent post-consumer recycled waste.
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U.S. Bancorp
225 South Sixth Street
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402

www.usbank.com
www.firstar.com

U.S. Bancorp is a multi-state financial holding company
with headquarters in Minneapolis, Minnesota. The merger of
Firstar Corporation and the former U.S. Bancorp closed
on February 27, 2001, making the new U.S. Bancorp the

8th largest financial holding company in the United States,
with total assets exceeding $171 billion. We place No. 41
in The Super 100, a Forbes magazine composite ranking
based on sales, profits, assets and market value.

Through U.S. Bank, Firstar Bank and other subsidiaries,
U.S. Bancorp serves more than 10 million customers
principally through 2,147 full-service branch offices in
24 states, additional specialized offices across the country
and in several foreign countries, 4,904 ATMs, and Internet
and telephone banking.

U.S. Bancorp and our subsidiaries provide a compre-
hensive selection of premium financial products and services
to individuals, businesses, nonprofit organizations, institu-
tions and government entities.

U.S. Bancorp, our subsidiary full-service banks and
other subsidiaries operate the following major lines of
business: Consumer Banking, Wholesale Banking, Payment
Services, and Private Client, Trust and Asset Management.
U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray offers full securities brokerage,
equity capital, fixed income capital and individual investment
services.

U.S. Bancorp is home of the exclusive Five Star
Service Guarantee, which assures customers of certain
key banking standards.




